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About this report

We are pleased to present the Thirty Fourth Annual Report, for the financial year 2022-23. This
report provides an overview of your company’s operations, financial and non-financial
performance during the year. Further, in this report, we have highlighted the key opportunities and
challenges facing our industry, as well as our policies and procedures for ensuring compliance and
good governance. The report aims to provide a detailed insight into our financial and non-financial
disclosures, encompassing our leadership, culture, and strategy of our value creation process to
our stakeholders.

Responsibility statement

The Board firmly believes that this report is a fair representation of your company’s financial, non-
financial and operational performance and address all material topics relevant to the company for
FY 2022-23. The board acknowledges that contents of this report have been prepared by respective
functions and under the guidance of the management.




About Pharmaids

Incorporated in March 1989, we are a Public Limited company listed on BSE since 1992. With a
unique business strategy, a modest investment and with a bold vision to be a global player in this
business by providing high quality innovation and research, development, and manufacturing
services to our partners. We have onboarded a team having thorough scientific, management and
operational experience. We have also been able to bring in Independent Board members with
excellent & longstanding experience. PPL intends to work for clients around the globe, delivering
innovation that benefits immediate and extended stakeholders.

We have a strong commitment to adhere to corporate governance framework focused on quality,
safety, ethics, client satisfaction and data integrity. PPL is exploring organic and inorganic growth
opportunities to achieve this endeavour.

We embrace innovation—bringing ideas, products and services to life for well-being of people
around the world. We believe in collaboration, that would help us to cater to the well-being of the
society.

We aspire to create an environment in which people can realise their full potential through
collaborative work and continuous learning.




NOTICE
34t ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 34™ Annual General Meeting of the Members of M/s Pharmaids
Pharmaceuticals Limited ("the Company") will be held on Friday, September 22, 2023, at 12:30
P.M. IST through Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio-Visual Means ("OAVM") to transact
following business mentioned below:

Ordinary Business:

1.

To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) for
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, and the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Mini Manikantan (DIN: 09663184), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

. Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company for a consecutive term of five years:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provision of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification thereof for the time being in force and
as may be enacted from time to time), approval of the members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded for reappointment of M/s. PPKG & Company, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration Number 009655S) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
for further consecutive term of five years from the conclusion of 34" Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of 39" Annual General Meeting of the Company at an Annual
Fess of Rs. 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two Lakh Only) exclusive of Taxes, if any and
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by them on actual basis and be revised
as decided by the Audit Committee/Board in consultation with the Auditors, which fee may
be paid on a progressive billing basis to be agreed between the Auditor and the Audit
Committee/Board or such other officer of the Company as may be approved by the
Board/Committee.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, in consultation with the Audit Committee, be
and is hereby authorised to alter and vary the terms and conditions of re-appointment,
including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with
the Statutory Auditors of the Company.




Special Business:

4. Appointment of Mr. Shreedhara Shetty (DIN: 02776638) as a Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution, with or without
Modification, as Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) and Articles of Association of the company,

on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approval of
the Board of Directors for appointment of Mr. Shreedhara Shetty (DIN: 02776638) as an
Additional Director in the capacity of a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the
Company w.e.f. 29.08.2023, and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act and who holds office as such up to the date
of ensuing Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby, appointed as an Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to perform and execute all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be
deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution and for the matters
connected therewith or incidental thereto.”

5. To approve Material Related Party Transaction limits with Anugraha Chemicals
(“The firm”)

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without
modification(s) as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23(4) and other applicable Regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), if any, read with related rules, if any, each as amended
from time to time, and the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transaction(s), the approval
of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of Company
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any
Committee constituted / empowered / to be constituted by the Board from time to time to
exercise its powers conferred by this resolution) to enter into/continue to enter Material
related party transaction(s)/ contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/Loans/ Advances
(whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of
transactions or otherwise) with Anugraha Chemicals (“the Firm”), a related party of the




Company, for the financial year 2023-24 on such terms and conditions as may be agreed
between the Company and Anugraha Chemicals, subject to a maximum of Rs.
15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crore Only) through transaction(s)/ contract(s)/
arrangement(s)/  agreement(s), subject to such transaction(s)/ contract(s)/
arrangement(s)/agreement (s), being carried out at arm’s length and in the ordinary course
of business of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and is hereby authorised, to do and
perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary, including finalising
the terms and conditions, methods and modes in respect thereof and finalising and
executing necessary documents, including contract(s), scheme(s), agreement(s) and such
other documents, file applications and make representations in respect thereof and seek
approval from relevant authorities, including Governmental/regulatory authorities, as
applicable, in this regard and deal with any matters, take necessary steps as the Board may,
in its absolute discretion deem necessary, desirable or expedient, to give effect to this
resolution and to settle any question that may arise in this regard and incidental thereto,
without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the Shareholders or
otherwise to the end and intent that the Shareholders shall be deemed to have given their
approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or
any of the powers herein conferred to any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer or
Company Secretary or any other Officer(s) / Authorised Representative(s) of the Company,
to do all such acts and take such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to
give effect to the aforesaid resolution(s).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board, or any person so
authorized by the Board, in connection with any matter referred to or contemplated in any
of the foregoing resolutions, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all
respects.”

To approve availing shareholders loan from Mr. Shankarappa Nagaraja Vinaya
Babu, shareholder of the company which will be considered as material related party
transaction.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without
modification(s) as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 179, 180(1)(c) and 73 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 23
and other applicable Regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (‘SEBI Listing
Regulations’), and the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), if any,
read with related rules, if any, each as amended from time to time, and the Company’s




Policy on Related Party Transaction(s), the approval of the Shareholders be and is hereby
accorded to the Board of Directors of Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”,
which term shall be deemed to include any Committee constituted / empowered / to be
constituted by the Board from time to time to exercise its powers conferred by this
resolution) to enter into/continue to enter Material related party transaction(s)/ contract(s)/
arrangement(s)/ agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions
taken together or series of transactions or otherwise) with Mr. Shankarappa Nagaraja
Vinaya Babu, a Shareholder and related party of the Company, for the financial year 2023-
24 on such terms and conditions as may be agreed between the Company and Mr.
Shankarappa Nagaraja Vinaya Babu, subject to a maximum of Rs. 7,50,00,000/- (Rupees
Seven Crore Fifty Lakh Only) through transaction(s)/ contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/
agreement(s)/ Loans/ Advances, subject to such transaction(s)/ contract(s)/
arrangement(s)/agreement (s), being carried out at arm’s length and in the ordinary course
of business of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and is hereby authorised, to do and
perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary, including finalising
the terms and conditions, methods and modes in respect thereof and finalising and
executing necessary documents, including contract(s), scheme(s), agreement(s) and such
other documents, file applications and make representations in respect thereof and seek
approval from relevant authorities, including Governmental/regulatory authorities, as
applicable, in this regard and deal with any matters, take necessary steps as the Board may,
in its absolute discretion deem necessary, desirable or expedient, to give effect to this
resolution and to settle any question that may arise in this regard and incidental thereto,
without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the Shareholders or
otherwise to the end and intent that the Shareholders shall be deemed to have given their
approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or
any of the powers herein conferred to any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer or
Company Secretary or any other Officer(s) / Authorised Representative(s) of the Company,
to do all such acts and take such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to
give effect to the aforesaid resolution(s).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board, or any person so
authorized by the Board, in connection with any matter referred to or contemplated in any
of the foregoing resolutions, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all
respects.”

To approve investments, loans, Guarantees and security in excess limits specified in
under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013

To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:




“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or amendments
thereto or re-enactments thereof) and in terms of Articles of Association of the Company,
the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include
any Committee thereof which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute to
exercise its powers including the powers conferred by the Resolution) to give any loan(s)
to any other body corporate or person and/or give any guarantee(s) or provide any
security(ies) in connection with any loan(s) to any other body corporate or person and/ or
to make any investments or acquisition by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the
securities (including equity shares, preference shares, debentures, or any other kind of
instruments, whether convertible or not) of other body corporate, whether in India or
outside India, as may be considered appropriate, beneficial and in the interest of the
Company, provided that the aggregate of the loans and investments so far made in and the
amount or which guarantees or securities have so far been provided to all persons or bodies
corporate along with the additional investments, loans, guarantees or securities proposed
to be made or given or provided by the Company, from time to time, in future, shall not
exceed a sum of Rs. 40,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Crore Only) over and above the limits
available to the Company as prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to delegate all or any of the powers conferred on it by or under the aforesaid
resolution to any Director or to the Company Secretary, as it may consider appropriate in
order to give effect to the resolution.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining necessary approvals -
statutory, contractual or otherwise, in relation to the above and to settle all matters arising
out of and incidental thereto and to sign and execute deeds, applications, documents and
writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company, including filing of necessary
forms and returns with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and other concerned Authorities
and generally to do all such other acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary,
proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to the resolution.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sd/-
KAUSHIK KUMAR
COMPANY SECRETARY
Date: 29.08.2023 Place: Bangalore
CIN: L52520KA1989PLC173979
Regd. Office: Unit 201, 2nd Floor, Brigade Rubix, 20/14 HMT Factory Main Road, Peenya
Plantation Bangalore, Karnataka - 560013




NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), in respect of the Special Business and the details as
required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations') entered with the Stock
Exchanges and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) in respect of the Directors
seeking appointment / re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.

2. In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Mini Manikantan (DIN:
09663184) retires by rotation at the Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment. The Nominationand Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of
the Company recommends her re-appointment.

3. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its Circular dated January 13, 2020
read with the Circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020 and December 28,
2022 (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars") and SEBI vide its Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI1/CIR/P/2020/79  dated May 12, 2020, Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 (collectively referred to as
"SEBI Circulars"), permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM") through
VC, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. Hence, in
compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the 34" AGM of the Company is
being heldthrough VC / OAVM on Friday, September 22, 2023 at 12:30 P.M. (IST).

In compliance of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 and further to the aforesaid
MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, notice of the 34" AGM along with the Annual
Report 2022-23 is being sent onlythrough electronic mode to the Members whose e-
mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories. Members may note
that the Notice and the Annual Report 2022-23 will also be available on the Company's
Website: http:/www.pharmaids.com/ Website of the Stock Exchange i.e., BSE
Limited: https://www.bseindia.com and on the Website of CDSL:
https://www.evotingindia.com

4. Green Initiative: To support the Green Initiative, Members who have not registered their e-
mail address are requested to register their e-mail address for receiving all the
communications including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars etc. from the Company
electronically.

5. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend
and vote on his / her behalf and the Proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this
AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars through VC/ OAVM,
physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for
appointment of Proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the
Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map are not annexed to this Notice.

6. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to
attend and vote at the AGM through VC / OAVM. Corporate Members intending to authorise
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their Representatives to participate and vote at the AGM are requested to upload a copy of the
Board Resolution / Authorisation Letter on the E-Voting Portal or send to the Company at
compliance@pharmaids.com with a copy marked to kaushik@pharmaids.com.

7. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning theQuorum under Section 103 of the Act. As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, as amended, Securities of Listed Entities can be transferred only in
Dematerialised form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of transmission or
transposition of Securities. In view of this, Members holding Shares in Physical Form are
requested to consider converting their holdings to Dematerialised form. Members can
contact M/s Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited, Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents of the Company, ("RTA" or "Registrar") situated at AURUM”, 4" & 5
Floors, Plot No.57, Jayabheri Enclave Phase — II, Gachibowli, Hyderabad 500032, email:
investor.relations@vccipl.com website of the Registrar: https://www.vccipl.com/index.html
for assistance in this regard.

8. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their Name, Postal Address,
E-mail Address, Telephone / Mobile Numbers, Permanent Account Number, Mandates,
Nominations, Power of Attorney, Bank Details viz., Name of the Bank, Branch Details,
Bank Account Number, MICR Code, IFSC Code etc., to their Depository Participants
("DPs") in case the Shares are held in Electronic Form and Registrar / RTA in case the Shares
are held in Physical Form.

a. Registration of E-mail for Shareholders holding Physical Shares: Members holding
Shares in Physical Form and who have not registered their E-mail addresses may get
their E-mail addresses registered with the Registrar, by referring to their website:
https://www.vccipl.com/index.html and follow the Registration Process as guided
therein. Members are requested to provide details suchas Name, Folio Number,
Certificate Number, PAN, Mobile Number and E-mail and also upload the image of
Share Certificate in PDF or JPEG format. On submission of the details, an OTP willbe
received by the Member which needs to be entered in the link for verification.

For Permanent Registration for Demat Shareholders: It is clarified that for permanent
registration of E-mail address,Members are requested to register their E-mail address, in
respect of Demat holdings with the respective Depository Participant (DP) by follow
the procedure as prescribed by the Depository Participant.

b. For Temporary Registration for Demat Shareholders: Members holding Shares in
Physical Form and who have not registered their E-mail addresses may get their E-mail
addresses registered with the Registrar, by referring to their website:
https://www.vccipl.com/index.html and follow the Registration Process as guided
therein. Members are requested to provide details such as Name, Folio Number,
Certificate Number, PAN, Mobile Number and E-mail.

c. Registration of Bank Details for Physical Shareholders: Members holding Shares in
Physical Form and who have not registered their Bank details can get the same
registered with the Registrar, by clicking the https://www.vccipl.com/index.html and
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follow the registration process as guided therein.Members are requested to provide details
such as Name, Folio Number, Share Certificate Number, PAN, E-mail, along with the
copy of the Cheque Leaf with the First named Member as mentioned on the Cheque Leaf
containing Bank Name and Branch, Type of Account, Bank Account Number, MICR
Details and IFSC code in PDF or JPEG format. It is very important that the Member
should submit the request letter duly signed. The Registrar will verify the documents
upload and will only take on records for all valid cases. On submission of the details, an
OTP will be received by the Member which needs to be entered in the link for
verification.

9. Nomination: Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, Members holding Shares
in Physical Form are advised to file Nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the
Company's Share Transfer Agent. In respect of the Shares held in Dematerialised form,
Members may please contact their respective Depository Participant.

10. Consolidation of Physical Share Certificates: Members holding Shares in Physical Form,
in identical order of Names, in more than One Folio are requested to send to the Company or
Registrar, the details of such Folios together with the Share Certificates for consolidating
their holdings in One Folio. A Consolidated Share Certificate will be issued to such
Members after making requisite changes.

11. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, theCompany has provided a facility to its Members to cast their vote
electronically, through the E-Votingservices provided by Central Depository Services (India)
Limited ("CDSL") on all the Resolutions setforth in this Notice. Members who have cast
their Votes by remote E-Voting prior to the AGM may also participate in the AGM through
VC but shall not be entitled to cast their Vote on such Resolutions again. The manner and
process of E-Voting remotely by Members is provided in the instructions for E-Voting which
forms part of this Notice.

12. A Person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial
Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the Cut-off Date for dispatch of Notice and
Annual Report i.e., August 30,2023, will only be entitled for receipt of Annual Report.

13. The Voting Rights of the Shareholders for voting through remote E-Voting at the AGM
shall be in proportion to their share of the Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the
Company as on Friday, September 15, 2023 ('Cut-Off Date'). A Person whose name is
recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners
maintained by the Depositories as on the Cut-off Date, only shall be entitled to avail
the facility of remote E-Voting or of voting at the AGM and who is not a Member as on
the Cut-off Date shall treat this Notice for information purposes only.

14. The Remote E-Voting Period will commence on Tuesday, September 19, 2023 (IST
09:00 A.M.) and will end on Thursday, September 21, 2023 (IST 05:00 P.M.). During
this period, Members of the Company, holding Shares either in Physical Form or in
Dematerialised form, as on the Cut-off Date i.e., on Friday, September 15, 2023 ('Cut-
Off Date') shall be entitled to cast their vote by remote E-Voting. Once the Vote on a
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

The facility for Voting during the AGM will also be made available. Members present in the
AGM through VC and who have not cast their Vote on the Resolutions through remote E-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to Vote through E-Voting
system during the AGM.

Any person who becomes a Member of the Company after sending the Notice and holding
Shares as on the Cut-off date (September 15, 2023) may obtain the Login-id and Password
by sending a request athelpdesk.evoting(@cdslindia.com. However, if a Member is already
registered with CDSL for remote E- Voting then he / she can use his / her existing User-id
and Password for casting the Vote.

In case of Joint holders, the Joint holder who is higher in the order of Names, will be entitled
to vote atthe Meeting, if not already voted through remote E-Voting.

Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at
the AGM, are requested to write to the Company mentioning their Name, Demat Account
Number / Folio Number, E- mail, Mobile Number at compliance@pharmaids.com or
kaushik@pharmaids.com on or before September 15, 2023. The same will be replied by the
Company suitably.

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Kashinath Sahu, Practicing Company Secretary
(Membership No. FCS 4790, COP No. 4807), Hyderabad as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the
remote E-Voting Processand voting during the AGM, in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall immediately, after the conclusion of E-Voting at the AGM, first count
the Votes Cast during the AGM, thereafter, unblock the Votes Cast through remote E-Voting
and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's
Report of the Total Votes Cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersignthe same. The Results declared along with
the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Website of the Company and on the Website
of CDSL immediately. The results will also be communicated to BSE Limited, where the
Shares of the Company are listed.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise Due Diligence and
notify the Company of any change in address or Demise of any Member as soon as possible.
Members are also advised not to leave their Demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic
Statement of Holdings should be obtained from the concerned DPs and Holdings should be
verified from time to time.

Instructions for attending the AGM through VC / OAVM:

. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM
through the CDSL E-Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at
https://www.evotingindia.com under Shareholders / Members login by using the remote
E-Voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder /
Members login where the EVSN of the Company is displayed.
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ii. Members may join the Meeting through Laptops, Smartphones, Tablets and I-Pads for
better experience. Further, Members will be required to use Internet with a good speed
to avoid any disturbance during the Meeting. Please note that participants connecting
from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via mobile hotspot may
experience Audio/Video loss due tofluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any glitches.

iii. Shareholders who would like to express their views / ask questions during the Meeting
may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance prior to the
Meeting Date latest by September 15, 2023 from their registered E-mail address
mentioning their names, DP-ID and Client-ID / Folio Number, PAN and Mobile Number
at compliance@pharmaids.com Only those Members who have pre-registered

themselves as a speaker will be allowed to express their views / ask questions during
the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending
on the availability of time for the AGM.

iv. Members are encouraged to submit their questions in advance with regard to the Financial
Statementsor any other matter to be placed at the 34" AGM, from their registered E-mail
address, mentioningtheir Name, DP-ID and Client-ID Number / Folio Number and
Mobile Number, to reach the Company's E-mail address at compliance(@pharmaids.com
before 5:00 P.M. (IST) on Friday, September 15, 2023. Such questions by the Members
shall be suitably replied by the Company.

v. Those Shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed
to expresstheir views/ask questions during the Meeting.

vi. If any votes are cast by the Shareholders through the E-Voting available during the
AGM and if thesame Shareholders have not participated in the Meeting through
VC / OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such Shareholders shall be considered
as invalid, as the facility of E-Voting duringthe Meeting is available only to the
Shareholders attending the Meeting.

23. Subject to the receipt of Requisite number of Votes, the Resolutions forming part of the
AGM Noticeshall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM.

Voting through Electronic Means:

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 read with the Companies
(Managementand Administration) Rules, 2014 read with amendments or re-enactments made
thereunder and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company ispleased to provide the facility to exercise
Members' Right to Vote at the 34" Annual General Meeting(AGM) by electronic means
and the business may be transacted through E-Voting Services provided by Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

The Members attending the Meeting, who have not already cast their vote through Remote
E-Voting shall be able to exercise their Voting Rights at the Meeting. The Members who
have already cast theirvote through Remote E-Voting may attend the Meeting but shall not
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be entitled to cast their vote again at the AGM.
24. The instructions for Shareholders for Voting Electronically are as under:

(i) The Voting Period commences on Tuesday, September 19, 2023 (IST 09:00 A.M.) and
closes on Thursday, September 21, 2023 (IST 05:00 P.M.) during this period, the
Shareholders of the Company, holding Shares either in Physical Form or in
Dematerialized Form, as on the Cut-off Date (Record Date), Friday September 15, 2023
may cast their vote electronically. The E- Voting Module shall be disabled by CDSL for
Voting thereafter.

(i) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the Meeting Date would not be entitled
to vote at the Meeting.

Login method for E-Voting and Joining Virtual Meetings for Individual Shareholders
holding Securities in Demat Mode:

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020
on "E- Voting Facility provided by Listed Companies", Individual Shareholders holding
Securities in Demat modeare allowed to cast their vote through their Demat Account maintained
with the Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their
Mobile Number and E-mail in their Demat Accounts in order to access the E-Voting Facility.
Pursuant to the above said SEBI Circular, Login method for E- Voting and joining Virtual
Meetings for Individual Shareholders holding Securities in Demat mode CDSL /NSDL is given
below:

Type of Login Method
Shareholders
Individual Shareholders 1. Users who have opted for CDSL EASI/ EASIEST facility, can
Holding Securities in login through their existing User-id and Password. The option
Demat Mode with CDSL will be made available to reach E-Voting page without any
further authentication. The URL for Users to login to EASI /
EASIEST are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or

visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select
New System MYEASI.

2. After successful login to the EASI/ EASIEST User will be able
to see the E-Voting option for eligible Companies where the E-
Voting is in progress as per the information provided by
Company. On clicking the E-Voting option, the User will be
able to see the E-Voting page of the E-Voting Service Provider
for casting your Vote during the remote E-Voting period or

joining Virtual Meeting and Voting during the Meeting.
Additionally, there are also links provided to access the system
of all E-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL / NSDL /
LINKINTIME etc., so that the User can visit the E-Voting
Service Providers website directly.

3. If the User is not registered for EASI / EASIEST, option to
register is  available at the following link:
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web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the User can directly access E-Voting Page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN on E-Voting link
available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the User by sending OTP on the Registered Mobile
and E-mail as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful

authentication, the User will be able to see the E-Voting option
where the E-Voting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all the E-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders
Holding Securities in
Demat Mode with NSDL

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please
visit the E-services website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https:// eservices.nsdl.com either on
a Personal Computer or on a Mobile. Once the Homepage of E-
services 1s launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under
"Login" which is available under TDeAS' Section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User-id and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see E-
Voting Services. Click on "Access to E-Voting" under E-Voting
Services and you will be able to see the E-Voting page. Click
on Company name or E- Voting Service Provider name and you
will be re-directed to E-Voting Service Provider website for
casting your vote during the remote E-Voting period or joining
Virtual Meeting and Voting during the Meeting.

2. If the User is not registered for IDeAS E-services, option to
register is available at https:/eservices.nsdl.com/ Select
"Register Online for “IDeAS" Portal or Click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the E-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
homepage of E-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
"Login" which 1is available under 'Shareholder/Member'
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your

User-id (i.e., your sixteen digit Demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository Site wherein you can see E-
Voting page. Click on Company name or E-Voting Service
Provider name and you will be redirected to E-Voting Service
Provider Website for casting your Vote during the remote E-
Voting period or joining Virtual Meeting and Voting during the
Meeting.

Individual Shareholders
Holding Securities in
Demat Mode Login
through their Depository

You can also login using the login credentials of your Demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
E-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see E-
Voting option. Once you click on E-Voting option, you will be
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Participants redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful

authentication, wherein you can see E-Voting feature. Click on
Company Name or E-Voting Service Provider name and you will be
redirected to E-Voting Service Provider Website for casting your
vote during the remote E-Voting period or joining Virtual Meeting and
voting during the Meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User-id/ Password are advised to use Forgot
User-id and Forgot Password option available at above mentioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding Securities in Demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e., CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders Holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
Securities in Demat Mode CDSL Helpdeskby sending a request at the following e-
with CDSL mail: helpdesk.evoting(@cdslindia.com or Contact at 022 -
23058738/ 022-23058542—43
Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
HoldingSecurities in Demat NSDL Helpdeskby sending a request at evoting(@nsdl.co.in
Mode withNSDL or Call at Toll Free No. 1800 1020 990 and 180022 44 30

Login method for E-Voting for Physical Shareholders and Shareholders other than

Individuals holding in the Demat Form

a.
b.
C.

The Shareholders should log on to the E-Voting Website: www.evotingindia.com
Click on “SHAREHOLDERS” Module.
Now enter your User-id
i.  For CDSL: 16 Digits Beneficiary ID
1. For NSDL: 8 Character DP-ID followed by 8 Digits Client-ID
iii. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered
with the Company.
Next enter the ‘Image Verification’ as displayed and Click on Login.
If you are holding Shares in Demat form and had logged on and had voted on an earlier E-
Voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.
If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical Shareholders and other than Individual Shareholders holding Shares in
Demat Form
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PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha—numeric PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both Demat Shareholders as well as
Physical Shareholders)Shareholders who have not updated their
PAN with the Company / DepositoryParticipant are requested to
use the sequence number sent by Company / RTA or contact

Company / RTA
Dividend Bank Details Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in
or Date of Birth dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your Demat Account or in
(DOB) the Company Records in order tologin. If both the details are not

recorded with the Depository or Company, please enter the
Member-id / Folio Number in the ‘Dividend Bank Details’field.

—

After entering these details appropriately, click on ‘SUBMIT” tab.

Shareholders holding Shares in Physical Form will then directly reach the Company selection

screen. However, Shareholders holding Shares in Demat form will now reach ‘Password

Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the

‘New Password’ field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the Demat Holders

for Voting for Resolutions of any other Companyon which they are eligible to vote, provided

that the Company opts for E-Voting through CDSL Platform. It is strongly recommended not

to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password

confidential.

For Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form, the details can be used only for E-Voting on the

Resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN of the relevant Company (‘Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited’) on which

you choose to vote.

On the Voting Page, you will see ‘RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION’ and against the same the

option ‘YES/NO’ for Voting. Select the option ‘YES’ or ‘NO’ as desired. The option ‘YES’

implies that you assent to the Resolution and option ‘NO’ implies that you dissent to the

Resolution.

Click on the ‘RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
. After selecting the Resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on ‘SUBMIT’. A

Confirmation Box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘OK’, else to

change your vote, click on ‘CANCEL’ and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you ‘CONFIRM’ your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to moditfy your

Vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on ‘Click here to Print’ option on the

Voting Page.

If a Demat Account Holder has forgotten the login password, then enter the User-id and the

‘Image Verification Code’ and click on Forgot Password and enter the details as prompted by

the system.
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Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians — For Remote

Voting:

Non — Individual Shareholders (i.e., Other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians
are required tolog on to the website: www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the
‘CORPORATES’ Module.

A Scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the Stamp and Sign of the Entity should
be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

After receiving the login details, a Compliance User should be created using the Admin login
and Password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they
wish to vote on.

The List of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A Scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system
for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

Alternatively Non — Individual Shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution/AuthorityLetter etc. together with the Attested Specimen Signature of the Duly
Authorized Signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at
the E-mail address: compliance(@oharmaids.comif they have voted from individual tab and
not uploaded same in the CDSL E-Voting System for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

If you have any queries or issues regarding E-Voting from the CDSL E-Voting System,
you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022 —
23058738 and 022 — 23058542 / 43

All grievances connected with the facility for Voting by electronic means may be
addressed to Shri Rakesh Dalvi, Sr Manager, Central Depository Services (India)

Limited (CDSL), Wing — A, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai — 400013 or send an E-
mail to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022 —23058542 / 43.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Sd/-

KAUSHIK KUMAR

COMPANY SECRETARY

Date: 29.08.2023

Place: Bangalore

CIN: L52520KA1989PLC173979

Regd. Office: Unit 201, 2nd Floor, Brigade Rubix,
20/14 HMT Factory Main Road, Peenya Plantation
Bangalore, Karnataka - 560013
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ANNEXURE TO AND FORMING PART OF THE NOTICE CONVENING THE
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 3: Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company for a consecutive term of
five years

This Explanatory Statement is in terms of Regulation 36(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing
Regulations”), though statutorily not required in terms of Section 102 of the Act.

The Members at the 29™ Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Company held on Friday 28
September 2018, had approved appointment of M/s. PPKG & Company, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 009655S), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from
the conclusion of the 29" AGM till the conclusion of the 34" AGM of the Company. After
evaluating and considering various factors such as industry experience, competency of the audit
team, efficiency in conduct of audit, independence, etc., the Board of Directors of the Company
(“Board”) has, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, proposed the re-
appointment of M/s. PPKG & Company, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, for the second consecutive term of five years from the conclusion of 34™ AGM till the
conclusion of 39™ AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2028.

M/s. PPKG & Company, Chartered Accountants have consented to their re-appointment as the
Statutory Auditors and have confirmed that the appointment, if made, would be within the limits
specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the Act and that they are not disqualified to be appointed as
the Statutory Auditors in terms of the provisions of Section 139 and 141 of the Act and the Rules
framed thereunder. M/s. PPKG & Company, Chartered Accountants was paid a fee of Rs.
1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) for the audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2023 plus applicable taxes. The Board, based on the fees
proposal received from M/s. PPKG & Company, Chartered Accountants and on the
recommendations of the Audit Committee, has agreed at an Annual Fess of Rs. 2,00,000/- (Rupees
Two Lakh Only) exclusive of Taxes, if any and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred
by them on actual basis. The Board, in consultation with the Audit Committee, may alter and vary
the terms and conditions of re-appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such
extent as may be mutually agreed with the Statutory Auditors.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution at Item No. 3 of the
accompanying Notice.

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board recommends the Ordinary
Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the members.
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Item No. 4: Appointment of Mr. Shreedhara Shetty (DIN: 02776638) as a Non-Executive
Non- Independent Director

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
appointed Mr. Shreedhara Shetty (DIN: 02776638) as an Additional Director under Non-
Independent Director (Non-Executive Category) on 29.08.2023. The Company has also received
a notice in writing from a Member proposing the candidature of Mr. Shreedhara Shetty (DIN:
02776638) to be appointed as a Non-Executive Non- Independent Director of the Company.

The Board believes that Mr. Shreedhara Shetty's extensive experience, expertise, and background
in the business and industry will be instrumental in contributing to the strategic direction and
growth of the Company. His professional achievements and leadership track record, as outlined in
his profile provided herewith, demonstrate his capability to provide valuable insights and guidance
to the Board.

Mr. Shreedhara Shetty's appointment is subject to the Shareholders approval at the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the Company. Brief Profile of Mr. Shreedhara Shetty is provided below:

Brief Profile of Mr. Shreedhara Shetty:

Mr. Shreedhara Shetty is a seasoned professional with 27 years of global experience in various
leadership roles. Throughout his career, he has demonstrated expertise in customer-facing sales
leadership, multicultural team management, mergers and acquisitions, and building strategic
relationships with leading clients. Given below is a brief profile highlighting his key
accomplishments and career milestones:

Educational Qualification Post Graduate Diploma in Industrial Engineering
(PGDIE) from the [Indian Institute of
Management Mumbai, Bachelor of Engineering
(BE) in Metallurgical Engineering from the
Indian Institute of Science (I1SC), and Bachelor
of Science with majors in Physics, Mathematics,
and Chemistry from the University of Mysore.

Professional Background Mr. Shreedhara Shetty spent a significant part of
his career at Wipro Technologies, where he
worked from 1990 to 2009. He began his journey
at Wipro as an Associate Consultant and steadily
climbed the corporate ladder, holding positions
such as project manager, regional manager based
in Chicago and Milwaukee, and Senior VP in the
UK. In his role as Senior VP, he played a pivotal
role in growing the telecom business tenfold in
six years, from $39 million to around $400
million.
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Leadership Achievements

Mr. Shreedhara Shetty successfully built and led
multicultural sales teams across the United
States, Japan, Europe, and India. He played a key
role in managing mergers and acquisitions,
taking responsibility for integrating acquired
entities in the US, Europe, and India. He
developed strategic relationships with leading
global clients and led hunting teams selling IT
Services, Telecom & Product Engineering
Services, BPO, and KPO services. His leadership
contributions extended to managing business
operations and launching new ventures.

Entrepreneurship and Consulting

Since 2013, Mr. Shreedhara Shetty has been
nurturing his passion for entrepreneurship
through his organization, Religent Global.
Religent Global focuses on creating predictable
outcomes and derisking strategies for enterprises
in an increasingly disruptive world. He also
consults and advises international MNCs looking
to expand their presence in India and vice versa,
helping Indian startups go global and target
international markets.

Mentorship and Speaking
Engagements

Currently, Mr. Shreedhara Shetty serves as a
coach and mentor to startup founders in various
domains, including entrepreneurship, product
marketing, sales management, investments, and
bootstrapping. He sits on the boards of several
technology startups, guiding budding
entrepreneurs in scaling their businesses. He is a
sought-after speaker at industry conclaves,
startup events, and business summits, where he
shares his knowledge and insights as an
entrepreneur and global sales and marketing
leader.

Overall, Mr. Shreedhara Shetty's extensive experience, leadership acumen, and commitment to
mentoring and entrepreneurship make him a notable figure in the business world. His journey from
Wipro to founding Religent Global reflects his dedication to creating a difference in the ever-

evolving business landscape.

Considering the vast experience he possesses, the Board considers that having him on Board would
be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to appoint Mr. Shreedhara Shetty (DIN:

02776638) as Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company.
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Mr. Shreedhara Shetty (DIN: 02776638) is not disqualified from being appointed as Directors in
terms of Section 164 of the Act and has consented to act as Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, he is a person of integrity and possesses
relevant expertise and experience. Further, he fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the
LODR Regulations for appointment as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and he is not
debarred from accessing the capital markets and/or restrained from holding position of directors
in any listed company.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read
with the applicable rules made thereunder and applicable provisions of LODR Regulations, the
appointment of Mr. Shreedhara Shetty (DIN: 02776638) as a Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director with effect from 29.08.2023 is now being placed before the Members for their approval
as a special resolution.

The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 4 of this Notice for approval of the Members.

The letter of appointment of Mr. Shreedhara Shetty (DIN: 02776638) setting out the terms and
conditions of appointment is being made available for inspection by the Members through
electronic mode. Additional information in respect of Mr. Shreedhara Shetty (DIN: 02776638),
pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2), is given at Annexure
A to this Notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives is concerned or
interested in the Resolution at Item No. 4 of the Notice.

Preamble to item No. 5 & 6 — Approval of Material Related Party Transaction

Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
(‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), as amended vide SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2021, effective from April 1, 2022, states that all
Material Related Party Transaction with an aggregate value exceeding 1,000 crore or 10% of
annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower, shall require approval of shareholders by means of an Ordinary
Resolution. The said limits are applicable even if the transactions are in the ordinary course of
business of the concerned company and at an arm’s length basis. The amended Regulation 2(1)
(zc) of the SEBI Listing Regulations has also enhanced the definition of related party transaction
which now includes a transaction involving a transfer of resources, services or obligations between
a listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand and a related party of the listed entity or any
of its subsidiaries on the other hand, regardless of whether a price is charged or not.

Since the quantum of transactions to be entered with all the related parties mentioned in the item
No.5 & 6, exceeds 10% of the annual consolidated turnover based on March 31, 2023 financials
of the Company, the Material Related Party Transactions requires approval of the Shareholders by
an Ordinary Resolution and in respect of voting on such resolution(s), all the related parties shall
abstain from voting, irrespective of whether the entity or person is a party to the particular
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transaction or not, pursuant to Regulation 23(7) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In furtherance of its business activities, the Company have entered into / will enter into transactions
/ contract(s) / agreement(s) / arrangement(s) with its related parties in terms of Regulation 2(1)
(zc)(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI Listing Regulations™).

All related party transactions of the Company are at arm’s length. Further, all related party
transactions are undertaken after obtaining prior approval of the Audit Committee. All related party
transactions have been approved by the Audit Committee after satisfying itself that the related party
transactions are at arm’s length. The Audit Committee of the Company reviews on a quarterly
basis, the details of all related party transactions entered into by the Company during the previous
quarter, pursuant to its approvals. It is in the above context that Resolutions Nos. 5 to 6 are placed
for the approval of the Shareholders of the Company.

Item No. 5: To approve Material Related Party Transaction limits with Anugraha Chemicals

(“The firm”)

Anugraha Chemicals, a Partnership Firm, registered under the Karnataka Partnership (Registration
of firms), Rules, 1954, was established in 1991 and has a rich experience of over two and half
decades in the pharmaceutical industry. Anugraha Chemicals are engaged in Contract
Manufacturing and Manufacturing of APIs, Intermediaries and Fine Chemicals.

The Board at its meeting held on January 17, 2023, approved the investment in the Firm by
acquiring 51% stake in multiple tranches. In this regard the Company vide its investment through
different tranches has acquired 36.17% of partnership interest out of the said proposed investment
of 51% till date. With the aforementioned investment taken into consideration, the firm is an
Associate of the Company as per INDAS and considered as Related Party of the Company as
defined under Section 2 (76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under applicable accounting
standards.

Considering the nature of business of your Company and the relevance of the transactions in the
business, your Company works closely with Anugraha Chemicals to achieve its objective of GMP
Manufacturing on the other hand it will help the Firm to reach out the larger market and acquire
large customer base. The transactions are of continuous in nature and are at an arm’s length.
Further, the Company and Anugraha Chemicals, being part of the Pharmaceuticals Industry, these
transactions not only help smoothen business operations for both, but also ensure consistent flow
and generation of revenue and business for the company to cater to their business requirements.

The Management has provided the Audit Committee with the relevant details, as required under
law, for the proposed RPT including material terms and basis of pricing. The Audit Committee,
after reviewing all necessary information, has granted approval for entering into Related Party
Transaction with Anugraha Chemicals for an aggregate value of up to Rs. 15,00,00,000/- (Fifteen
Crore Only) to be entered for the financial year 2023-2024.
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Based on the information on the proposed transactions, the Audit Committee has noted that the
said transactions will be on an arms’ length basis. Accordingly, the Audit Committee has approved
entering into the said transactions and the Board of the Company has reviewed and recommended
that the approval of the Shareholders be also sought for the resolution contained at Item No.5
herein. The Board, therefore, recommends the passing of the Ordinary Resolution at Item No.5 of
the Notice, for the approval of the Shareholders.

Details of the proposed transactions with Anugraha Chemicals, being a related party of the
Company and the summary of information provided by the Management to the Audit Committee,
are as follows:

Information pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated
November 22, 2021

S. No. Description Details

1 Name of the related party and its | As per regulation 2(ZB) of SEBI (Listing
relationship with the listed entity or its | Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
subsidiary, including nature of its | 2015, Anugraha Chemicals (“the firm”) is an
concern or interest (financial or | Associate of Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals

otherwise) Limited as per IND AS 24.
Hence, the company and the Firm are related
parties.
2 Name of the director or key managerial | None of the Directors and Key Managerial

personnel who is related, if any and | Personnel of the Company or their respective
nature of relationship relatives are concerned or interested financially
or otherwise in the Item No. 5 of the Notice.

3 Type, material terms and particulars of |  Purchase or sale of goods and rendering and
/ or availing of the Services for business
purpose at arm length and in ordinary course
of business.

the proposed transactions.

e Any transfer of resources, services or
obligations to meet its
objectives/requirements.

4 Nature, duration/tenure, material terms, | Transactions in the normal course of business

monetary value and particulars of | with terms and conditions that are generally
contract/arrangement prevalent in the industry segments that the
company is operating in.

Monetary value of transactions up to a
maximum of Rs. 15,00,00,000/- (Fifteen Crores
Only) for the financial year 2023-2024 through
purchase or sale of goods and rendering and / or
availing of the Services for business purpose at
arm length and in ordinary course of business
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and transfer of resources, services or obligations
to meet objectives/requirements.

5 Tenure of the transaction Financial Year 2023-24

6 Value of the transaction Rs. 15,00,00,000/- (Fifteen Crore Only)

7 Percentage of Pharmaids annual | The annual consolidate turnover as on March
consolidated ~ turnover,  for  the | 31, 2023, stood at NIL and hence the
immediately preceding financial year, | ,ercentage of consolidated turnover represented
that is represented by the value of the S

. by the value of the proposed transaction is NIL.
proposed transaction.
(and for a RPT involving a subsidiary,
such percentage calculated on the basis of
the subsidiary’s annual turnover on a
standalone basis shall be additionally
provided)

8 Justification for the transaction For the purpose of achieving the business
objectives and continuity in operations and to
smoothen business operations for both the
Parties. Purchase or sale of goods and rendering
and / or availing of the Services for business for
both the parties in ordinary course of business.

9 Details of the valuation report or external | The transactions do not contemplate any
party report (if any) if any such report has | valuation.
been relied upon;

10 Details of transaction relating to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary:

A Details of the source of funds in | From the existing available funds in the
connection with the proposed transaction | Company or/ and further issuance of Specified

Securities.

B In case any financial indebtedness is | Not Applicable
incurred to make or give loans,
intercorporate deposits, advances or
investment:

e Nature of indebtedness
e cost of funds
e Tenure
C Terms of the loan, inter-corporate | To be determined on case-to-case basis

deposits, advances or investment made or
given (including covenants, tenure,
interest rate and repayment schedule,
whether secured or unsecured; if secured,
the nature of security)
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D the purpose for which the funds will be | Not Applicable
utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of
such funds pursuant to the RPT

11 Any other relevant information e The transactions are proposed to be entered
for the purpose of achieving the business
objectives and continuity in operations.

e All these transactions will be executed on an
arm’s length basis.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the company/ their relatives are in any way

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the

notice.

The Directors recommend the resolution for approval by the members.

Item No. 6: To approve availing shareholders loan from Mr. Shankarappa Nagaraja Vinava
Babu, shareholder of the company which will be considered as material related party
transaction

Pursuant to the amended Regulation 2(1) (zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations has broadened the
scope of the Related Party definition which now includes any person or any entity, holding equity
shares of ten per cent or more, effective from April 1, 2023. Consequently, our company's
shareholder, Mr. Shankarappa Nagaraja Vinaya Babu, with a 24.20% equity ownership, thereby
qualifying as a Related Party under the aforementioned criteria.

In addition to the approval sought in item no. 6 above, the Company is proposing to avail loan
from Mr. Shankarappa Nagaraja Vinaya Babu who holds 24.20% equity shares of the Company.
The said transaction would be considered as Material Related Party Transaction in terms of the
provisions of regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

As per the provisions of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, a company can accept Loan from its members not
exceeding 35% of the Paid-up Share Capital, Free Reserves and Securities Premium.

The Management has provided the Audit Committee with the relevant details, as required under
law, for the proposed RPT including material terms and basis of pricing. The Audit Committee,
after reviewing all necessary information, has granted approval for entering into Related Party
Transaction with Mr. Shankarappa Nagaraja Vinaya Babu for an aggregate value of up to Rs.
7,50,00,000/- (Seven Crore Fifty Lakh Only) to be entered for the financial year 2023-2024.

Based on the information on the proposed transactions, the Audit Committee has noted that the
said transactions will be on an arms’ length basis of the Company. Accordingly, the Audit
Committee has approved entering into the said transactions and the Board of the Company has
reviewed and recommended the same for the approval of the Shareholders The Board, therefore,
recommends the passing of the Ordinary Resolution at Item No.7 of the Notice, for the approval
of the Shareholders.
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Details of the proposed transactions with Mr. Shankarappa Nagaraja Vinaya Babu, being a related
party of the Company and the summary of information provided by the Management to the Audit

Committee, are as follows:

Information pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated

November 22, 2021.

consolidated turnover, for the immediately
preceding financial year, that is
represented by the value of the proposed
transaction.

S. No. Description Details

1 Name of the related party and its | Mr. Shankarappa Nagaraja Vinaya Babu,
relationship with the listed entity or its | with a 24.20% equity ownership, thereby
subsidiary, including nature of its concern | qualifying as a Related Party under
or interest (financial or otherwise) Regulation 2(1) (zb) the SEBI Listing

Regulations.
Hence, the Company and Mr. Shankarappa
Nagaraja Vinaya Babu are related parties.

2 Name of the director or key managerial | None of the Directors and Key Managerial
personnel who is related, if any and nature | Personnel of the Company or their
of relationship respective relatives are concerned or

interested financially or otherwise in the
Item No.6 of the Notice.

3 Type material terms and particulars of the | Any transfer of resources, services or
proposed transactions. obligations to meet its

objectives/requirements.

4 Nature, duration/tenure, material terms, | Transactions in the normal course of
monetary value and particulars of | business with terms and conditions that are
contract/arrangement generally prevalent in the industry segments

that the company is operating in.

Monetary value of transactions up to a
maximum of Rs. 7,50,00,000/- (Seven Crore
Fifty Lakh Only) for the financial year 2023-
2024 through transfer of resources, services
or obligations to meet
objectives/requirements.

5 Tenure of the transaction For the financial year 2023-2024.

6 Value of the transaction Rs. 7,50,00,000/- (Seven Crore Fifty Lakh

Only)
7 Percentage = of  Pharmaids  annual | The annual consolidate turnover of the

company as on 31 March 2022, stood at
NIL and hence the percentage of
consolidated turnover represented by the
value of the proposed transaction is NIL.
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(and for a RPT involving a subsidiary, such
percentage calculated on the basis of the
subsidiary’s annual turnover on a
standalone basis shall be additionally
provided)
8 Justification for the transaction For the purpose of achieving the business
objectives and continuity in operations.
9 Details of the valuation report or external | The transactions do not contemplate any
party report (if any) if any such report has | valuation.
been relied upon;
10 Details of transaction relating to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary:
A Details of the source of funds in connection | Not Applicable
with the proposed transaction
B In case any financial indebtedness is | Not Applicable
incurred to make or give loans,
intercorporate  deposits, advances or
investment:
Nature of indebtedness
cost of funds and
tenure
C Terms of the loan, inter-corporate deposits, | To be determined on case-to-case basis
advances or investment made or given
(including covenants, tenure, interest rate
and repayment schedule, whether secured
or unsecured; if secured, the nature of
security)
D the purpose for which the funds will be | Not Applicable
utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the RPT
11 Any other relevant information e The transactions are proposed to be
entered for the purpose of achieving the
business objectives and continuity in
operations.
o All these transactions will be executed on
an arm’s length basis.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the company/ their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the

notice.

The Directors recommend the resolution for approval by the members.
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Item No.7: To approve investments, loans, Guarantees and security in excess limits specified
in under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013

As part of requirement under various Contracts of the company and also to achieve long term
strategic and business objectives, Company proposes to invest in other bodies corporate or grant
loans, give corporate guarantees or provide securities to other persons or other body corporate as
and when required. Pursuant to the provisions of section 186(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made there under, the Company needs to obtain prior approval of shareholders / members by
way of special resolution passed at the General Meeting in case the amount of investment, loan,
guarantee or security proposed to be made is more than sixty percent of the paid up share capital,
free reserves and securities premium account or one hundred percent of free reserves and securities
premium account, whichever is higher.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to seek approval of shareholders
by way of special resolution to authorize the Board to exercise powers for an amount not exceeding
Rs. 40,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Crore Only) outstanding at any time not withstanding that such
investments, outstanding loans given or to be given and guarantees and security provided are in
excess of the limits prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the company/ their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the
notice.

The Directors recommend the resolution for approval by the members.
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‘Annexure — A’ to the Notice

Details of Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting

(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard — 2 on ‘General Meetings’ issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India]

Name of the Director Mini Manikantan Shreedhara Shetty
Director Identification 09663184 02776638
Number (DIN)
Date of Birth 22/11/1984 05/03/1959
Age 37 64
Date of First Appointment / 09/07/2022 29/08/2023

Re-appointment on the Board

Qualifications Master’s in Business, Postgraduate (PGDIE) in
Management, Advance | Industrial Engineering, BE
financial accounting and |in Metallurgical Engineering

Administration and and Bachelor of Science in
human Rights (Physics, Maths &
Chemistry)
Experience 15 Years 27 years
Terms and Conditions of | Appointed as Whole Time | Being appointed as Non-
Appointment Director on the Board, liable| Executive Non-Independent

to retire by rotation and | Director liable to retire by
retiring by rotation at this | rotation w.e.f 29" August

AGM 2023 subject to approval of
the shareholders
Nature of Expertise in Specific Over 15+ years of 27+ years of global
Functional Areas experience in the experience in customer-
Pharmaceutical industry and| facing sales leadership,
has led the Strategic multicultural team
alliance, Porfolio management, mergers and
Management acquisitions, and building

strategic relationships with
leading clients

Remuneration last Drawn |Rs. 16,64,515/- in Financial Nil
Year 2022-23
Number of Meetings of the |She has attended 9 meetings None

Board attended during the |of the Board during the year
Year
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Inter-se Relationship with None None
other Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel
List of Directorship in Listed | None (Not a director in any None
Entities listed Company except
Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals
Limited)
Membership / Chairmanship Nil Nil
of Committees of other Board
(Listed)
Shareholding in Pharmaids Nil 46,50,000 Equity Shares
Pharmaceuticals Limited
Name of listed companies None None

from which the person has
resigned in past 3 years
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear members,

The Board of Directors presents the report of the Business and Operations of your Company
together with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated financial statements for the financial year

ended March 31, 2023.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company’s Standalone and Consolidated Financial results for the year ended March 31, 2023,

1s summarised below:

(All Amounts in INR Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31 March 31
2023 2022 2023 2022
Revenue - 393.93 - 393.93
Other Income - 1.51 - 1.51
Total Income - 395.44 - 395.44
Expenses
a) Cost of Material Consumed - - -
b) Purchase of Stock in Trade - 409.00 - 409.00
¢) Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade,
Work in Progress and Finished Goods 88.76 (51.85) 88.76 (31.85)
d) Employee Benefit Expenses 113.11 4.44 113.11 4.44
e) Finance Cost 0.46 0.27 0.46 0.27
f) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 1.68 0.92 1.68 0.92
g) Other Expenses 786.75 18.63 786.75 18.63
Total Expenses | 990.76 381.41 990.76 | 381.41
Profit/(loss) before Exceptional items and Tax (990.76) 14.03 (990.76) | 14.03
Exceptional Items - - - -
Profit/(loss) before tax (990.76) 14.03 (990.76) | 14.03
Tax expense: - - - -
(1) Current tax - - - -
(2) Deferred tax (235.20) (0.49) (235.20) | (0.49)
Profit .(Loss) for the period from continuing (755.56) 14.52 (755.56) | 14.52
operations
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - - - -
Tax expense of discontinued operations - - - -
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (after i i i i
tax)
Profit/(loss) for the period (755.56) 14.52 (755.56) 14.52
Other Comprehensive Income - - - -
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss i i i i
(i1) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss i i i i
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B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or
loss

(i1) Income tax relating to items that will be
reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other - - (752.08) | 14.52
Comprehensive Income for the period)
Earnings per equity share Basic and Diluted (5.86) 0.14 (5.83) 0.14

Note: The above figures are extracted from the audited standalone and consolidated financial
statements of the Company prepared as per the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

On a Standalone basis, your Company’s revenue from operations stood at Nil in the financial year
2022-23, as against Rs. 393.93 Lakhs in the corresponding previous period. The Board of your
company is hopeful about the better performance in the coming years.

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review the management of the company have taken all the measures to
present true and fair financial position of the company. During the said exercise management
identified certain receivables which were long due. Diligent efforts were made to recover them,
but despite the management’s persuasion, it was determined that the funds could not be recovered.
Consequently, the proposal for creation of provision for write-off, write-back and write-down the
unrecoverable receivables, assets and payables respectively were placed before the Audit
Committee and Board.

Based on the suggestion and assessment of the management, the Audit Committee and Board of
Directors at their respective meetings, decided to create provision for write-off, write-back and
write-down the unrecoverable receivables, assets and payables respectively. As a result of these,
there was a net impact of Rs. 702.27 Lakhs in provision during the current reporting period
financial year ended on March 31, 2023.

Apart from the above, no material changes have occurred after the end of the financial year to
which financial statements relate and till the date of this Report which may impact on the financial
position of the Company. (Standalone).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the company has not recommended any dividend on the equity shares of
the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital of the company as on March 31, 2023 is Rs.30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty
Crores only) divided into 30,00, 000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and the Paid-up Share Capital
is Rs. 21,44,38,190/- (Rupees Twenty-One crore forty-four lakh thirty-eight thousand one hundred
and ninety only) divided into 2,14,86,234 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

During the year under review the company have raised funds through private placement as a result
of which the capital of the company was increased as follows:
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Type of Meeting Date of Meeting No. of Shares
Capital

Allotted 27,75,000 Equity
Shares (consequent to the
conversion of 27,75,000 share
warrants out of 37,00,000
share warrants allotted on
October 13, 2022) having face
value of Rs. 10/- each at a
premium of Rs. 5/- each on
preferential basis

Paid up capital Board Meeting December 06, 2022

Increase in Authorised Share
Capital of the Company from
1,65,00,000 (One Crore Sixty-
Five Lakhs Only) Equity
Authorised Extraordinary Shares having face value of

capital General Meeting December 31, 2022 Rs. 10/- eachg to 3,00,00,000
(Three Crore) Equity Shares
having face value of Rs. 10/-
each

Allotted  84,00,000 equity
shares at face value of Rs. 10/-
each at a premium of Rs. 10/-
each on preferential basis

Paid up capital Board Meeting January 17, 2023

Apart from the above, the Company did not raise any additional equity share capital during the
year.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES, AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint ventures, and associate companies as per
Companies Act 2013.

During the year under review the Board at its meeting held on January 17, 2023 approved for
investment in Anugraha Chemicals (“Firm”), a Partnership Firm registered under Karnataka
Partnership (Registration of Firms) Rules, 1954 by acquiring 51% partnership interest in multiple
tranches. Accordingly, your company acquired 25.5% stake as st tranche in the firm.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as such, no amount of principal
or interest was outstanding as on the balance sheet date.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not proposed to transfer any amount to the General Reserve
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DETAILS OF MATERIAL EVENTS DURING THE YEAR
A. Investment in Anugraha chemicals (“The Firm”):

As a part of In-organic growth your company have been identifying potential targets within the
industry in which it operates. In the process company identified Anugraha Chemicals as one of the
potential strategic targets.

Anugraha Chemicals is a Partnership Firm, Registered under the Karnataka Partnership
(Registration of Firms), Rules 1954, engaged in the business of manufacture of bulk drug
intermediaries and chemicals. The firm was incorporated vide a partnership deed entered by the
partners therein, on May 10, 1990.

The company after having multiple discussions with the partners, carrying out extensive due
diligence and with the approval from the Board of Directors has entered into an agreement on
January 25, 2023 with the firm to acquire 51% stake by investing a sum of Rs. 5,14,08,000/-
(Rupees Five Crore Fourteen Lakhs Eight Thousand Only) through multiple tranches in the said
firm. Investment Agreement also provides for increase in PPL’s stake beyond 51% by additional
investment for meeting the upgradation/business needs of Anugraha Chemicals.

In view of the same, your company has acquired 25.5% stake in Anugraha chemicals on February
1, 2023 as a first tranche of investment.

B. Private placement
1. Allotment of 37,00,000 share warrants of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs.5/- each.

During the year under review, your Company allotted 37,00,000 share warrants convertible into
equity shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 5/- (Rupees Five Only) each
within a period of 18 months from the date of allotment of warrants, as per terms and conditions
approved by members in 33rd Annual General Meeting held on August 20, 2022.

Further, the company received the request letter from the three allottees namely: Mr. Venu
Madhava Kaparthy, Mr. Balagangadhara B C and Mr. Shankarappa Nagaraja Vinaya Babu
intending to convert the 27,75,000 share warrants out of 37,00,000 share warrants into Equity
shares.

Accordingly, Board at its meeting held on December 6, 2022, approved the Conversion and
Allotment of 27,75,000 share warrants convertible into equity shares having face value of Rs. 10/-
each at premium of Rs. 5/- (Rupees Five Only) from the above mentioned three allottees.

2. Issuance of 84,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs.10/- each.

During the year under review, your Company approved the issuance of 84,00,00 Equity shares
having face value of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) with the aim of
supporting the company's General Business Purpose, Business Expansion, and Working Capital
Requirements, in accordance with the terms and conditions approved in Extraordinary General
Meeting held on December 31, 2022.

Accordingly, Board at its meeting held on January 17, 2023, approved the Allotment of 84,00,000
Equity share having face value of Rs. 10/- each at premium of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only).
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C. Acquisition of 5791 sq.mtrs (approx. 1.43 acres) of Land

Your Company to achieve its vision and mission have been exploring the growth opportunity in
both ways i.e., Organic and Inorganic. As a part of Organic Growth Company has planned to setup
Pharmaceuticals Manufacturing and Research & Development Unit.

The Board at its meeting held on February 13, 2023, approved for taking the land measuring 5791
sq. mtrs (approx. 1.43 acres) situated at Karnataka Industrial Area Development Board to
Vaishnavi Enterprises, a proprietorship firm, located at Avverahalli (Dobbaspet 4th Phase)
Industrial Area, Sy. No. parts of 20 & 21/2, Village — K.G. Srinivasapura, Hobli, Sompura, Taluk
Nelamangala, District — Bengaluru on lease-cum-sale basis.

D. Shifting of Registered office of the Company

The Shareholders of the Company at the 33™ Annual General Meeting held on August 20, 2022,
approved for shifting of the Registered office of the company from State of Telangana i.c., 4-4-
211/212/3, Inderbagh, Sultan Bazaar, Hyderabad — 500095 To State of Karnataka i.e., Unit 201,
Second Floor, Brigade Rubix, 20/14 HMT Factory Main Road, Peenya Plantation, Bengaluru —
560013.

On approval of the Regional Director and ROC, the Registered Office of the Company is now
shifted from State of Telangana i.e., 4-4-211/212/3, Inderbagh, Sultan Bazar, Hyderabad — 500095
to State of Karnataka i.e., Unit 201, Second Floor, Brigade Rubix, 20/14 HMT Factory Main Road,
Peenya Plantation, Bengaluru — 560013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to financial statements of
the company, your Directors wish to confirm that:

1. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures.

2. your directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2023, and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period; your directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

3. your Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

4. your directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

5. your directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The following are the Directors and Key Managerial Personnels of the company in accordance
with the provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.
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SI. | Name of the Key Managerial Personnel Designation
No.
1 | Mr. Venu Madhava Kaparthy Executive Director
2 | Ms. Mini Manikantan Executive Director
3 | Mr. Mopperthy Sudheer Independent Director
4 | Mr. Pattadamai Natarajasarma Vijay Independent Director
5 | Mr. Venkat Rao Sadhanala Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director
6 | Mr. Methuku Nagesh Independent Director
7 | Mr. Balagangadhara B C Chief financial officer
8 | Mr. Kaushik Kumar Company Secretary

Details of an Appointment and Change in the office of a Director’s and KMP’s

Details of Appointment
SL. Name Designation Date of Appointment
No.
1 | Mr. Venu Madhava Kaparthy Whole Time Director May 05, 2022
2 | Ms. Mini Manikantan Whole Time Director July 09, 2022
3 | Mr. Methuku Nagesh Independent Director November 29, 2022
4 | Mr. Pattadamai Natarajasarma | Independent Director October 30, 2022
Vijay
Mr. Balagangadhara B C Chief Financial Officer October 13, 2022
6 | Mr. Kaushik Kumar Company Secretary October 13, 2022

Details of Resignation

SI. Name Designation Date of Resignation
No.
1 | Mrs. Padmaja Kalyani Sadhanala Whole Time Director May 21, 2022
2 | Mr. Vishwa Prasad Whole Time Director July 09, 2022
3 | Mr. Vyasmurthi Madhavrao Shingatgeri | Independent Director August 03, 2022
4 | Mr. Veerareddy Vallpureddy Independent Director November 29, 2022
5 | Mr. Chilam Shrikanth Chief Financial Officer October 13, 2022
6 | Ms. Annie Jodhani Company Secretary October 13, 2022

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act and the Articles of Association of the Company,
Ms. Mini Manikantan (DIN: 09663184), Whole Time Director is liable to retire by rotation at the
ensuing AGM, and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors at their Meetings held
on August 29, 2023, recommended the re-appointment of Ms. Mini Manikantan for approval of
the Members at the ensuing AGM of the Company.

The Board is of the opinion that Ms. Mini Manikantan possesses the requisite knowledge, skills,
expertise and experience to contribute to the growth of the Company.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) or under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. All Independent Directors have provided confirmation as contemplated under Section 149(7)
of the Act. As required by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
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2015, a certificate from the Company Secretary in practice, that none of the Directors on the Board
of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority,
form’s part this report.

In accordance with provisions of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, your Company has received
declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of
independence as prescribed under the Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In the
opinion of the Board, the independent directors possess appropriate balance of skills, experience
and knowledge, as required.

The Company has devised the Policy for selection of Directors and determining Directors’
independence and the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, has framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management
and their remuneration. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy can be viewed on the
company’s website at http://www.pharmaids.com/images/p/Nomination-Remuneration-and-
Evaluation-Policy.pdf

BOARD EVALUATION

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 mandates that the
Board shall monitor and review the Board evaluation framework. The Companies Act, 2013 states
that a formal annual evaluation needs to be conducted by the Board of its own performance and
that of its committees and individual Directors. Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 states
that the performance evaluation of Independent Directors shall be conducted by the entire Board
of Directors, excluding the Director being evaluated.

The Board evaluation was conducted through Questionnaire by way of internal Assessment.

Evaluation of Committee was based on criteria such as adequate independence of each Committee,
Effectiveness of the committee, Independence of the committee from the board, Contribution to
decisions of the board, frequency of meetings and time allocated to such discussions etc.

Evaluation of Board was based on criteria such as frequency of the meetings, time devoted for
examining compliance issues, boards integrity towards financial reporting system, dissemination
of information to members timely and regularly etc.

Evaluation Criteria for independent directors has been detailed in Corporate Governance Report
which forms part of this annual report.

DISCLOSURES

Meetings of the Board

Eleven (11) Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year 2022-23. The particulars
of the meetings held, and attendance of each Director are detailed in the Corporate Governance
Report. The intervening gaps between the meetings were within the limits prescribed under the
Act and the Listing Regulations.
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Committees of the Board

The Company has duly constituted the Committees required under the Act read with the applicable
Rules made thereunder and the Listing Regulations. As on March 31, 2023, the following
Committees of the Board were functional:

1. Audit Committee
2. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee

During the year under review, Mr. Veerareddy Vallapureddy demitted office as an Independent
Director of the Company and consequently ceased to be the chairman and member of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee presently comprises of the following members:

SL.No. Name Designated
1 Mr. Pattadamai Natarajasarma Vijay Independent Director (Chairman)
2 Mr. Venu Madhava Kaparthy Whole Time Director
3 Mr. Methuku Nagesh Independent Director
4 Mr. Mopperty Sudheer Independent Director

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

Particulars of the meeting held, and attendance of each member of the committee are detailed in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

During the year under review, Mr. Veerareddy Vallapureddy demitted office as an Independent
Director of the Company and consequently ceased to be the chairman and member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination Remuneration Committee presently
comprises of the following members.

SL. Name Designated

No.
1 | Mr. Pattadamai Natarajasarma Vijay | Independent Director (Chairman)
2 | Mr. Venkat Rao Sadhanala Non-executive and Non-Independent Director
3 | Mr. Methuku Nagesh Independent Director

Particulars of the meeting held, and attendance of each member of the committee are detailed in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Stakeholders’ Relationship (SR) Committee

During the year under review, Mr. Veerareddy Vallapureddy demitted office as an Independent
Director of the Company and consequently ceased to be the chairman and member of the
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee presently
comprises of the following members.
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S1.No. Name Designated
1 Mr. Methuku Nagesh Independent Director (Chairman)
2 Mr. Venu Madhava Kaparthy | Executive Director
3 Ms. Mini Manikantan Executive Director

Particulars of the meeting held, and attendance of each member of the committee are detailed in
the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditors

PPKG & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 009655S) will complete their first
term on conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark, or
disclaimer. The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

Secretarial Auditors

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to appoint
Secretarial Auditor, who shall be a Company Secretary in practice, to conduct Secretarial Audit of
the Company.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 04, 2023, based on the consent received
from M/s Kashinath & Co., Practising Company Secretaries, appointed M/s Kashinath & Co.,
Practising, Company Secretaries (Certificate of Practice No. 4807), as Secretarial Auditor of the
Company to conduct Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations read with the
SEBI Circular, the Report given by the Secretarial Auditors is annexed as Annexure 4 and forms
an integral part of this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark, or
disclaimer. During the year, the Secretarial Auditors have not reported any matter under Section
143(12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3) (ca) of the
Act.

Internal Auditors

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of The Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, have appointed Mr. T N Raghavendra, Practicing Chartered Accountant as an Internal
Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024.
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has followed the applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to
‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Your Company does not have any funds lying unpaid and unclaimed for a period of seven years.
Therefore, there were no Funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF).

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans or guarantee during the financial year 2022-2023, as per
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The particulars of investments along with the purpose for which the investment made is given
under the material events held during year and also form part of the Notes to the financial
statements provided in this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Your Company place on record their deep appreciation for the contribution made by the employees
of the Company at all levels. A Note on Human Resources is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis (“MDA”) Report, which forms part of this Report.

The information about employee’s particulars as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, as amended, is annexed as Annexure 3 and forms part of this Report.

In terms of Section 197(12) of the Act, read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the
names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and other particulars of the
employees is annexed as Annexure 3.1 and forms part of this Report.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

In accordance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”) and Rules made thereunder, the
Company has in place a policy which mandates no tolerance against any conduct amounting to
sexual harassment of women at workplace. The Company has constituted “Internal Complaints
Committee” to redress and resolve any complaints arising at respectable workplace.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Business Risk Evaluation and Management is an ongoing process within the Organization. In
Compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, your
Company has a robust Risk Management Framework to identify, monitor and minimize risks as
also identify business opportunities.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Internal financial controls are essential to ensure the accuracy and integrity of its financial
information.

Your Company has an adequate system of internal controls with clearly defined authority limits.
Internal controls ensure that the Company’s assets are protected against loss from unauthorised
use or disposition and all transactions are authorised, recorded, and reported in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. These systems are designed to ensure accuracy and
reliability of accounting data, promotion of operational efficiency and adherence to the prescribed
management principles. These policies are periodically reviewed to meet business requirements.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with respect to financial statements.

VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE-BLOWER POLICY

The Board of Directors have established robust Vigil Mechanism and a Whistle-blower policy for
Directors and Employee to report genuine concerns in compliance of Section 177(9) and (10) of
Companies Act, 2013 and the regulation 22 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Our Company Believes in promoting fair, transparent, ethical, and professional work environment.
The company has adopted the code of conduct which provides an environment that promotes
responsible and protected whistle blowing. All the employees including Directors and External
Parties such as consultants, vendors, suppliers, dealers, customers and contractors working for
and/ or on behalf of any of the Group entities are covered under the Whistle-blower policy.

The Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-blower policy is available on the Company’s website and can
be accessed at Whistle Blower Policy (pharmaids.com).

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under review, we would like to confirm that, our company has not entered into
any contracts/arrangements or transactions with related parties which could be considered material
in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. As
required under the Companies Act, 2013, the prescribed Form AOC 2 is appended as Annexure 1
to the Boards’s report. There were no material significant related party transactions which could
have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.
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The Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party.
Transactions as approved by the Board is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed
athttp://www.pharmaids.com/images/p/HRP%2003%20Related%20Party%20Transactions%20P

olicy.pdf

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo, as required to be disclosed under the Act, are provided in Annexure 2 to this
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company adheres to the Corporate Governance requirements set out by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”). The report on Corporate Governance for the year 2023 along
with general shareholder information as stipulated under the Listing Regulations forms part of the
Annual Report. ,M/s Kashinath & Co., Practising Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice No.
4807) of the Company, has issued a certificate confirming the compliance with the provisions of
Corporate Governance by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of
Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations, and the same is attached along with the report on
corporate governance.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under the
Regulation 34(2)(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™), is presented in a separate
section forming part of the Annual Report.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The provisions relating to maintenance of Cost records under Section 148 of Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable to the Company.

CODE OF PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Pursuant to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted
a comprehensive Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders &
designated persons and procedures for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.

The Company has also adopted the Policy for determination of Legitimate Purposes and Policy
for Inquiry in case of leak or suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive information in
accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and can be accessed
athttp://www.pharmaids.com/images/p/HRP%2004%20Policy%20for%20Prevention%200f%20I
nsider%20Trading%20Policy.pdf
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ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder,
the draft Annual Return prepared as per Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form MGT-
7 has been placed on the website of the Company at www.pharmaids.com

GENERAL

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following matters
as there were no transactions on these matters during the year under review:

Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employee of the company under any scheme.
Our company does not have any subsidiaries. Hence, none of the Whole-time Directors of the
company receive any remunerations or commission from any of its subsidiaries.

There have been no Companies, which have become/ceased to be subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or
Associate Companies during the year under review. However, the Company acquired 25.5 %
stake in Anugraha Chemicals (The “Firm”), a Partnership Firm, registered under Karnataka
Partnership (Registration of Firms) Rules, 1954. As per Indian Accounting Standard, said Firm
is an Associate of the Company. Details of the same has been provided under heading “Details
of Material events During the Year”.

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and Company’s operation in future.

No frauds have been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

There was no instance of one-time settlement with any bank or Financial Institution.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATIONS

The Board of Directors wish to place on record its deep sense of appreciation for the committed
services by all the employees of the Company. The Board of Directors would also like to express
their sincere appreciation for the assistance and guidance received from the banks, government
and regulatory authorities, stock exchanges, customers, vendors and members during the year
under review.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Venu Madhava Kaparthy = Sadhanala Venkata Rao

Date: 29.08.2023 Whole Time Director Director
Place: Bangalore (DIN: 00021699) (DIN: 02906370)
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ANNEXURE [1] to Board’s Report
FORM AOC 2

Particulars of Contracts / Arrangements made with Related Parties.

[Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 — AOC-2]

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013, including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered with related parties during the
year ended March 31, 2023.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered with related parties
during the year ended March 31, 2023.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Venu Madhava Kaparthy = Sadhanala Venkata Rao
Whole Time Director Director
(DIN: 00021699) (DIN: 02906370)

Date: 29.08.2023
Place: Bangalore
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ANNEXURE |2] to Board’s Report

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTFLOW

(Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy.
Our Company recognizes the importance of energy management and hence, towards optimum
utilization of energy company has taken proactive steps to conserve energy.

ii.  Steps taken to utilize alternate sources of energy.
Currently our company has not yet taken any steps towards utilizing alternate sources of energy.
However, we are open to explore a various available option in future to promote environmental
sustainability.

iii.  Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s.
No specific investment has been made in equipment for energy conservation. Despite not making a
specific investment our company has implemented sustainable practices and encouraged energy
efficient behaviours among employees. The company is still working towards conserving energy and
reducing their environmental impact.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Our Company relies on in-house knowledge and expertise for our operations and therefore no
outside technology is being used. As a result, currently company does not have any plans for
technology absorption, but we are committed to staying up to date with the latest industry
advancements through ongoing research and development for improving quality of our products
and all the activities that are directed to achieve the aforesaid goals.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO-

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Earnings - -
Outgo - -

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Venu Madhava Kaparthy Sadhanala Venkata Rao
Date: 29.08.2023 Whole Time Director Director

Place: Bangalore (DIN: 00021699) (DIN: 02906370)

47




ANNEXURE [3] to Board’s Report

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of
Chapter XIII, the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014

A. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company for the financial year:

. . Ratio of Remuneration
Directors Name Total remuneration to MRE!
Padmaja Kalyani Sadhanala? NA -
Vishwa prasad sadhanala® NA -
Vyasmurthi Madhavrao Shingatgeri* NA -
Veerareddy Vallapureddy® NA -
Venu Madhava Kaparthy® 27,00,000 7.15
Mini Manikantan’ 16,64,516 4.41
Mopperthy Sudheer® NA -
Pattamadai Natarajasarma Vijay’ 2,08,333 0.55
Methuku Nagesh!’ 1,69,444 0.45
Venkata Rao Sadhanala'! NA -

a. The aforesaid details are calculated on the basis of remuneration for the financial year 2022-2023.

b. Median remuneration of the Company for all its employee is Rs. 3,75,500 /-for the financial year
2022-2023.

c. Median remuneration of the Company for all its employee is Rs. 2,16,000 /-for the financial year
2022-2023

! MRE = Median Remuneration of employees

2 Padmaja Kalyani Sadhanala retired as Executive Director effective May 21, 2022, and has
voluntarily chose not to receive any remuneration for her services rendered to the Company
3Vishwa prasad Sadhanala retired as Executive Director effective July 09, 2022, and has voluntarily
chose not to receive any remuneration for his services rendered to the Company

*Vyasmurthi Madhavrao Shingatgeri retired as Independent Director effective August 03, 2022,
and has voluntarily chose not to receive any remuneration for his services rendered to the
Company.

SVeerareddy Vallapureddy retired as Independent Director effective November 29, 2022, and has
voluntarily chose not to receive any remuneration for his services rendered to the Company.
%Venu Madhava Kaparthy was appointed as Executive Director effective May 05, 2022

"Mini Manikantan was appointed as Executive Director effective July 09, 2022

$Mopperthy Sudheer voluntarily chose not to receive any remuneration for his services rendered
to the Company.

Pattamadai Natarajasarma Vijay was appointed as Independent Director effective October 30,
2022

1"Methuku Nagesh was appointed as Independent Director effective November 29, 2022
"Venkata Rao Sadhanala voluntarily chose not to receive any remuneration for his services
rendered to the Company.
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The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary in the financial year:

The remuneration for Directors, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Company Secretary remained
unchanged during the financial year 2022-23.

The percentage increase in the Median remuneration of all employees in the financial year
2022-2023:

Particulars 2021-22 2022-23 Change (%)

Median remuneration of all employees per annum | 216000 375500 74%

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2023:

Executive
Staff 1
Total 9

Average percentile increased already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

The average annual increase is NIL.

Increase in the managerial remuneration for the year is NIL.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE [3.1] to Board’s Report

Information as per Rule 5 of Chapter XIII, the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year:

Experi
Name of the . . Qualificatio ence . Date of Previous
Designation Age . Remuneration .
employee n (in Joining | employment
years)
Group Chief - Strategy BVSc & Bioneeds
Dr. Prasad S and Operational 47 AH, MVSc, 18 25,04,855 22-Jul-22 .
India Pvt Ltd
Excellence PhD.
=
Chilam Chief Financial officer | 43 B.com 8 63,871 - -
srikanth
2Annie Company
Jodhani Company Secretary 30 Secretary 5 2,00,223 - -
Company
Kaushik Secretary, 13-10- .
Kumar Company Secretary 34 LLB & 6 8,54,838 2022 Novoluris
B.com
Balagangadha . . B.com, 13-10- Bioneeds
aBC Chief Financial officer | 41 ICWA (inter) 17 18,72,580 2022 India Pyt Ltd
Shivakumar K . . 01-Nov- Bioneeds
] Finance Manager 45 M.Phil. 20 3,77,500 2 India Pyt Ltd
Ingreed Assistant Manager - Bioneeds
Anisha Admin & Purchase 26 BCA 4 2,20,000 01-Jul-22 India Pvt Ltd
R . Secondary 01-Aug- Bioneeds
Shivalingaiah Driver 38 Education 12 2,00,000 2 India Pvt Ltd
Anthem
Prakash Alva R&D — General 48 M.Se. 2 175,000 01-Mar- Biosciences
P Manager 23 Pyt Lid

!Chilam Srikanth retired as Chief Financial Officer effective October 13, 2022

?Annie Jodhani retired as Company Secretary effective October 13, 2022

a. The afore mentioned employees have / had permanent employment contracts with the Company.

b. Employees mentioned above are neither relatives of any directors of the Company, except
Balagangadhara B C none of the other above mentioned employees hold 2% or more of the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company as per Clause (iii) of sub-rule (2) of Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Date: 29.08.2023
Place: Bangalore

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Venu Madhava Kaparthy Sadhanala Venkata Rao
Whole Time Director Director

(DIN: 00021699) (DIN: 02906370)
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ANNEXURE [4] to Board’s Report
FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the companies Act, 2013 3 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited (hereinafter
called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31, 2023 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the
provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings

The following Regulations prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;
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d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test-check basis, the
Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

a) Factories Act, 1948

b) Payment of Wages Act, 1936, and Rules made thereunder

c) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948, and rules made thereunder

d) Employees state insurance Act 1948 and rules made thereunder

e) The employees provident fund and miscellaneous provisions Act 1952 and rules made
thereunder

f) Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940

g) Drugs and Magic remedies Objectionable Advertisement) Act 1954

h) Narcotic Drugs and psychotropic Substances Act, 1985

1) The Trademarks Act, 1999

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1. Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
and
ii. Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay stock exchange.

During the Audit Period the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the Audit Period were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.
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b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the meetings of the Board and Committee.
Except where consent of directors was received for scheduling meeting at a shorter notice,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

c) All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board,
as the case may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms an
integral part of this report.

For M/s Kashinath Sahu & Co.,
Practising Company Secretaries

Sd/-
CS Kashinath Sahu
Practicing Company Secretary
FCS: 4790 CP: 4807
Date: 23.08.2023 UDIN No.: F004790E000845762
Place: Hyderabad Peer Review No: 2957 / 2023

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure ‘A’ and forms
an integral part of this report.
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Annexure A

To,
The Members,

Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended on March 31, 2023 of even date is to be read along
with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Bank.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For M/s Kashinath Sahu & Co.,
Practising Company Secretaries
Sd/-
CS Kashinath Sahu
(Proprietor)
FCS: 4790 CP: 4807
Date: 23.08.2023 UDIN No.: F004790E000845762
Place: Hyderabad Peer Review No: 2957 / 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A. Industry overview and Developments

After responding to the Covid 19 pandemic for the past two years, the global pharmaceuticals
industry is now facing a “new normal” in 2023 that will require changes in commercial strategy
and execution. Growth prospects are being impacted by several key issues.

The Pharmaceuticals industry is a vital component of the healthcare sector, dedicated to
developing, producing, and marketing drugs for the prevention, treatment, and cure of diseases.
The industry has experienced significant growth and development over the past few decades, due
to several factors including advancements in technology, increased demand for healthcare
services, and growing awareness and diagnosis of diseases.

The prominent pharma industry trends include Increasing focus on research and development
(R&D) to create new and innovative drugs, Amalgamation of Artificial Intelligence in developing
automated algorithms which will help in producing seedier, more precise, and reproducible results.

The industry is also facing challenges from emerging competitors, particularly in the form of
generic drug manufacturers. Despite these challenges, the pharmaceuticals industry is projected to
continue growing in the coming years, driven by increasing demand for healthcare services, the
emergence of new markets in developing countries, and ongoing R&D efforts to develop new and
more effective drugs.

B. Opportunities and Challenges

Growing demand for health care services has transformed the industry with increasing digitization,
and traction of e-pharmacy and pharmacy chains. Increased healthcare coverage and better policy
support are likely to boost growth whereas adverse regulation could impact in a negative way.
With aging populations and increasing in the disease, the demand for health care services,
including pharmaceuticals is expected to grow. As the pharmaceuticals industry is heavily reliant
on the R&D to create new and innovative drugs, by investing in R&D, our company can create a
pipeline of new products that can meet the evolving needs of the patients and health care providers.

Over the past couple of years, there have been many challenges faces by the pharmaceutical
industry. The pharmaceutical industry has emerged from the pandemic stronger in large due part
to its role in researching, producing, and distributing Covid-related therapies and vaccines but also
due to the nature of the industry. However, the industry is now facing a crossroads of upcoming
challenges, including financial pressure from the impending patent cliff.

C. Global Pharma Market Performance

The global pharmaceuticals market has been performing well in recent years, with steady growth
and increasing demand for healthcare products.

The market is driven by several factors, including the increasing prevalence of chronic diseases
such as cancer, diabetes, and cardiovascular diseases, as well as the growing aging population.
Advances in technology and innovation are also contributing to the growth of the market, with
new drugs and therapies being developed to treat previously untreatable conditions.
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Despite the positive outlook for the pharmaceuticals market, the industry also faces challenges
such as increasing regulatory scrutiny and pricing pressures, as well as the need to demonstrate the
value and cost-effectiveness of their products. Nevertheless, pharmaceuticals companies continue
to invest in research and development to drive innovation and develop new products to meet the
evolving needs of their customers.

. Pharma Outlook: Positive Factors

The New Financial Year comes with a new set of challenges. As a pharmaceuticals company, we
are optimistic about the industry outlook in the coming years. The global pharmaceuticals market
is expected to continue to grow, driven by an aging population, rising chronic diseases, and
increased healthcare spending. We are committed to investing in innovation and R&D to develop
new products and maintain our competitive edge in the industry. We see significant growth
opportunities in emerging markets, where there is a large and growing population, rising incomes,
and increasing healthcare spending.

In addition, we recognize the increasing importance of digital health technologies in the industry.
We are actively exploring ways to incorporate these technologies into our business to improve our
strategic goal to achieve our desired results.

. Policy Support

Governments recognize the critical role that the pharmaceuticals industry plays in providing
essential healthcare products and in driving economic growth, and as such, are implementing
policies and initiatives to support its development.

At the national level, governments are streamlining regulatory processes and creating a favourable
business environment for pharmaceutical companies through measures such as tax incentives,
funding for research and development, and investments in healthcare infrastructure. These
initiatives are creating opportunities for us to invest in innovation and expand our operations.

. Review of Operations

The company has consistently grown above market in the last several years by keeping a clear
focus on providing scientific, trusted products, backed by expert clinical support.

The company’s position has been enhanced through consistent scientific engagement with doctors,
increasing geographic penetration.
. Increasing Investment

Increasing Investments in R&D and Acquisitions are driving the Sector’s growth.

. Risks and Concerns

As a pharmaceuticals company, it is important to acknowledge the risks and concerns facing in
our industry. These include regulatory changes, patent expirations, pricing pressures, competition
from generics, and increased scrutiny on drug pricing and marketing practices. Additionally, the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has disrupted global supply chains and created uncertainty in the
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market. It is essential that we continue to monitor these risks and adapt our strategies to address
them, while maintaining our commitment to providing innovative and effective healthcare
solutions. Our goal is to mitigate these risks and navigate the challenges facing our industry with
transparency and resilience.

Another concern is the potential for legal and regulatory challenges. The pharmaceuticals industry
is heavily regulated, and companies must adhere to strict guidelines and regulations related to drug
development, manufacturing, and marketing. Non-compliance with these regulations can result in
significant fines and penalties, as well as damage to the company's reputation. Furthermore,
lawsuits related to drug efficacy, safety, and potential side effects can result in significant legal
costs and settlements.

We also closely monitor policy changes and developments in the industry to stay ahead of potential
challenges. Overall, we remain committed to navigating the risks and challenges of the
pharmaceuticals industry while maintaining a strong focus on innovation and quality outcomes.

Company Overview

As a pharmaceuticals company, we understand the importance of conducting regular and thorough
reviews of our operations to ensure we are meeting our commitments to our stakeholders, including
customers, employees, and investors. Our overviews include evaluating our performance against
industry benchmarks, identifying areas for improvement, and implementing measures to enhance
our business practices and maintain our position in the healthcare industry. We are committed to
ongoing improvement and remain vigilant in our efforts to ensure the safety, efficacy, and quality
of our products and services.

Performance and Operations Review

Operating Results

The Company’s Revenues stood at Nil during the year under review, PAT at Rs. -755.56 Lakhs as
against the corresponding Previous Year, there was revenue of Rs.393.93 Lakhs and the PAT was
Rs.14.52 Lakhs. Your directors are giving their best efforts for exploring more business
opportunities so as to increase the growth and profitability of the Company, in the years to come.

. Internal Control Systems and Adequacy

The Company has established comprehensive Internal Control Systems with well-defined
compliance guidelines, enabling smooth operations with a reasonable level of assurance. These
internal controls serve to protect the Company's assets, monitor cost structures, ensure sound
financial and accounting controls, and adhere to accounting standards.

The system incorporates continuous monitoring, routine reporting, checks and balances, purchase
policies, authorization and delegation procedures, and regular audits. To support these internal
controls, the Company maintains an Internal Audit Team and conducts periodic reviews under the
management's supervision. The Audit Committee convenes regularly to assess the adequacy and
scope of the internal audit function, discuss significant findings, and address any abnormal
occurrences. The system undergoes continuous improvement and modification to align with
changes in business conditions, statutory requirements, and accounting standards.

57




L. Material Development in Human Resources / Industrial Relations Front
The Number of Employees as on 31st March’ 2023 was 9 (Nine).

The Company's growth is predominantly attributed to the competence and quality of its human
resources. Our work environment fosters a challenging and performance-oriented atmosphere,
acknowledging employees' potential by offering ample opportunities. We have diligently refined
our hiring process to ensure discipline and effectiveness. Prioritizing the acquisition and retention
of talent aligned with the Company's goals remains a key focus area.

M. Details of Significant change in the Key Financial Ratios:

Current Previous

o
Ratios Period Period Vari/aonce Reason for Variance
2022-23 2021-22
Debtors The Debtors Turnover ratio has been
Turnover Ratio 0.00 2.08 (100.00) | reduced from 2.08 to 0.00 as no sales were
(in times) made during FY 2022-23
Return on Return on Equity is -0.34 because the
Equity Ratio -0.34 0.02 (100.00) | company has incurred losses in
(In %) FY 2022-23
Inventory The Inventory Turnover ratio has been
Turnover 0.00 5.10 (100.00) | reduced from 5.10 to O as no sales were
(in times) made during FY 2022-23

The Significant Change in Current ratio is
due to excess increase in Current Assets of

Current Ratio 8.22 1.09 651.72 |the Company, whereas the Current

(in times) Liabilities have been reduced when
compared to Previous Year
Debit Equity The Debt equity ratio in both Financial
Ratio (in 0.00 0.00 - Years remains Nil as there are no Long
times) Term Debts of the company
The Net Profit ratio is 0 as the company
Net prioﬁt 0.00 0.04 (100.00) has incurred Losses in the Cuqent year
Ratio and also no sales were made during
FY 2022-23
Operating The Operating ratio has been reduced
Ratio 0.00 1.04 (100.00) | from 1.04 to 0 as no sales and Purchases
were made during FY 2022-23
Return on Net Return on Net worth Ratio is -0.31
worth Ratio (In -0.31 0.38 (100.00) | because the company has incurred losses
Times) in FY 2022-23
By order of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-
Venu Madhava Kaparthy Sadhanala Venkata Rao
Date: 29.08.2023 Whole Time Director Director

Place: Bangalore (DIN: 00021699) (DIN: 02906370)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[Pursuant to Schedule V(C) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”)]

1. Pharmaids’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited (‘PPL’) has shown a commitment towards effective Corporate
Governance and has always been at the forefront of benchmarking its Internal Systems and Policies
with Global Practices. PPL is committed to provide Fair, Transparent and Equitable Treatment to
all its Stakeholders. At PPL, we have always sought to be a value driven organisation, where our
growth and success is directed by our values. The Company has complied with the norms of
Governance as provided in Chapter-IV and Schedule-II of the Listing Regulations, during the year
under review.

2. Board of Directors

At Pharmaids, the Board provides guidance and strategic instructions to the Management in order
to achieve overall objectives. The Board always acts in good faith, with due diligence and care and
in the best interests of all stakeholders.

a. Composition and Category of Directors

The Composition of Board is in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 17 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is also in line with the
best practices of corporate governance. As on March 31, 2023, Pharmaids’ s Board consisted of 6
(Six) Directors. The name of each member of the Board along with the Designation/Category are
as given below:

S. Name of the Director Designation/Category
No.
1 | Mr. Pattamadai Natarajasarma Vijay Independent Non-executive Director
2 | Mr. Mopperthy Sudheer Independent Non-executive Director
3 | Mr. Methuku Nagesh Independent Non-executive Director
4 | Mr. Venkata Rao Sadhanala Promoter & Non- Executive Non-Independent
Director
5 | Mr. Venu Madhava Kaparthy Executive Director
6 | Ms. Mini Manikantan Executive Director

The Board of Directors of the Company has an appropriate mix of executive, non-executive and
independent directors with One Woman Director. Their detailed profiles are available on the
Company’s website: http://www.pharmaids.com/board-of-directors.html
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b. Attendance of each Director at the Meeting of the Board of Directors including last Annual

General Meeting:

Board Meetings | Attendance at Attendance in last
Name of the Director Held during the the Board Annual General Meeting
year Meetings held on August 20, 2022
Mr. Venu Madhava 11 10 Present
Kaparthy'
Ms. Mini Manikantan? 11 09 Present
Mr. Venkata Rao Sadhanala 11 11 Present
Mr. Pattamadai 11 05 NA
Natarajasarma Vijay®
Mr. Mopperthy Sudheer 11 09 Present
Mr. Methuku Nagesh* 11 03 NA
Mr. Veerareddy 11 07 Present
Vallapureddy®
Mr. Vyasmurthi Madhavrao 11 03 NA
Shingatgeri®
Ms. Sadhanala Padmaja 11 0 NA
Kalyani’
Mr. Sadhanala Vishwa 11 01 NA
Prasad®

(1) Appointed as an Executive Director with effect from May 21, 2022.

(2) Appointed as an Executive Director with effect from July 09, 2022.

(3) Appointed as an Independent Director with effect from October 31, 2022.
(4) Appointed as an Independent Director with effect from November 29, 2022.
(5) Resigned as an Independent Director with effect from November 29, 2022.
(6) Resigned as an Independent Director with effect from August 03, 2022.

(7) Resigned as a Whole Time Director with effect from May 21, 2022.

(8) Resigned as a Whole Time Director with effect from July 09, 2022.

c. Details of directorships / Committee Membership or Chairmanship as on March 31, 2023.

No. of Membership /
Chairmanship in Audit/Stakeholder | List of Directorship held

Name of the Other relationship Committee in other in other listed Companies

Director Directorships Companies (excluding Private and Category of

Companies) Directorship
Member Chairman

Mr. Venu 1 0 0 0

Madhava

Kaparthy

Ms. Mini 0 0 0 0
Manikantan
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Mr. Venkata 0 0 0 0
Rao
Sadhanala
Mr. 6 4 3 1. Dabur India Limited -
Pattamadai Independent Director
Natarajasarma 2. Maharashtra Seamless
Vijay Limited - Independent
Director
Mr. 0 0 0 0
Mopperthy
Sudheer
Mr. Methuku 0 0 0 0
Nagesh

d. Number of meetings of the Board of Directors held and dates on which held.

In the Financial year 2022-23, the Board of Directors met eleven times with a gap not exceeding
120 (one hundred and twenty) days. The dates on which the meetings were held are as follows:

May 21, 2022; July 9, 2022; July 22, 2022; August 4, 2022; October 13, 2022; October 31, 2022;
November 9, 2022; November 29, 2022; December 6, 2022; January 17, 2023 and February 13,
2023.

e. Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se.

There is no inter se relationship between the Directors as on March 31, 2023.

During the year under review, Mrs. Sadhanala Padmaja Kalyani, and Mr. Sadhanala Viswa Prasad
resigned from the place of office of Director on May 21, 2022 and July 9, 2022 respectively, who
were relatives of Mr. Sadhanala Venkata Rao, Promoter & Non-executive Director.

f. Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non- Executive Directors as on March
31,2023:

S. Name of the Non-Executive No. of P?qulty Sl.la.r es held Convertible
) (held singly or jointly as )
No. Directors instruments
first holder)
1. | Mr. Venkata Rao Sadhanala 15,88,526 NIL
2. | Mr. Mopperthy Sudheer NIL NIL
3. | Mr. Methuku Nagesh NIL NIL
4. | Mr. Pattamadai Natarajasarma Vijay NIL NIL

g. Familiarisation programmes for Independent Directors.

Induction process enables newly appointed directors to familiarise themselves with the Company,
Management and operations in the pharmaceutical industry. As a part of induction and continuing
education program for Independent Directors, periodic presentations are conducted to inform the
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Directors of the Company’s business strategies, Short-term and long-term plans, operations and
performance, legal and regulatory updates in the laws and regulations applicable to the Company.

The Directors are regularly upskill on the Company’s policies and procedures, distribution channels,
business model, cash and treasury management, accounting systems and internal financial controls, etc.
The induction process for Non-Executive, Independent Directors includes interactive sessions with the
Senior Management and Functional heads, etc.

Details of Familiarisation programs conducted by the Company are available on the website of the
Company at http://www.pharmaids.com/familiarization.html

h. Core skills/expertise/competencies of the Directors.

Skill / Area
of
Expertise /
Competen
ce

Name of the Directors

Mr. Venu
Madhava
Kaparthy

Ms. Mini
Manikantan

Mr. Venkata
Rao
Sadhanala

Mr.
Mopperthy
Sudheer

Methuku
Nagesh

Mr. Pattamadai
Natarajasarma
Vijay

Finance,
Law,
Manageme
nt,
Administrat
ion

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Technical
Knowledge
on
Operations,
Production

Yes

Yes

Yes

Corporate
Governanc
e, Strategic
Manageme
nt

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Internation
al
Marketing
and Sales

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

1. Confirmation that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfil the conditions

specified in these regulations and are independent of the management.

The Board of Directors is in the opinion that, the Independent Directors of the company fulfil the
conditions specified in Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(b) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and that they are
independent of the Management.
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j. Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the expiry
of his tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons
other than those provided.

During the year under review, Mr. Vyasmurthi Madhavrao Shingatgiri and Mr. Veerareddy
Vallapureddy vide their respective resignation letters dated August 3, 2022 and November 29, 2022
resigned from the position of Independent Director of the Company.

Accordingly, their resignations were taken on note by the Board of Directors at their meeting held
on August 4, 2022 and November 29, 2022. Both the directors resigned due to their personal
reasons and other obligations. Further, they also confirmed that there were no other material
reasons for their resignation apart from the reason mentioned herein above.

3. Audit committee
Brief description of the terms of reference:

The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers of the Audit Committee are in
compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

The Audit Committee functions as an interface between the Statutory and the Management and the
Board of Directors. The terms of reference of Audit Committee are as per the framework
prescribed under the Act and Rules thereunder and the Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities of monitoring Financial Reporting processes;
reviewing the Company’s established systems and processes for Internal Financial Controls and
Governance; and reviews the Company’s Statutory and Internal Audit Processes.

Composition, Name of members and Chairperson:

The Committee comprises of 3 (Three) Directors, out of which 2 (Two) are Independent Directors.
All the Members, including the Chairman of the Audit Committee are Financially Literate and
have the ability to read and understand the Financial Statements. During the Financial Year 2022-
2023, Seven Meetings of the Committee were held on May 21, 2022, July 22, 2022, November 8§,
2022, December 6, 2022, January 17, 2023, February 13, 2023 and March 6, 2023.

Name of members and their attendance during the year are as under:

Name of the Designation Category No. of meetings Number of
Members held during the meetings
year attended
Mr. Veerareddy Chairperson Non-Executive - 3
Vallapureddy' Independent Director 7
Mr. Mopperthy Member Non-Executive -
Sudheer? Independent Director 7 3
Mr. Viswa Prasad Member Executive Director
Sadhanala® 7 1
Mr. Venu Madhava Member Executive Director
Kaparthy* 7 6
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Mr. Methuku Nagesh’ Member Non-Executive - . 4
Independent Director
Mr. Pattamadai Chairperson Non-Executive -
Natarajasarma Vijay® Independent Director 7 4

Ceased as a chairman and member of the Committee with effect from November 29, 2022.
Ceased as a member of the Committee with effect from November 29, 2022.

Ceased as a member of the Committee with effect from July 09, 2022.

Appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from July 09, 2022.

Appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from November 29, 2022.

Appointed as a Chairman and member of the Committee with effect from November 29, 2022.

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company attended all the Meetings as Invitees. The Company
Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary of the said Committee.

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
Brief description of the terms of reference:

The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of the Committee include review and
recommendation to the Board of Directors of the remuneration paid to the directors. The
Committee meets as and when required to consider and recommend the appointment and
remuneration of Directors and such other relevant matters as may be referred to it.

Composition, Name of members and Chairperson:

The Committee comprises of 3 (Three) Non — Executive Directors. Directors. During the Financial Year
2022-2023, Six Meetings of the Committee were held on May 21, 2022, July 9, 2022, August 4, 2022,
October 13, 2022, October 30, 2022 and November 25, 2022.

Name of members and their attendance during the year are as under:

Name of the Designation Category No. of meetings Number of
Director held during the meetings
year attended
Mr. Veerareddy Chairperson Non-Executive - 6 6
Vallapureddy' Independent Director
Mr. Mopperthy Member Non-Executive - 6 6
Sudheer? Independent Director
Mr. Vyasmurthi Member Non-Executive - 6 2
Madhavrao Independent Director
Shingatgeri?
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Mr. Sadhanala Member Non-Executive - Non- 6 3
Venkata Rao* Independent Director
Mr. Methuku Member Non-Executive - 6 0
Nagesh® Independent Director
Mr. Pattamadai Chairperson Non-Executive - 6 0
Natarajasarma Independent Director
Vijay®

gl

Appointed as a Chairman and member of the Committee with effect from July 9, 2022 and
ceased as a chairman and member of the Committee with effect from November 29, 2022.
Appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from July 9, 2022 and ceased as a member
of the Committee with effect from November 29, 2022.

Appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from July 9, 2022 and ceased as a member
of the Committee with effect from August 8, 2022.

Appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from November 29, 2022.

Appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from November 29, 2022.

Appointed as a Chairman and member of the Committee with effect from November 29, 2022.

The Main Object of this Committee is to identify persons who are qualified to become Directors
and who may be appointed in Senior Management of the Company, recommend to the Board their
Appointment and Removal and shall carry out evaluation of every Director’s Performance,
recommend the Remuneration package of both the Executive and the Non — Executive Directors
on the Board and also the remuneration of Senior Management, one level below the Board. The
Committee reviews the Remuneration Package payable to the Executive Director(s) and
recommends to the Board the same and acts in terms of reference of the Board, from time to time.

a. Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 17(10) of SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Board conducts an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the
performance of the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its
Committees through questionnaire designed with quantitative assessment and the feedback based
on ratings.

The Performance criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors is uploaded on the website and
can be accessed at:

http://www.pharmaids.com/images/p/Terms%20&%20Conditions%200f%20APPOINTMENT%20FO
R%20INDEPENDENT%20DIRECTORS.pdf

5. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers of the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee Meeting are in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and
Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
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The terms of reference of the Committee include Redressal of Grievances of Shareholders, Dealing with
complaints related to transfer of Shares and Performing various functions relating to the interests of
Shareholders / Investors of the Company as may be required under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

Composition, Name of members and Chairperson:

The Committee is comprised of 3 (Three) Directors. In the Financial Year 2022 - 2023, 3 (Three)
meetings of the Committee were held on May 21, 2022; July 22, 2022 and March 6, 2023.

Name of members and their attendance during the year are as under:

Name of the Designation Category No. of meetings Number of
Director held during the | meetings attended
year
Mr. Veerareddy Chairman Independent 3 2
Vallapureddy' Director
Mr. Sadhanala Viswa Member Executive 3 1
Prasad? Director
Ms. Padmaja Member Executive 3 1
Kalyani Sadhanala® Director
Mr. Venu Madhava Member Executive 3 2
Kaparthy* Director
Ms. Mini Member Executive 3 2
Manikantan® Director
Mr. Methuku Chaiman Independent 3 1
Nagesh® Director

Appointed as a Chairman and member of the Committee with effect from July 9, 2022 and ceased
as a chairman and member of the Committee with effect from November 29, 2022.

Ceased as a member of the Committee with effect from July 9, 2022.

Ceased as a member of the Committee with effect from May 21, 2022.

Appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from July 9, 2022.

Appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from July 9, 2022.

Appointed as a Chairman and member of the Committee with effect from November 29, 2022

Name and designation of the Compliance Officer:

Mr. Kaushik Kumar, Company Secretary & Head — Legal, has been appointed as the Compliance
Officer of the Company.

Number of shareholders’ complaints received during the financial year:

No complaints were received during the year.
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Number of pending complaints:

There were no complaints pending for redressal during the year under review. There were no
pending transfers as on March 31, 2023.

In order to expedite the process and for effective resolution of grievances / complaints, the
Committee has delegated powers to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents i.e., M/s Venture
Capital and Corporate Investments Pvt Ltd to redress all complaints / grievances / enquiries of the
Shareholders / Investors. It redresses the grievances / complaints of the Shareholders / Investors
under the supervision of Mr. Kaushik Kumar, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the
Company. The Committee, along with the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company
follows the Policy of attending to the complaints, if any, within Seven Days from the date of its
Receipt.

As mandated by SEBI, the Quarterly Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit, highlighting the
Reconciliation of Total Admitted Capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) vis-a-vis the Total Issued and Listed
Capital is being carried out by the Practicing Company Secretary. This Audit confirms that the
Total Issued and Paid-up Capital is in agreement with the Total Number of Shares held in Physical
and Dematerialized form with NSDL and CDSL.

6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable to our Company.

7. Risk Management Committee

Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
pertaining to forming of Risk Management Committee, is not applicable to the Company during the
Financial Year under review.

8. Remuneration of Directors

The Management determines individual remuneration packages for Directors, KMPs and Senior
Officials of the Company. Subsequently, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee will
consider these determinations and other factors it deems relevant, including but not limited to
market, business performance and practices in comparable companies, having due regard to
financial and commercial health of the Company as well as prevailing laws and government/other
guidelines and provide its recommendations to the Board. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee consults with the Board as it deems appropriate.

The Non-Executive Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or
transactions with the Company. The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, shall review and approve the Remuneration Payable to the Non —
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Executive Directors of the Company, within the overall limits approved by the Shareholders, as per
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of Remuneration paid/payable to the Directors of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2023 are given below: -

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Salary / L Commission
Sitting .
. Remun | Bonus to Profession Total
Directors ) ) Benefits Fees .
eration (in (in Independent | al Charges (in
(in Lakhs) Lakhs) Directors (in Lakhs) | Lakhs)
Lakhs) (in Lakhs)
Mr. Pajctamadal ) i i i i i 509 209
Natarajasarma Vijay
Mr. Methuku Nagesh - - - - 1.69 1.69
Mr. Mopperthy 0 0
Sudheer*
Mr. Sadhanala 0 0
Venkata Rao*
Mr. Madh
r. Venu Madhava 27,00 i i i i i 7
Kaparthy
Ms. Mini
16.65 - - - - - 16.65
Manikantan

Mr. Veerareddy
Vallapureddy*

Mr. Vyasmurthi
Madhavrao
Shingatgeri*

Ms. Sadhanala
Padmaja Kalyani*

Mr. Sadhanala
Vishwa Prasad*

* Mr. Veerareddy Vallapureddy, Mr. Vyasmurthi Madhavrao Shingatgeri, Ms. Sadhanala Padmaja
Kalyani, Mr. Sadhanala Vishwa Prasad, Mr. Sadhanala Venkata Rao and Mr. Mopperthy Sudheer
choose not to receive any remuneration for their services rendered to the Company.

Presently, the Company does not have a stock options scheme for its directors.

The remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance, based on review of

achievements. It is aimed at attracting and retaining high calibre talent. The Remuneration and
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Nomination Policy is displayed on the Company’s website at
http://www.pharmaids.com/policies.html

9. General Body Meetings

The Annual General Meetings (AGMs) for Financial Year ended March 31, 2020; March 31, 2021
and March 31, 2022 was held through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means
(OAVM) as detailed below:

Financial Year Date of Da Time Special Resolutions passed at the
i
ended AGM o AGM by the Shareholders

March 31,2022 | 20-08-2022| Saturday| 12.00 | Special Resolution was passed at the
PM. | AGM.

e Alteration to Memorandum to
bring in line with Companies Act,
2013 and other changes.

e Adoption of new set of Articles of
Association to bring it in line with
Companies Act, 2013.

e Change in Registered Office of the
Company.

e Increase of Authorised Share
Capital of the Company.

e Issue of Share Warrants on
Preferential Basis.

31 March 2021 | 25-09-2021| Saturday| 12:00 | No Special Resolution was passed at

P.M. | the AGM.

31% March 2020 | 17-09-2020| Thursday| 12:00 | No Special Resolution was passed at
P.M. | the AGM.

During the year, the Company has not passed any Resolution(s) through Postal Ballot.
10. Means of Communication

1. Quarterly Results:

The Quarterly, Half — Yearly and Annual Results of the Company were normally published by
the Company in the newspapers within 48 hours from the conclusion of the Board Meeting.

The Annual Reports with the Audited Financial Statements are sent to the Shareholders through
the permitted mode.
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2. Newspapers wherein Financial Results normally published:

The Results are normally published by the Company in the newspapers in English version as well
as in Regional Newspaper in the Vernacular language in all editions. During the year under
review, the financial results of the companywas published in The Indian mail (English Daily) and
Nava Telangana (Telugu Daily) except the Annual Results, which was published in The Business
Standard (English) and Hosa Diganta (Kannada Daily) due to change in Registered Office of the
Company from the state of Telangana to the State of Karnataka.

3. Any website, where displayed:

The Results are also displayed on the Company’s website: www.pharmaids.com.

4. Whether it also displays official news releases:

The Newsletters and Press Releases from time to time were also displayed on the Company’s
Website. News items are sent to the BSE Limited, where Shares of the Company are Listed, and
the Exchange displays the same on their website.

11. General Shareholder information

a. The 34™ Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on September 22, 2023 at Bengaluru
through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) pursuant tothe MCA
Circular dated December 28, 2022 and as such there is no requirement to have venue for theAGM.
For details, please refer to the Notice of this AGM.

S. No. Particulars Information

1 Financial Calendar April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023

2 Results for the Quarter ending

e June 30, 2022 July 22, 2022
e September 30, 2022 November 9, 2022
e December 31, 2022 February 13, 2023
e March 31, 2023 May 29, 2023
3 Cut off Date September 15, 2023
4 Dividend Payment Date NA

BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street Mumbai- 400001

6 Stock Code 524572
7 ISIN Code (NSDL/CDSL) INE117D01018

5 Listing on Stock Exchange(s)

b. The Listing Fees for the Year 2022-23 has been paid to the above Stock Exchange.
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c. Market Price Data and Performance in comparison to Broad Based Indices i.e., SENSEX.
d. The Equity Shares of the Company were listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) on 13" July 1994,

The Monthly high and low of the Market Price of the Equity Shares of the Company having a
Face Value of Rs.10/- each on the BSE for the period from 1% April 2022 to 31% March 2023 and
comparison of performance to broad based indices i.e., SENSEX are as follows:

Month BSE SENSEX PPL Share Price Number of | Turnover
Shares
High Price | Low Price | High Price | Low Price Traded (Rs.)
April 2022 60,845.10 56,009.07 17.40 11.51 7,72,689 1,13,25,348
May 2022 57,184.21 52,632.48 14.36 11.00 2,86,797 35,33,764
June 2022 56,432.65 50,921.22 13.00 10.17 17,58,865 2,09,71,475
July 2022 57,619.27 52,094.25 14.40 10.40 3,92,397 47,28,104
August 2022 | 60,411.20 57,367.47 14.79 12.12 2,05,537 26,75,690
September 60,676.12 56,147.23 14.50 12.90 2,60,190 35,59,542
2022
October 60,786.70 56,683.40 14.50 13.13 2,30,472 31,86,592
2022
November 63,303.01 60,425.47 19.73 11.00 6,90,194 1,11,51,716
2022
December 63,583.07 59,754.10 3245 16.00 12,99,272 3,44,82,222
2022
January 2023 | 61,343.96 58,699.20 28.75 24.60 1,56,992 41,93,786
February 61,682.25 58,795.97 31.10 26.75 1,07,979 31,77,444
2023
March 2023 | 60,498.48 57,084.91 27.00 21.81 40,389 9,37,868

I. Registrar and Transfer Agents and place for acceptance of documents:

M/s. Venture Capital & Corporate Investments Private Limited are the Registrar and Transfer
Agent of the Company —

Address: "Aurum", Door No.4-50/P- 1I/57/4F & 5F, Plot No.57, 4th & 5th Floors, Jayabheri
Enclave Phase - Il Gachibowli, Telangana, Hyderabad - 500 032.

Phone No.: 040-23818475, 23868257, 35164940 E-mail: investor.relations@yvccipl.com

Website: https://www.vecipl.com/index.html
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I1. Share Transfer System

The transfer of Demat Shares is done through the Depositories with no involvement of the
Company. Asregards, Transfer of Shares held in Physical Form, the Transfer Documents can be
lodged with M/s Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Pvt Ltd at the above-mentioned
address.

Hence, Shareholders holding Shares in Physical Form are requested to arrange for
Dematerialisation of Shares at earliest to avoid any inconvenience for transferring those Shares.

III.Shareholding Pattern of the Company and Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2023

Category Category of Shareholder Number of | Total Number | As a percentage
Code Shareholders of Shares of (A+B+C)
(A) Promoter and Promoter Group 22 21,38,711 9.95%
(D) Indian - - -
2) Foreign - - -
Total (A) 22 21,38,711 9.95%
(B) Public Shareholding
(D) Institutions - - -
2) Non-Institutions 7,739 1,93,47,523 90.05%
Total (B) 7,739 1,93,47,523 90.05%
©) Shares held by Custodians, - - -
against which Depository
Receipts have been issued
(D Promoter and Promoter Group - - -
2) Public - - -
Grand Total (A+B+C) 7,761 2,14,86,234 100%
IV. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2023
S No Category Cases % of Cases Amount % Amount
1 Up to 1 —5,000 7632 98.22% 22,23,243 10.35%
2 5,001 — 10,000 55 0.71% 3,93,316 1.83%
3 10,001 —20,000 39 0.50% 6,09,648 2.84%
4 20,001 — 30,000 11 0.14% 2,64,545 1.23%
5 30,001 — 40,000 3 0.04% 1,09,594 0.51%
6 40,001 — 50,000 5 0.06% 2,31,318 1.08%
7 50,001 - 1,00,000 9 0.12% 6,08,363 2.83%
8 1,00,001 and above 16 0.21% 1,70,46,207 79.33%
Total 7770 100.00% 2,14,86,234 100.00%

a. Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity:

As on March 31, 2023; 2,04,04,183 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each representing 94.96 % of the
Total Number of Shares are in Dematerialised Form. The Company’s Shares are to be
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compulsorily traded in Dematerialised form and are available for dematerializing on both the
Depositories in India viz. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

The Company’s Equity Shares are regularly traded on BSE in Dematerialised form. Under the
Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the
Company’s Equity Shares is INE117D01018.

b. Outstanding GDR / ADR / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments:

The Board of the Company at its meeting held on October 13, 2022, had allotted 37,00,000 share
warrants having face value of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 5/- (Rupees Five Only) convertible
within a period of 18 months from the date of allotment of warrants, as per terms and conditions
approved in AGM held on August 20, 2022, upon receiving of upfront 25% of the total
consideration to five allottees.

The company received the request letter intending to convert the share warrants and remaining
75% of the total consideration from the following three allottees:

Price Remaining
. . of Equi
SL Name of the No. of No. of Equity per Total Application 75%
Warrant Warrants | Shares upon . . .
No. . warrant Consideration Money (Rs.) Received
Holder/Allottee Held Conversion
(Rs.) (Rs.)
1. Venu Madhava 4,25,000 4,25,000 15.00 63,75,000 15,93,750 47,81,250
Kaparthy
2. Balagangadhara | 6,50,000 6,50,000 15.00 97,50,000 24,37,500 73,12,500
BC
3. Shankarppa 17,00,000 17,00,000 15.00 2,55,00,000 63,75,000 1,91,25,000
Nagaraja Vinaya
Babu
TOTAL 27,75,000 27,75,000 15.00 4,16,25,000 1,04,06,250 | 3,12,18,750

As on March 31, 2023, the Company have Outstanding Warrants from the remaining following
two allottees:

SL Name of the No. of No. of Price Total Application | Remainin
No. Warrant Warrants Equity per Consideration | Money (Rs.) g75%
Holder/Allottee Held Shares upon | warrant Received
Conversion (Rs.) (Rs.)
l. S Prasad 4,25,000 4,25,000 15.00 63,75,000 15,93,750 -
2. Mini Manikantan 5,00,000 5,00,000 15.00 75,00,000 18,75,000 -
TOTAL 9,25,000 9,25,000 15.00 13,87,5000 34,68,750 -

c. Registered Office: Unit 201, 2nd Floor, Brigade Rubix, 20/14 HMT Factory Main Road,
Peenya Plantation, Bangalore, Karnataka 560013.

d. Name and Designation of Compliance Officer: Mr. Kaushik Kumar, Company Secretary, is
designated as the Compliance Officer of the Company.
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e. Address for Correspondence: Unit #201, Brigade Rubix, 20/14, HMT Factory Road, Peenya
Plantation, Bangalore 560013.

f.  There is no Commodity Price Risk or Hedging Activities involved or applicable.

12. Other Disclosures

a. There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial
year as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulation
and hence do not attract obligation for making disclosure under the said provision. The
Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions. The Policy is
available on the website of the Company viz. http://www.pharmaids.com/policies.html

b. There were no cases of non — compliance by the Listed Entity, no penalties and strictures were
imposed on the Listed Entity by the Stock Exchange(s) or the Board or any Statutory
Authority, on any matter related to Capital Markets, during the last three years.

c. The Whistle Blower (Vigil) Mechanism provides a channel to the Employees to report to the
Management concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Codes of Conduct or Policy and also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization
of Employees by giving them direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in
exceptional cases. No person has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

d. The Policy covers malpractices and events which have taken place / suspected to have taken
place, misuse or abuse of authority, fraud or suspected fraud, violation of Company Rules,
manipulations, negligence causing danger to public health and safety, misappropriation of
monies, and other matters or activity on account of which the interest of the Company is
affected and formally reported by Whistle Blowers concerning its Employees. The Whistle
Blower Policy of the Company is also posted on the website of the Company
http://www.pharmaids.com/policies.html

e. The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

f.  The Policy for determining the Material Subsidiaries and RPT can be accessed at company
website http://www.pharmaids.com/policies.html

g. There is no Commodity Price Risk or Hedging Activities involved or applicable.

h. During the Year under review, vour Company has raised Funds through Preferential
Allotment. The Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or
qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A) are provided below:
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Original Object

Modifie
d
Object,
if any

Original
Allocation

Modified
allocation,
if any

Funds
Utilised

Amount of
Deviation/Variatio
n for the quarter
according to
applicable object

Allotment of
37,00,000 convertible
share warrants
having a face value of
Rs. 10/- (Ten) each at
a premium of Rs. 5/-
(Five) each on
preferential basis on
13™ October 2022.

To meet Working
Capital Requirements
and part-finance the
business expansion
programme

NA

1,38,75,000/

NA

1,38,75,000/

NA

Allotment of Equity
Shares, consequent to
the conversion of
27,75,000 Share
warrants issued on
preferential basis.

To meet Working
Capital Requirements
and part-finance the
business expansion
programme

NA

3,12,18,750/

NA

3,12,18,750/

NA

Allotment of 84,00,000
equity shares at the
face value of Rs. 10/-
each at a premium of

Rs. 10/~ each on
preferential issue
basis

General Business
Purpose, Business

Expansion & Working
Capital Requirement

NA

16,80,00,000
/-

NA

4,07,16,242/

NA

Kashinath Sahu & Co., Company Secretaries, has issued a certificate as required under the
Listing Regulations, confirming that none of the directors on the Board of the Company has
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of companies by
the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate is

enclosed at the end of this report.
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j.  All the recommendation of committees of the Board, were accepted by the Board during the
year under review.

k. Total fees paid by the entity and its subsidiary on consolidated basis to the statutory auditors
is Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only).

l. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has adopted a Policy in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there
under and has constituted Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) under the said Act. No
complaint has been received by the ICC, during the Year as under:

Number of Complaints filed during the Financial Year Nil
Number of Complaints disposed of during the Financial Year Nil
Number of Complaints pending as on end of the Financial Year Nil

m. The Company does not have any ‘Loans and advances’ in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount.

n. The Company does not have any material subsidiaries.

13. There was no non- compliance by the Company under any requirements of Corporate
Governance Report as specified in sub-paras (2) to (10) of Para C of Schedule V of SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015.

14. Disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation
17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46:

SI. Particulars Resulation Compliance status
No. 5 (Yes/No/NA)

Independent director(s) have been
1 appointed in terms of specified criteria of 16(1)(b) & 25(6) Yes
‘independence’ and/or ‘eligibility’

17(1), 17(1A) &

2 Board composition 17(1B) Yes
3 Meeting of Board of directors 17(2) Yes
4 Quorum of Board meeting 17(2A) Yes
5 Review of Compliance Reports 17(3) Yes
6 Plan§ for orderly succession for 17(4) Yes
appointments
7 Code of Conduct 17(5) Yes
8 Fees/compensation 17(6) Yes
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9 Minimum Information 17(7) Yes

10 Compliance Certificate 17(8) Yes

11 Risk Assessment & Management 17(9) Yes

12 Pe?rformance Evaluation of Independent 17(10) Yes
Directors

13 Recommendation of Board 17(11) Yes

14 Maximum number of Directorships 17A Yes

15 Composition of Audit Committee 18(1) Yes

16 Meeting of Audit Committee 18(2) Yes

17 Compositi.on of norn'ination & 19(1) & (2) Yes
remuneration committee

13 Quorurp of Nom?nation and Remuneration 192A) Yes
Committee meeting

19 Meetin.g,y of Nomination and Remuneration 19(3A) Yes
Committee
Composition of Stakeholder Relationship 20(1),202) &

20 . Yes
Committee 20(2A)

21 Meeting of Stakeholders Relationship 203A) Yes
Committee

iti le of risk t

2 Comp951 ion and role of risk managemen 21(12).03).(4) NA
committee

23 Meeting of Risk Management Committee 21(3A) NA

24 Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes

25 | Policy for related party Transaction 23(1),(12)(,2?),(6),(7) Yes
Prior or Omnibus approval of Audit

26 Committee for all related party 23(2), (3) Yes
transactions

27 Approvz.il for material related party 23(4) NA
transactions

)3 Disclo.sure of relfdted party transactions on 23(9) Yes
consolidated basis

79 Corpposfuon qf Board'o'f Directors of 24(1) NA
unlisted material Subsidiary

30 Other Corporate Governance requirements | 24(2),(3),(4),(5) & NA
with respect to subsidiary of listed entity (6)

31 Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 24(A) Yes

32 Alternate Director to Independent Director 25(1) NA

33 Maximum Tenure 25(2) Yes

34 Meeting of independent directors 25(3) & (4) Yes

35 Familiarization of independent directors 25(7) Yes

36 Declaration from Independent Director 25(8) & (9) Yes
D I for I t

37 .& O Insurance for Independen 25(10) NA
Directors

38 Memberships in Committees 26(1) Yes
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Affirmation with compliance to code of
conduct from members of Board of

2 Y

39 Directors and Senior Management 63) ©s
Personnel

40 Pélicy with respe.ct to Obligations of 26(2) & 26(5) Yes
directors and senior management

41 Details of business 46(2)(a) Yes

4 Terms and cor?ditions of appointment of 46(2)(b) Yes
independent directors
Composition of various committees of

43 board of directors 46(2)(©) Yes

44 CO('le of conduct of board of directors and 46(2)(d) Yes
senior management personnel
Details of establishment of vigil

4 46(2 Y

> mechanism/ Whistle Blower policy 62)(e) ©s

46 Criterifl of r'naking payments to non- 46(2)(f) NA
executive directors

47 Policy qn dealing with related party 46(2)(g) Yes
transactions

43 Policj,y'fo? determining ‘material’ 46(2)(h) Yes
subsidiaries

49 Petails of fa@iliarization Programmes 46(2)(i) Yes
imparted to independent directors
Contact information of the designated
officials of the listed entity who are .

50 . .. . 46(2 Y
responsible for assisting and handling 2)0) ©s
investor grievances

51 email address for grievance redressal and 46(2)(K) Yes
other relevant details

52 Financial results 46(2)(1) Yes

53 Shareholding pattern 46(2)(m) Yes
Details of agreements entered into with

54 the media companies and/or their 46(2)(n) NA
associates etc.

Schedule of analyst or institutional
investor meet and presentations made

55 by the listed entity to analysts or 46(2)(0) NA
institutional investors simultaneously with
submission to stock exchange

56 NeYV name and the old name of the listed 46(2)(p) NA
entity

57 Advertisements as per regulation 47 (1) 46(2)(q) Yes
Separate audited financial statements of

59 each subsidiary of the listed entity 46(2)(s) NA

in respect of a relevant financial year
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Whether company has provided

60 information under separate section on its Yes
website as per Regulation 46(2)

61 Materiality Policy as per Regulation 30 Yes

6 D1V1den.d Distribution p(.>11cy as per NA
Regulation 43 A (as applicable)
It is certified that these contents on the

63 . . . Yes
website of the listed entity are correct

15. The Wholetime Director and the Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board in
accordance with Regulation 17(8) and 33(2) (a) of SEBI Listing Regulations pertaining to CEO

/ CFO certification for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023.

16. Compliance Certificate from M/s Kashinath Sahu & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries,
regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance has been annexed to report.

17. Equity Shares in the Suspense Account

In accordance with the requirement of Regulation 34(3) and Part F of Schedule V to the SEBI
Listing Regulations, details of Equity Shares in the Suspense Account are as follows:

S1

No.

Particulars

Number of
Shareholders

Number of Equity
Shares

1.

Aggregate Number of Shareholders and
the Outstanding Shares in the Suspense
Account as on April 1, 2022

4

80520

Shareholders who approached the
Company for transfer of Shares from
Suspense Account during the Year

Shareholders whose Shares are transferred
to the Demat Account of the IEPF
Authority as per Section 124 of the Act

Aggregate Number of Shareholders and
the Outstanding Shares in the Suspense
Account as on March 31, 2023

80520

Note: Voting rights in respect of these shares will remain frozen till the time such shares are
transferred from the Unclaimed Suspense Account to the concerned shareholder.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Venu Madhava Kaparthy
Whole Time Director
(DIN: 00021699)

Date: 29.08.2023
Place: Bangalore
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

[Under Regulation 34(3) Read with Schedule — V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To
The Members of
Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

1. I have examined the compliances of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Pharmaids
Pharmaceuticals Limited (“the Company”) for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 as
stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and
paras C, D and E of Schedule — V of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’).

2. The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management and our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof
adopted by the Company for ensuring the Compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of
the Company.

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and the representation made by the Management, I certify that the Company has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing
Regulations.

4. 1 further state that such Compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For M/s Kashinath Sahu & Co

Practising Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS Kashinath Sahu

(Proprietor)

FCS: 4790 CP: 4807

Place: Hyderabad UDIN: F004790E000845731
Date: 23.08.2023 Peer Review No: 2957 / 2023
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DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT
AND ETHICS

To
All the members of
Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

It is hereby certified and confirmed that as provided in terms of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board members and
the Senior Management personnel of the Company have aftfirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Venu Madhava Kaparthy Sadhanala Venkata Rao
Whole Time Director Director
(DIN: 00021699) (DIN: 02906370)

Place: Bangalore
Date: 29.08.2023
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CERTIFICATE OF NON — DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Sub-clause 10(i) of Clause C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To

The Members,

Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

I have examined the relevant Registers, Records, Forms, Returns and Disclosures received from the
Directorsof Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited (CIN: L52520KA1989PLC173979) and having the
Registered Office located at Unit 201, 2™ Floor, Brigade Rubix, 20/14, HMT Watch Factory Road,
Peenya Plantation, Bangalore — 560093, Karnataka, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Company’) produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in
accordancewith Regulation 34(3) read with Sub-clause 10(i) of Clause C of Schedule — V of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) Status at the portal: www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and
explanationsfurnished by the Company, I hereby certify that None of the Directors on the Board
of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as the Directors of the Companies by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other
Statutory Authority.

SL. Name of the Director Designation DIN
No
1 | Venu Madhava Kaparthy Executive Director 00021699
2 | Venkata Rao Sadhanala Non-Executive Non- Independent Director 02906370
3 | Mini Manikantan Executive Director 09663184
4 | Pattamadai Natarajasarma Independent Director 00049992
Vijay
5 | Methuku Nagesh Independent Director 01634324
6 | Mopperthy Sudheer Independent Director 00404917

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the

responsibilityof the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these, based on our verification. This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability

of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For M/s Kashinath Sahu & Co

Practising Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS Kashinath Sahu

(Proprietor)

FCS: 4790 CP: 4807

Place: Hyderabad UDIN No.: F004790E000845729

Date: 23.08.2023 Peer Review No. 2957/2023
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WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR AND CFO CERTIFICATION

To
Board Of Directors
Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

Compliance Certificate as required under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

We hereby certify that:

A. We have reviewed Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, and
that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading.

2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violates of the Company’s code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee.

1. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year
Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements; and

3. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any,
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control
system over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Venu Madhava Kaparthy Balagangadhara B C
Date: 23.08.2023 Whole Time Director Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bangalore (DIN:00021699)
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
&
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNDER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

(STANDALONE)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of
Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us except for thunder
section 133 of the Act, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (Financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2023,
and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide abasis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
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responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
(financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report on Standalone
Financials that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or override internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the Directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section164(2) of the Act;

f) we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as on March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
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of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report as per Annexure B expressed
unmodified opinion; and

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rulel 1
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March
31,2023;

i1) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2023;

111) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023; and

1v)

e The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Notes to the Accounts, No Funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from Borrowed Funds or Share Premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other Person(s) or Entity(ies), including Foreign Entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

e The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Notes to the Accounts, No Funds have been received by the Company from
any Person(s) or Entity(ies), including Foreign Entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

e Based on such Audit Procedures that the Auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement.

e The Company has not declared Dividend and nor paid during the year.

For PPKG & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 009655S

Sd/-

Girdhari Lal Toshniwal
Partner

Membership No: 205140

UDIN: 23205140BGUNKB7110

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 29" August 2023
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Annexure — A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of M/s Pharmaids
Pharmaceuticals Limited, on the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Standalone

Financial Statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to

us and the Books of Accounts and other records examined by us in the normal course of Audit, and to the best
of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Fixed Assets.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Fixed Assets under which Fixed
Assets are verified in a phased manner over a period.

The Title Deeds of all the Immovable Properties (which are included under the head (‘Property, Plant
and Equipment”) are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment’s during the year.

As per the information given to us there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules
made there under.

The Management has conducted physical verification of Inventory at regular intervals of time.
The Company has not availed any Financial Assistance from any Bank or Financial Institutions.
There was no Inventory Lying with the company at the end of the Financial Year.

The Company has not granted any Loans, secured or unsecured, to any Companies, Firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties, but the Company has invested the amount in the Partnership for
stake of 25.5%.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 in respect of the
Investments and Loans. Further, in our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transaction
covered under Section185 and Section 186 of the Act in respect of Guarantees and Security.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any Deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the

provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

The provisions of Section 148 are not applicable to the Company.

a. Undisputed Statutory Dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax,

Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other Material Statutory Dues, as applicable,
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

b. There is no Dues outstanding in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs

on account of disputes:

All the transactions recorded in the books of account have been disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

89




(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

a.  The Company has not defaulted in repayment of Loans or Borrowings to any Bank during the Year
under review. The Company has No Loans or Borrowings payable to Financial Institutions or
Government and does not have any Outstanding Debentures during the year.

b. The Company is not declared Wilful Defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution or other
Lender.

c. The Company has not raised any Term Loan from any Bank or Financial Institution.

d. To the extent of our check, no funds raised by the Company for short-term has been utilized for
long term purposes.

e. The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its Subsidiaries, Associates or Joint Ventures.

f.  The Company has not raised loans during the Year on the Pledge of Securities held in its
Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies.

a. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer
during the year under review, but there is an increase in Authorised Capital as well as paid up share
capital and the requisite details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable IndAs.

b. The Company has made Preferential Allotment or Private Placement of Shares or Convertible
Debentures during the year under review. (Please Find below details of the Private Placement of
shares during the year under review)

1.  On Octoberl3, 2022, the company allotted 37,00,000 convertible share warrants with a face
value of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 5/- each on a preferential basis. The company
received Rs. 1,38,75,000/- (25% of the total consideration of Rs. 5,55,00,000/-) on the date of
allotment.

2. During the year under review the Company allotted 27,75,000 Equity Shares (consequent to
the conversion of 27,75,000 share warrants out of 37,00,000 share warrants allotted on October
13, 2022) having face value of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 5/- each on preferential basis.

3. OnJanuary 17,2023, Company Allotted 84,00,000 equity shares at face value of Rs. 10/- each
at a premium of Rs. 10/- each on preferential basis.

a. In our opinion, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year under review.

b. No Report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
Auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government.

c. No Whistle Blowers Complaints were received during the year under review.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company, and accordingly, provisions of Clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the Related Parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial
Statements etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

The Company has established an Internal Audit System commensurate with the size and nature of its
Business. However, the Statutory Auditor did not consider the reports of the Internal Auditor for the
Audit Period.
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(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xx1)

In our opinion, the Company has not entered in any non-cash transactions with the Directors or persons
connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv)
of the order are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the Financial Year and in the immediately preceding
Financial Year.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company has not resigned during the year.

On the basis of the Financial Ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of Financial Assets and
payment of Financial Liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements, the
Auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and the Management’s plans, the Auditor is of the
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the Audit Report and that the Company is
capable of meeting its Liabilities existing at the Date of Balance Sheet, as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the Balance Sheet Date.

The Company is not liable to contribute under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.Accordingly,
the provisions of Clause 3(xx) of the order are not applicable.

There has been no qualifications and adverse remarks by the respective Auditors in the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) Reports of the Companies to be included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

For PPKG & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 009655S

Sd/-

Girdhari Lal Toshniwal

Partner

Membership No. 205140

Date: 29" August 2023
Place: Hyderabad
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Annexure — B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of M/s Pharmaids
Pharmaceuticals Limited, on the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

Opinion

1. In conjunction with our Audit of the Financial Statements of M/s Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited
(‘the Company’) as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘IFCoFR”) of the Company as at that date.

2. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the
Internal Control over Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the
essential components of Internal Control as stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial
Controls based on the Internal Control Over Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of Internal Control, as stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India(‘ICAI’).These responsibilities include the Design, Implementation and
Maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s Business, including adherence to the Company’s
Policies, the Safeguarding of its Assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the Accounting Records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our Audit. We
conducted our Audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI and deemed to
be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an Audit of the IFCoFR,
and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

5. Our Audit involves performing procedures to obtain Audit Evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our Audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of
IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of the Internal Controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the Auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

6. We believe that the Audit Evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. A Company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of Financial Reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance
with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A Company's IFCoFR include those policies and
procedures that

(i)  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the Assets of the Company;

(il))  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of Management and Directors of the Company; and

(i) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's Assets that could have a material effect on the
Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

8. Because of the Inherent Limitations of the IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
Management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk
that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the Policies or Procedures may deteriorate.

For PPKG & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 009655S

Sd/-

Girdhari Lal Toshniwal
Partner

Membership No. 205140
Date: 29" August 2023
Place: Hyderabad
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PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH 2023

(Amount in Rs.'000)

As at As at
ASSETS Noteno. | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 1,061.13 305.93
Capital Work in Progress 2 20,000.00 4,500.00
Financial assets
- Non-Current Assets - -
- Trade and other receivables 3 6,689.19 14,162.01
- Long-term loans and advances 4 14,716.44 61,923.28
- Others
Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 27,075.04 3,555.18
Other non-current assets 6 1,206.00 -
Current assets
Inventories 7 - 8,876.33
Financial assets
- Trade and other receivables 8 13,853.32 13,386.77
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,27,541.67 4,074.46
- Short term loans and advances
Investments 10 32,704.00 -
Other current assets 11 678.56 338.58
TOTAL ASSETS 2,45,525.35 1,11,122.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 12 2,14,438.19 1,02,688.19
Other equity
- Equity component of other financial instrument
- Retained earnings 13 6,346.00 (15,972.41)
Share Warrants application money 3,468.75
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Long term borrowings - -
Long term provisions - -
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - -
Other non-current liabilities - -
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Short term borrowings -
- Trade and other payables 14 18,830.66 23,057.53
Other current liabilities 15 2,441.75 1,349.23
Short-term provisions -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,45,525.35 1,11,122.54
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OTHER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Contingent Liabilities 1,366.44

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1to35
As per our report of even date attached

For PPKG & CO For Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 009655S
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Girdhari Lal Toshniwal Venu Madhava Kaparthy Venkata Rao
Sadhanala
Partner Director Director
M No. 205140 DIN: 00021699 DIN: 02906370
Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Bengaluru Kaushik Balagangadhara
Kumar B.C
Date: 29-08-2023 Company Secretary Chief Financial
Officer
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PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31%* March 2023
(Amount in Rs. '000)

For the year For the year
Particulars Note no. ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from operations 16 39,392.62
Other income 17 151.09
Total revenue 39,543.71
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Purchase of stock-in-trade 18 40,899.84
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in 19 8,876.33 -5,185.17
progress and stock-in-trade
Employee benefit expenses 20 11,310.04 444.00
Finance cost 21 46.29 27.36
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1 167.95 92.00
Other expenses 22 78,675.84 1,863.02
Total expenses 99,076.45 38,141.04
Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax -99,076.45 1,402.67
Exceptional items
Profit/ (loss) before tax -99,076.45 1,402.67
Tax expenses 23 -23,519.86 -48.76

Current Tax

Deferred Tax -23,519.86 -48.76
Profit/ (loss) for the period from continuing -75,556.59 1,451.43
operations

Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations

Tax expense of discontinued operations

Profit/ (loss) from discounting operations (after tax)
Profit/ (loss) for the period -75,556.59 1,451.43
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period -75,556.59 1,451.43
(Profit/ loss + other comprehensive income)
Earnings per equity share (for continuing
operations) (in Rupees)

a) Basic -5.86 0.14
b) Diluted -5.86 0.14
Earnings per equity share (for discontinued
operations) (in Rupees)

a) Basic

b) Diluted

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued &
continuing operations) (in Rupees)

a) Basic

b) Diluted
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For PPKG & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 009655S

Sd/-
Girdhari Lal Toshniwal

Partner
M No. 205140

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29-08-2023

1to 35

For. Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

Sd/-
Venu Madhava
Kaparthy
Director
DIN: 00021699

Sd/-
Kaushik Kumar
Company Secretary
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Venkata Rao Sadhanala

Director
DIN: 02906370

Sd/-
Balagangadhara B.C
Chief Financial Officer




PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement For the Year Ended 31° March 2023

(Amount in Rs.'000)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activates

Net Profit Before Tax and Extra Ordinary Items
Adjustment For

Depreciation

Foreign Exchange

Gain or loss of Sale of Fixed assets

Gain or loss of Investment

Finance Cost

Dividend Income

Total Adjustment to Profit/Loss (A)

Adjustment For working Capital Change
Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Inventories
Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Trade Receivables
Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Other Current Assets
Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Trade Payable
Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in other current Liabilities
Adjustment for Provisions

Total Adjustment For Working Capital (B)

Total Adjustment to reconcile profit (A+B)

Net Cash flow from (Used in) operation

Dividend Received

Interest received

Interest Paid

Income Tax Paid/ Refund

Net Cash flow from (Used in) operation before Extra-
Ordinary Items

Proceeds from Extra Ordinary Items
Payment for Extra Ordinary Item

Net Cash flow From operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds From fixed Assets

Proceeds from Investment or Equity Instruments
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Purchase Of Investments or Equity Instruments

Interest received
Dividend Received

Cash Receipt from Sale of Interest in Joint Venture

Cash Payment to acquire Interest in Joint Venture

Cash flow from losing Control of subsidiaries

Cash Payment for acquiring Control of subsidiaries

Proceeds from Govt. Grant

Other Inflow/Outflow Of Cash

Net Cash flow from (Used in) in Investing Activities before
Extra-Ordinary Items

Proceeds from Extra Ordinary Items
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-99076.45 1410.55
167.95 84.12
306.00
46.00
519.95 84.12

8876.00 -5185.17

7006.00 2772.45

45661.00 -584.74

-4227.00 -1562.79
1093.00 373.84
98.40

58409.00 -4088.02

58928.95 -4003.91

-40147.50 -2593.36
46.00

-40193.50 -2593.36

-40193.50 -2593.36

16729.00
32704.00
4665.00
-49433.00 4665.00




Payment for Extra Ordinary Item

Net Cash flow from (Used in) in Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financial Activities

Proceeds From Issuing Shares

Proceeds from Issuing Debenture /Bonds/Notes
Redemption of Preference Share

Redemption of Debenture

Proceeds from other Equity Instruments

Proceeds From Borrowing

Repayment Of Borrowing

Dividend Paid

Interest Paid

Income Tax Paid/Refund

Net Cash flow from (Used in) in Financial Activities before
Extra-Ordinary Items

Proceeds from Extra Ordinary Items

Payment for Extra Ordinary Item

Net Cash flow from (Used in) in Financial Activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents before
effect of exchange rate changes

Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

-49433.00 4665.00

213094.00

213094.00 0.00

213094.00 0.00

123467.50 2071.64

123467.50 2071.64
4074.00 2002.82
127542 4074

As per our report of even date attached
For PPKG & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 0096558

Sd/- Sd/-

Girdhari Lal Toshniwal Venu Madhava
Kaparthy

Partner Director

M No. 205140 DIN: 00021699
Sd/-

Place: Bengaluru Kaushik Kumar

Date: 29-08-2023 Company Secretary
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Director
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Sd/-

Balagangadhara B.C
Chief Financial Officer




PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

Changes in Equity Share Capital (Amount in Rs’000)

Balance on April 1, 2021 1,02,688.19

Changes in equity share capital during prior period errors

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance at the end of March 31, 2022 1,02,688.19

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors

Changes in equity share capital during the period 1,11,750.00
Balance at the end of March 31, 2023 2,14,438.19
Other Equity (Amount in Rs.'000)

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Reserves and Surplus

Share i Total
Particulars . Caplta.l Retained ) Capital .
Capital | redemption . Capital Reserve . equity
Earnings Subsidy
reserve
Bal t 1 April
aanceasal TAPTL 1 102,688 | - (24,783) | 6,365 994 85,264

2021

Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 1,451 - - 1,451
ended 31 March 2022

Other comprehensive
income (net of tax)

1,02,688 | - (23,332) | 6,365 994 86,716
Transactions recorded
directly in equity
Contributions and
distributions:
Nil - - - - -
Balance as at 31
March 2022 1,02,688 | - (23,332) | 6,365 994 86,716
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Reserves and Surplus
. Share Capital Total
Particulars . p i i .
Capital | redemption Retal.ned Capital Reserve Capl.t al equity
Earnings Subsidy
reserve

]235‘;;““ asat1April | o) 688 | - (23332) | 6,365 994 86,716
Total income or losses
for the year ended 31 - (75,557) | 97,875 22,318
March 2023
Other comprehensive
income (net of tax) B
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Shares issued during

the your 1,11,750

2,14,438 | -

(98,888) | 1,04,240

994 1,09,034

Transactions recorded
directly in equity

Contributions and
distributions:

Nil - -

Balance as at 31
March 2023 2,14,438 | -

(98,888) | 1,04,240

994 2,20,784

As per our report of even date attached
For PPKG & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 009655S
Sd/-

Girdhari Lal Toshniwal

Partner

M No. 205140

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29-08-2023

For. Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

Sd/-

Venu Madhava Kaparthy
Director

DIN: 00021699

Sd/-
Kaushik Kumar
Company Secretary
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2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY
INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Ltd (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated in
India in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The registered office of the Company is
located at Unit 201, 2nd floor, Brigade Rubix,20/14 HMT factory Main Road, Peenya Plantation Bangalore KA
560013. The equity shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company is engaged
in the business of Trading and Manufacturing of Generics, Bulk Drugs and Intermediaries, etc.

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized and approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 29th August 2023.

Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial
Statements.

These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The Financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) [Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical cost basis except
for the following:

e Certain Financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value.

e Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value; and

e Contingent Consideration

(ii1) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non- current
classification.
An asset is classified as current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability classified as current when:

e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

e All other liabilities are classified as non- current.

e Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
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2.1 Properties, plant and equipment (PPE) Recognition and initial measurements

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its Working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognized instatement of profit or loss as incurred.

i. Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual values

The classification of Plant and equipment into continuous and non-continuous process is done as per
technical certification and depreciation thereon is provided accordingly.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the Straight Line Method (SLM) method,
computed on the basis of useful lives as estimated by management which coincides with rates prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act,2013.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

ii. De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the other income/other expenses when the asset is derecognized.

2.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group or assets
(cash-generating units).The Company’s corporate assets (eg. Central office building for providing support to
various CGUs) do not generate independent cash flows. To determinate impairment of corporate assets,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate assets belongs.

2.3 Inventories

» Stores & Spares are valued at cost or at net realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost is arrived at Weighted
Average Basis.

» Raw Material, Semi Finished Goods, Finished Goods are valued at Cost or Market Value whichever is
lower. Cost is arrived at FIFO method.

» Obsolescence and Damaged materials are valued at Realizable Value.

2.4 Operating Leases

As a lessee
» Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as a lessee, has substantial risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s inception at the
fire value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding lease rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial
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liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability of each period.

» Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company as lessee are clarified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charges to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases.

As a Lessor

» Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary costs increases. The respective leased assets are
included in the Balance Sheet based on their nature.

Investment and other financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through profit
or loss), and
o those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is
held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company
classifies its debt instruments:

» Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on a debt
instrument that is subsequently measured at amortized cost is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized or impaired.

» Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
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Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in the profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in ‘Other income’.

» Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are

measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement
of Profit and Loss within ‘Other income’ in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in ‘Other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109,’Financial
Instruments’, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

o the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

e retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

o  Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

e Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Income recognition Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions
that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine
fair value include discounted cash flow analysis and available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing
fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

2.5 Derivative instruments

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges.
Derivative instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period, with changes included in
‘Other income’/’Other expenses’

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.7 Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.8 Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.9 Trade payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 90 days of recognition. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

2.10 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which
it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such
as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to
fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognized for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of
an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognized. A gain
or loss not previously recognized by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognized
at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortized while they
are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale continue to be recognized.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

2.12 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

GST, Excise duty is a liability of the Company as a manufacturer, which forms part of the cost of production,
irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Therefore, the recovery of GST, Excise duty flows to the
Company on its own account and hence revenue includes GST, excise duty.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods

have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume
rebates.

Service Revenue
Service income is recognized as per the terms of contracts with the customers when the related services are
performed or the agreed milestones are achieved and revenue includes

Service Tax / GST, wherever applicable.

2.13 Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

2.14 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of aqualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.15 Foreign currency transactions and translation

i. Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee (Rupees or Rs.), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. At the year-end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated
at the year-end exchange rates. The exchange differences arising from settlement of foreign currency
transactions and from the year-end restatement are recognized in profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs, if any, are presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, within ‘Finance costs’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within ‘Other income’/’Other expenses’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair
value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

2.16 Emplovee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled.

Post-employment benefits Defined benefit plans

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in ‘Employee benefits expense’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Re measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. These are included in
retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

The Company has gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on retirement
is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The liability recognized in the
balance sheet for Defined Benefit Plans as the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the
reporting date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of Independent actuaries. Actuarial
gains and losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions under defined contribution plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognized as
expenses for the period in which the employee has rendered the service.
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Other long-term employee benefits

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service.

They are therefore measured annually by actuaries as the present value of expected future payments to be made
in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented under ‘Employee benefit obligations’ (current) in the Balance Sheet if the entity
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

2.17 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except
the ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted for the reporting period.
Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss(either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly inequity.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible temporary difference
will be utilized against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future
operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any
unused tax loss or credit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside
profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss(either in other comprehensive income or inequity).

2.18 Provision and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where
it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or
a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
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2.19 Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized and no longer at the
discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

2.20 Earnings per share

i. Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year

ii. Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take

into account:

1. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares, and

2. the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.21 Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in manufacture of Bulk Drugs & Intermediates which in the context of Accounting
Standard — 17 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is considered as a single segment.

2.22 Recent Accounting Procurements Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 containing the following new amendments to Ind AS for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2019.

Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ eliminates the classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases. All leases
are required to be reported on an entity’s balance sheet as assets and liabilities. Leases are capitalised by
recognising the present value of the lease payments and showing them either as lease assets or together with
property, plant and equipment. If lease payments are made over time, a financial liability representing the future
obligation will be recognized.

Ind AS 116 is effective from 1 April 2019. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the new standard
and there are no material impact to the assets and liabilities recognized in the financial statements, as well as the
statement of profit and loss.

2.23 Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different
than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included
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in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the
financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

e Employee benefits (estimation of defined benefit obligation)

Post-employment benefits represent obligations that will be settled in the future and require assumptions to
project benefit obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future
benefit costs over the employee’s approximate service period, based on the terms of the plans and the
investment and funding decisions made. The accounting requires the Company to make assumptions regarding
variables such as discount rate and salary growth rate. Changes in these key assumptions can have a significant
impact on the defined benefit obligations.

e Impairment of trade receivables

The risk of uncollectibility of trade receivables is primarily estimated based on prior experience with, and the
past due status of, doubtful debtors, based on factors that include ability to pay, bankruptcy and payment
history. The assumptions and estimates applied for determining the provision for impairment are reviewed
periodically.

e Estimation of expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic
obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and equipment.

o Contingencies

Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the uncertainty
inherent in such matters, it is often difficult to predict the final outcome. The cases and claims against the
Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many uncertainties and
complexities, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case/claim, the
jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business, the Company consults with
legal counsel and other experts on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when it is
determined that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the
event an adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclosed.

e Valuation of deferred tax assets

Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary in
nature. Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on management’s assessment of future recoverability of
the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable income in the future, planned
transactions or planned optimizing measures. Economic conditions may change and lead to a different
conclusion regarding recoverability.

e Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using valuation techniques,
including the discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions.
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NOTE. 2: CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Ageing Schedule of Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) - March 2023

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Les than 1 23 More Total
1-2 Years than 3
Year Years
Years
(i) Projects in Progress 20000.00 20000.00
(ii) Projects temporarily suspended 0.00
0 20000.00 0.00 0.00 20000.00

Ageing Schedule of Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) - March 2022

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Les than 1 23 More Total
1-2 Years than 3
Year Years
Years
(i) Projects in Progress 4500.00 4500.00
(i1) Projects temporarily suspended 0.00
0 4500.00 0.00 0.00 4500.00

NOTE NO. 3: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (NON-CURRENT ASSET)

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on 31.03.2023

As on 31.03.2022

Trade Receivables
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good

Less than Six months

More than Six months 14,268.10 14,162.01
Doubtful
14,268.10 14,162.01
Other Receivables:
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good - -
Doubtful
Total Trade Receivable (Gross) 14,268.10 14,162.01
Less: Provision for bad & doubtful debts 7,578.90 B
Total Trade Receivables(net) 6,689.19 14,162.01
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Note:

During the year, the management has reviewed all the receivables and has made attempt to recover the
receivables which were due since long. After persuasion, the management is of opinion that several of
them are unlikely to be recoverable and hence made a provision for the same.

NOTE NO. 4: LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Amount in Rs. '000)

As on
Particulars As on 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Rupees Rupees
Long - Term Loans and Advances:
a) Security Deposit
Secured
Unsecured 850.00 969.54
(Security deposit consist of Sales Tax Deposit, Electricity deposit,
Rent Deposit, Tender deposit and deposit with suppliers)
b) other Long-Term Loans and advances
(Advance recoverable in cash or kind)
Secured
Unsecured 13,866.44 60,953.73
Total Long-Term Loans & Advances 14,716.44 61,923.28

NOTE NO. 5: DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET)
(Amount in Rs. '000)

S. . As on 31.03.2023 As on
No. Particulars 31.03.2022
Rupees Rupees
Opening Deferred tax Asset 3,555.18 3,506.42
I | Add:
Deferred Tax Asset for the year 23,519.86 48.76
Gross Deferred tax Asset 27,075.04 3,555.18

Opening Deferred tax Liability - -
Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences and doubtful - -
debt

Gross Deferred tax Liability - -

Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) - Net 27,075.04 3,555.18
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NOTE NO. 6: OTHER NON- CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on As on
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

1) Other non- current Asset

Preliminary and pre-operative to the extent not written off

1,206.00 -

Total Non-Current Assets

1,206.00 -

NOTE NO. 7: INVENTORIES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on 31-03-2023

As on 31.03.2022

Inventories:

a) Raw materials

Sub Total - -
b) Work - in - progress
Sub Total - -
¢) Finished goods - 8,876.33
Sub Total - 8,876.33
Total Inventories - 8,876.33

Note: The stock which were lying has been expired during the year and not usable for the end consumer,

Hence, the provision has been made and also disposed off.

NOTE NO. 8: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CURRENT ASSETS)

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022

Trade Receivables

Secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good

Less than Six months

More than Six months

13,853.32 13,386.77

Doubtful

13,853.32 13,386.77

Other Receivables:

Secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good

Doubtful

Total Trade Receivable (Gross)

13,853.32 13,386.77

Less: Provision for bad & doubtful debts

Total Trade Receivables(net)

13,853.32 13,386.77

115




16ess'el

$A[qLAIDIAY APLLL [210,

LE€I

SI[(BAIIIY ApE], [EI0,

IUBMO[[/-SS]

QOUBMO[[Y-8S0]

1eess'el

[e)0],

L8E'ET

[e1o]

paiedu yipary
-0]qAI000Y apei] pajndsi(

paxreduwy npar)
-0]qBAI203Y apel] pamdsiq

SR pary ul
95BAIOUT JUEDIJIUGIS ARY YOIYM
-80[qBAI203Y apeI] paindsi(]

ASRYApaI) Ul
0SBAIOUT JUBIJIUSIS QABY YOIYM
-89[qRAIR09Y dpei] paindsiq

POOI) Pa1aPISO)
-0]qeAI209Y] apei] pajndsi

PO0K) PIAPISUO))
-0[qeAI209Y dpei] payndsiq

paieduy jipar)
-50]qeATa09Y apel] paindsipun

paareduy 1pa1)
-50]qBA1209Y apei] pajndsipun

116

PPy
35800 JURITUSIS ALY YOI
-$9]qeA1900Y opei] pandsipup)

ASLEIPaI) Ul
0SBAIOUT JUBIJIUSIS QABY YOIYM
-89[qRAI209Y dpel] payndsipun

€S8l

POO) Pa1apISu0)
$9]qRAI003Y ope1, paindsipun)

LE€I

POOL) PAIaPISUO))
$9[qeAI209Y dpel], pajndsipun

sIeak
guerp
A0

sIeak
£

s1eak 7-]

ek |
- Suou 9

syuou 9
uey) $s7

ang o\

sIe[anIeg

yuauifed yo ayep anp wouy spottad Surmofjoj oy Suipue)synQ

sIeak
¢ uey])
IO\

183k
£

SIBIA 7]

I8k |
- Syjuow 9

syyuow 9
uey) $S]

an( joN

yudwied Jo 9yep anp wouy sporiad Suimojoj 10§ Surpueisng

SIBONIE]

€707/€0/1€ 1 SE A[NPaYS Suady

TL07/£0/1€ 3¢ Se ANPaYag SIS |




NOTE NO. 9: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on 31.03.2023

As on 31.03.2022

Cash and cash equivalents:

a) Balances with banks:

1) On Current Accounts 1,27,510.36 3,397.07
2) On Deposit Accounts 0.00 0.00
b) Cash on hand 31.30 677.39
Total Cash and Cash 1,27,541.67 4,074.46
Equivalents

NOTE NO.10: INVESTMENTS

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Advances

Particulars As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022
Investments _
Anugraha Chemicals 32,704.00
Total Short-Term Loans & 32,704.00 }

Note: The company has invested in, Anugraha Chemicals and obtained a stake of 25.5% as on 01-Feb-

2023.

NOTE NO.11: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount in Rs. '000)

S.

No. Particulars

As on 31.03.2023

As on 31.03.2022

GST Input (Balance with Govt Authorities)

678.56

338.58

678.56

338.58

NOTE NO. 12: SHARE CAPITAL

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on 31.03.2023

As on 31.03.2022

Equity Share Capital
(a) Authorised

CY (3,00,00,000) (PY 11,000,000) Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- each

(b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
(CY 214,86,234 )(PY 10,311,234) Equity Shares
of Rs.10/- each fully paid up.

Less: Calls in Arrear

3,00,000.00

2,14,862.34

424.15

1,10,000.00

1,03,112.34

424.15

Total Equity Share Capital

2,14,438.19

1,02,688.19
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Disclosures:

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at
the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Number of Shares

Number of Shares

Equity Shares of Re.1 0 Each, Fully paid up:

At the Beginning

Issued during the year

Allotted to shareholders of Transferee Company

1,03,11,234.00
1,11,75,000.00 -

1,03,11,234.00

At the end

2,14,86,234.00

1,03,11,234.00

Details of Shareholder holding more than 5% shares of the company:(Refer Note below)

As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022
Name of the share holder No of Shares % of No of % of
Shareholding Shares Shareholding |
Sadhanala Venkata Rao 15,44,995 7.19% 31,08,531 30.15%
Shankarppa Nagaraja Vinaya Babu 52,00,000 24.20% 5,00,000 4.85%
Shreedhara Shetty 46,50,000 21.64% - -
Narasandra Basavarajappa Pradeepkumar 11,25,000 5.24% } B
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As on 31° March 2023 As on 31° March 2022
% Change
SL. No. Promoter name No. of % of total No. of % of total dur;ng the %ear
Shares Shares Shares Shares

1 Prashant H. Dave 10459 0.05 10459 0.10 0.05

2 Ghisulal Jain 36060 0.17 36060 0.35 0.18

3 Veena Lalwani 15645 0.07 15645 0.15 0.08

4 Babulal Jain 0 0.00 6321 0.06 0.06

5 Subhash B Lalwani 32800 0.15 32800 0.32 0.17

6 Suresh Kumar 1000 0.00 1000 0.01 0.01

7 Umadevi Babulal Jain 5452 0.03 5452 0.05 0.03

8 Uttam P Jain 1000 0.00 1000 0.01 0.01

9 Abhilekha Dave 34128 0.16 43745 0.42 0.27

10 Surekha Prashant Dave 700 0.00 700 0.01 0.00
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11 Abhishek Jain 0 0.00 19444 0.19 0.19
12 Peddi Anuradha 56000 0.26 56000 0.54 0.28
13 B. Venkatswamy 1070 0.00 1070 0.01 0.01
14 Sadhanala Venkata Rao 1588526 7.39 3108531 30.15 22.75
15 | Padmaja Kalyani 189096 0.88 189096 1.83 0.95
Sadhanala
16 Viswa Prasad Sadhanala 96400 0.45 96400 0.93 0.49
17 Pilli Meena Kumari 56000 0.26 56000 0.54 0.28
18 Rangoori Kantham 1000 0.00 1000 0.01 0.01
19 Sadhanalla Dara Kalyani 1000 0.00 1000 0.01 0.01
20 Dadi Urmila 25 0.00 25 0.00 0.00
71 Maharani Maheshwari 25 0.00 25 0.00 0.00
Sadhanala
2y | Baghi Rao Pankaj 25 0.00 25 0.00 0.00
Sadhanala
NOTE:
There is a share warrants money which is pending for allotment as below :
SI. No Name Amount (In ‘000)
1 Mini Manikantan 1875.00
2 Prasad Shivarudraiah 1593.75
Total 3468.75
NOTE NO. 13: OTHER EQUITY
(Amount in Rs. '000)
. As on As on
S. No. Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
I Other Equity
a) Capital Subsidy
As at the commencement of the year
993.75 993.75
Add: Additions during the year
Less: Utilised during the year
993.75 993.75
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b) Capital Reserve
As at the commencement of the year
6,365.35 6,365.35
Add: Additions during the year
(Securities Premium)
97,875.00 -
Less: Utilised during the year
1,04,240.35 6,365.35
¢) Surplus :

i) Opening Balance (23,331.51) (24,782.94)
Add: Total comprehensive income during the year (75,556.59) 1,451.43
Less: Bonus shares / ( Forfeiture of Bonus shares) -

(98,888.10) (23,331.51)
Total Reserves and Surplus 6,346.00 (15,972.41)

NOTE NO. 14: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

S. No. Particulars As on As on
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
I Trade Payables
Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Due to Credltors other than Micro Enterprises and Small 18.830.66 23.057.53
Enterprises
Total Trade Payables 18,830.66 23,057.53
Ageing Schedule as at 31/03/2023
(Amount in Rs. “000”)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less 6 23 More More
Not Due than 6 months - | 1-2 years ears than 3 Than 3 Total
months 1 year y years Years
(i) MSME - - - - - - -
(ii) Others - - - 18,831 - - - 18,831
(ii1) Disputed Dues - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues- ) )
Others i ) i ) )
(v) unbilled Dues - - - - - - -
Total - - - 18,831 - - - 18,831
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Ageing Schedule as at 31/03/2022

(Amount in Rs. “000”)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less 6 23 More More
Not Due than 6 | months - | 1-2 years ears than 3 Than 3 Total
months 1 year y years Years
(i) MSME - - - - - - -
(i1) Others - - - 23,058 - - - 23,058
(ii1) Disputed Dues - - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues- i ) ) ) i ) ) i
Others
(v) unbilled Dues - - - - - - - -
Total - - - 23,058 - - - 23,058

Note: As per the details provided by the suppliers, there is no dues to MSME's during the year under review. However,
the company is in process of obtaining the MSME status of its suppliers.

NOTE NO. 15: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars
a) Current maturities of Long-Term Debts
b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
¢) Income received in advance.
d) Unpaid dividend.
e) Other Payables
f) Others
Sales Tax Deferral** (refer note)

As on 31.03.2023

As on 31.03.2022

2,441.75

1,349.23

Total Other Current Liabilities

2,441.75

1,349.23

NOTE NO. 16: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022
Revenue from operations in respect of non-
finance company
(a) Sale of Products - 39,392.62
Total Revenue from Operations - 39,392.62
NOTE NO. 17: OTHER INCOME (Amount in Rs. '000)
Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022
(a)Interest income
(b)Other non-operating income (net of expenses
directly attributed to such income) - 151.09
Total Other Income - 151.09
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NOTE NO. 18: PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022
Purchases during the year - 40,899.84
Purchase return during the year -
Total Purchases - 40,899.84

NOTE NO. 19: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND

STOCK-IN-TRADE

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

Year Ended 31.03.2023

Year Ended 31.03.2022

A. Finished Goods
Finished goods at the beginning of the year

(A+B+C)

8,876.33 3,691.16
Less: Finished goods at the end of the year _ 8.876.33
Sub Total (A) 8,876.33 (5,185.17)
B. Work in progress at the beginning of the year _ )
Less: work in progress at the end of the year _ )
Sub Total (B)
C. Stock-in-trade
Stock at the beginning of the year _ ;
Less: Stock at the end of the year ) )
Sub Total (C) _ )
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories $,876.33 (5,185.17)

NOTE NO. 20: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022
(a) Salaries & Wages 11,310.04 444.00
(b) Contribution to Provident & Other Funds - -
(c) Staff Welfare Expenses - }
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 11,310.04 444.00

NOTE NO. 21: FINANCE COST

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022
(a) Interest Expenses: 13.08
(b) Bank Charges 33.21 27.36
(c) Applicable net gain/loss on foreign currency - -
translations & transactions
Total Finance Cost 46.29 27.36
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NOTE NO. 22: OTHER EXPENSES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022
Advertisement Expenses 56.36 43.14
Annual listing fees - 406.20
Audit Fees 166.30 50.00
e-voting charges - 38.15
Business Promotion 2.36 66.23
CDSL Fees 193.11 -
Conveyance 453.68 -
Directors’ remuneration - 600.00
Electricity Charges 6.88 -
Office Expenses 547.85 42.00
General Expenses 637.81 0.00
Listing/Custody Fee/ Other Charges 1,214.07 -
Postage & Telegram 1.55 409.23
Printing & stationery 159.41 -
Professional Charges 1,879.51 35.00
Rates and Taxes 765.67 -
Rent 1,750.00 120.00
Repairs & Maintenance -others 162.33 -
Roc filing Expenses 371.86 47.10
Telephone & Internet Charges 79.67 5.97
Provision for bad debts 66,569.36
Write Off 3,658.07 -
Round off 0.00 -

Total Other Expenses 78,675.84 1,863.02
Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022

Payment to the Auditor
Statutory Audit

1,17,700

41,300

Total Other Income

1,17,700

41,300

NOTE NO. 23: TAX EXPENSES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

Year Ended 31.03.2023

Year Ended 31.03.2022

Current tax

Deferred tax (23,519.86) (48.76)
Adjustment for previous year tax

- Income Tax paid for earlier year - -
Total Other Income (23,519.86) (48.76)
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NOTE NO. 24: NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS

(Amount in Rs. '000)

24.1 Details of Managerial Remuneration:

Particular Managing Director Executive Director
2022-2023 2021-22 2022-2023 2021-22
Managerial Remuneration 0 0 4364.52 600.00
Total 0 0 4364.52 600.00

24.2 Balance of Trade Payables, Other Current Liabilities, Loans and Advances, and Trade Receivables
are subject to confirmation / reconciliation.

24.3 During the year the company has assessed the recoverability of various assets, including, security
deposits, long term loans and advances, trade receivables, fixed assets, other current liabilities, trade
payables and as per the suggestions of the statutory auditors.

24.4 The Company’s operation mainly consist of only one segment i.e. Drug formulations and therefore
the figures relate to that segment only.

24.5 The previous Years figures have been revoked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever
necessary.

24.6 Related party disclosures (as identified by the management) as per Indian Accounting Standard — 24
are given below:

List of Related Parties:

Directors:

Mr. P N Vijay - Independent Director

Mr. Venu Madhava K - Executive Director

Ms. Mini Manikantan - Executive Director

Mr. Sadhanala Venkata Rao - Non-Executive Director

Mr. Mopperthy Sudheer - Independent Director

Mr. Methuku Nagesh - Independent Director

Mrs. Sadhanala Padmaja Kalyani - Executive Director (Upto 21 May 2022)
Mr. Sadhanala Vishwa Prasad - Executive Director (Upto 9" July 2022)

Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Balagangadhara B.C - Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Kaushik Kumar - Company Secretary

Mr. Chilam Srikanth - Chief Financial Officer (Upto 13th October 2022)
Ms. Annie Jodhani - Company Secretary (Upto 13th October 2022)

(Amount in Rs. '000)

NAME OF THE TRANSACTIONS RELATED TO TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT
THE PARTY PERSONNEL AND THEIR RELATIVES
2022-2023 2021-22
Managerial Remuneration 7356.03 296.00
Venu Madhava K 2700.00 -
Mini Manikantan 1664.52 -
Sadhanala Viswa Prasad - 300.00
Sadhanala Padmaja Kalyani - 300.00
Balagangadhara B.C 1872.58 -
Kaushik Kumar 854.84 -
Chilam Srikanth 63.87 80.00
Annie Jodhani 200.22 216.00
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Consultancy Charges -

P N Vijay 270.00
Methuku Nagesh 169.44
Other Current liabilities
Sadhanala Venkata Rao -

2283.00

NOTE NO. 25: EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

2022-2023

2021-22

The computation of EPS is set out below:
Earning

Net Profit/Loss for the period

Shares

Number of Shares at the Beginning of the period

Add: Issued during the year

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the
period

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period

(75,557)

1,03,11,234
1,11,75,000

2,14,86,234

1,28,96,166

1,451.43

1,03,11,234

1,03,11,234

1,03,11,234

Earnings per share of par value Rs. 10/- Basic &
Diluted (Rs.)

(5.86)

0.14

NOTE NO. 26: In Accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-36) on "Impairment of Assets" the
management during the year carried out exercise of identifying the assets that may have been impaired in respect of
each cash generating unit. On the basis of this review carried out by the management there was no impairment loss

on the Fixed assets during the year ended 31st March 2023.

NOTE NO. 27: CONTINGENT LIABILITY
There is a Dispute regarding BSE for which advance has been given.
NOTE NO. 28: FOREIGN CURRENCY EARNINGS/OUTGOING- NIL

NOTE NO. 29: INCOME TAX

(Amount in Rs. '000)

31-03-2023

31-03-2022

Tax expense/(credit) comprises of:

Current income tax

Deferred tax

(23,519.86)

(48.76)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

(23,519.86)

(48.76)

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of
expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company
at 26% (31st March, 2019: 25.75%) and the reported tax expense in profit or
loss are as follows:

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by
India's tax rate

Profit before tax

(99,076.45)

1,402.67

Tax at the Indian tax rate (26%) (31 March 2020: 25.75%)

Adjustments:

CSR expenses and other donations
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Weighted deduction on research and development expense - -

Tax incentives - -

Capital gain tax - -
MAT credit utilisation - -

Deferred tax assets not recognized / (utilized) 23,519.86 48.76
Effect of change in tax laws and rate in jurisdictions outside India -
Other Adjustments -
Income tax expense (23,519.86) (48.76)

NOTE NO. 30: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s policy is to maintain strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of business.

The Company manages its Capital structure through a balanced mix of debt and equity. The Company’s capital
structure is influenced by the changes in the regulatory frameworks, government policies, available options of
financing and impact of the same on liquidity position.

The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and
cash equivalents. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus
net debt. The table below shows the Gearing ratio for FY 2022-23 and FY 2021-22.

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings 0.00 0.00

Trade Payables 18830.66 23057.53
Other Current Liabilities 2441.75 1349.23

Cash & Cash Equivalents 127541.67 4074.46

Net Debt -106269.25 20,332.30
Equity Capital 115550.09 79356.83
Gearing Ratio -0.92 0%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March,
2023 and 31 March, 2022.

NOTE NO. 31: FAIR VALUES

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

(Amount in Rs. '000)
Particulars Carrying Values Fair Values

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial Assets

Investments 32,704.00 - 32,704.00 -

Other financial
assets
Tax Assets (Net) - - - -

Trade
Receivables
Cash and Cash
Equivalents

- 13,386.77 - 13,386.77

1,27,541.67 4,074.46 1,27,541.67 4,074.46
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Bank balances
other than cash
and cash
equivalents
Other financial
assets

Total

Financial
Liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings

Other non-current
financial - - - -
Liabilities
Current
Borrowings
Trade Payables

678.56 - 678.56 -

1,60,924.23 17,461.23 17,461.23

18,830.66 23,057.53 18,830.66 23,057.53

Other current
financial
Liabilities
Total

2,441.75 1,349.23 2,441.75 1,349.23

21,272.41 24,406.76 21,272.41 24,406.76

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank
overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

NOTE NO. 32: FAIR VALUES HIERARCHY

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three
levels of fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the
measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices(unadjusted) in active markets for the financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using the valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: If One or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3.
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March, 2023:
(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices | Significant Significant
valuation in active Observable Unobservable

markets Inputs (Level | Inputs (Level
(Level 1) 2) 3)

Fair value of financial

assets disclosed

Investments 31-Mar-23 32,704.00 - 32,704.00 -

Other financial assets 31-Mar-23 0.00 - 0.00 -

Tax Assets (Net) 31-Mar-23 0.00 - 0.00 -

Trade Receivables 31-Mar-23 0.00 - 0.00 -

Cash and Cash Equivalents 31-Mar-23 1,27,541.67 - 1,27,541.67 -

Bank balances oth'er than 31-Mar-23 0.00 ) 0.00 i

cash and cash equivalents

Other financial assets 31-Mar-23 678.56 - 678.56 -

Total 1,60,924.23 - 1,60,924.23 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.
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NOTE NO. 33:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at 31 March, 2023:

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices | Significant Significant
valuation in active Observable Unobservable

markets Inputs Inputs (Level 3)
(Level 1) (Level 2)

Fair value of financial

liabilities disclosed

Non-current Borrowings 31-Mar-23 - - 0.00 -

Other non-current 31-Mar-23 - - 0.00 -

financial Liabilities

Current Borrowings 31-Mar-23 - - 0.00 -

Trade Payables 31-Mar-23 18,830.66 - 18830.66 -

Other current financial 31-Mar-23 2,441.75 - 2,441.75 -

Liabilities

Total 21,272.41 - 21,272.41 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March, 2022:

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Date of Total Quoted Significant Significant
valuation pricesin | Observable Unobservable
active Inputs (Level | Inputs (Level 3)
markets 2)
(Level 1)
Fair value of financial
assets disclosed
Investments 31-Mar-22 - - - -
Other financial assets 31-Mar-22 - - - -
Tax Assets (Net) 31-Mar-22 - - - -
Trade Receivables 31-Mar-22 27,548.78 - 27,548.78 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 31-Mar-22 4,074.46 - 4,074.46 -
Bank balances other than 31-Mar-22 - - - -
cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets 31-Mar-22 338.58 - 338.58 -
Total 31,961.82 - 31,961.82 -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at 31 March, 2022:

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Date of | Total Quoted prices | Significant | Significant
valuation in active | Observable | Unobservable

markets (Level | Inputs Inputs (Level
1) (Level 2) 3)

Fair value of financial

liabilities disclosed

Non-current Borrowings 31-Mar-22 - - - -

Other non-current financial | 31-Mar-22 - - - -

Liabilities

Current Borrowings 31-Mar-22 - - - -

Trade Payables 31-Mar-22 18,830.66 | - 18,830.66 -
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Other  current financial | 31-Mar-22 2,441.75 | - 2,441.75 -
Liabilities
Total 21,272.41 | - 21,272.41 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

NOTE NO. 34: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company is exposed to financial risk such as Market Risk (Interest Rate Risk, fluctuation in foreign exchange
rates and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The general risk management program of the Company focuses on
the unpredictability of the financial markets and attempts to minimize their potential negative influence on the
financial performance of the Company. The Company continuously reviews its risk exposures and takes measures to
limit it to acceptable levels. The Board of Directors have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the Company’s risk management framework.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk i.e. interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price
risk. Financial instruments of the Company affected by market risk include borrowings and deposits.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March, 2023 and 31 March, 2022.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-
retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This
is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March, 2023 and 31 March, 2022.

Price risk
Price risk is the risk of fluctuations in the change in prices of equity Investments.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk arising from credit exposure to customers and the counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations.

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy customers/ corporates to minimise collection
losses. Credit Control team assesses the credit quality of the customers, their financial position, past experience in
payments and other relevant factors. Advance payments are obtained from customers in banquets, as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables, advances to suppliers, cash and short-term deposits and interest
receivable on deposits represents company’s maximum exposure to the credit risk. No other financial asset carry a
significant exposure with respect to the credit risk. Deposits and cash balances are placed with Schedule Commercial
banks.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a
large number of minor receivables are assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in
accordance with the Company’s policy.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will have difficulty in raising the financial resources required to fulfil its
commitments.

Liquidity risk is held at low levels through effective cash flow management. Cash flow forecasting is performed
internally by rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity requirements to ensure that it has sufficient cash to meet
operational requirements, to fund scheduled capex and debt repayments and to comply with the terms of financing
documents.
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NOTE NO. 35: RATIOS

Ratio Current | Previous % Reason For Variance
Period Period Variance

The Significant Change in Current ratio
is due to excess increase in Current
Current Ratio (In Times) 8.22 1.09 651.72 Assets of the Company, whereas the
Current Liabilities have been reduced
when compared to Previous Year

The Debt equity ratio in both Financial
Debt Equity Ratio (In Times) 0.00 0.00 0.00 Years remains Nil as there are no Long
Term Debts of the company

The Debt Service Coverage ratio is 0 as
0.00 0.00 0.00 there is no Interest Interest cost included
in total interest

Debts Service Coverage Ratio
(In Times)

Return on Equity has turned is -0.34
Return on Equity Ratio (In %) -0.34 0.02 -1784.63 | because the company has incurred losses
in FY-2022-23

The Inventory Turnover ratio has been
0.00 5.10 -100.00 | reduced from 5.10 to 0 as no sales were
made during FY-2022-23

Inventory Turnover Ratio (In
Times)

The Debtors Turnover ratio has been
0.00 2.08 -100.00 reduced from 2.08 to 0 as no sales were
made during FY-2022-23

Trade Receivable Turnover
Ratio (In Times)

The Creditors Turnover ratio has been
0.00 291 -100.00 reduced from 2.91 to 0 as no sales were
made during FY-2022-23

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio
(In Times)

Net capital Turnover Ratio (In Capital Turnover Ratio is 0 as no sales

Times) 0.00 0.38 -100.00 | were made during
FY-2022-23
The Net Profit ratio is 0 as the company
Net Profit Ratio (In %) 0.00 0.04 100,00 | has incurred Losses in the Current year
and also no sales were made during FY-
2022-23
Return on Capital Employed (In Return on capital Employed is -0.31 as
%) -0.31 0.01 "2436.03 | |5 Sales were made during FY-2022-23
For PPKG & CO For. Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 009655S
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Girdhari Lal Toshniwal Venu Madhava Kaparthy Venkata Rao
Sadhanala
Partner Director Director
M No. 205140 DIN: 00021699 DIN: 02906370
Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Bengaluru Kaushik Kumar Balagangadhara B.C
Date: 29-08-2023 Company Secretary Chief Financial
Officer
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To

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Members of
Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315 March, 2023, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (Financial position) of the Company as at 31st
March,2023, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules there under, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.
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Key Audit Matter How our Audit addressed the key audit

matter
Carrying value of Investment in Discussion with the management on the
Associate entity. development in these matters during year ended

The Company has an investment of March 315, 2023.
Rs.3,27,04,000/- in its  associate
Anugraha chemicals. Review of the disclosures made by the company in
the financial statements in this regard.

Obtain representation letter from the management

on the assessment of these matters.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our
audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
Consolidated Financials that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matters

15. We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of the Associate Company
whose financial statements reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 9.44 Corers
as at March 31, 2023, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of 11.38 Crores and net cash
outflows (before consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs.1877.80 /- for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these Associates and our report in terms of subsection
(3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid Associates is based solely on the
audit reports of the other auditors.

16. Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

18. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) the Consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section164(2) of the Act;

f) we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as on 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report as per Annexure B
expressed unmodified opinion; and

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at
31 March 2023;

ii.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

iii.  there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;
and

iv.  the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes
were applicable for the period from 8"November 2016 to 30"December 2016, which are
not relevant to these Consolidated financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause
is not applicable.
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h) We did not audit the financial statements of Associate Company and Company’s Branches which
are included in the consolidated financial report. These financial statements have been audited by
other auditors whose report have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial reports, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of this associate and Branch is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

19. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its
directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act.

For PPKG & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 009655S

Sd/-

Girdhari Lal Toshniwal
Partner

Membership No.: 205140
UDIN: 23205140BGUNKC9909
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 29" August 2023
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Annexure — A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of M/s Pharmaids
Pharmaceuticals Limited, on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to
us and the Books of Accounts and other records examined by us in the normal course of Audit, and to the best
of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(M)

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Fixed Assets.

b. The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its Fixed Assets under which Fixed
Assets are verified in a phased manner over a period.

c. The Title Deeds of all the Immovable Properties (which are included under the head (‘Property, Plant
and Equipment”) are held in the name of the Company.

d. The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment’s during the year.

e. As per the information given to us there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules
made there under.

(i)

a. The Management has conducted physical verification of Inventory at regular intervals of time.
b. The Company has not availed any Financial Assistance from any Bank or Financial Institutions.
c. There was no Inventory Lying with the company at the end of the Financial Year.

(iii) The Company has not granted any Loans, secured or unsecured, to any Companies, Firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties.

(iv) In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 in respect of the Investments
and Loans. Further, in our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under
Section185 and Section 186 of the Act in respect of Guarantees and Security.

(v) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any Deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) The provisions of Section 148 are not applicable to the Company.

(vii)
a. Undisputed Statutory Dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax,
Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other Material Statutory Dues, as
applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.
b. There is no Dues outstanding in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs on account of disputes:

(viii) All the transactions recorded in the books of account have been disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix)
a. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of Loans or Borrowings to any Bank during the Year
under review. The Company has No Loans or Borrowings payable to Financial Institutions or
Government and does not have any Outstanding Debentures during the year.
b. The Company is not declared Wilful Defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution or other Lender.
c. The Company has not raised any Term Loan from any Bank or Financial Institution.
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(x)

(xi)

To the extent of our check, no funds raised by the Company for short-term has been utilized for long
term purposes.

The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its Subsidiaries, Associates or Joint Ventures.

The Company has not raised loans during the Year on the Pledge of Securities held in its Subsidiaries,
Joint Ventures or Associate Companies.

a. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer during
the year under review, but there is an increase in Authorised Capital as well as paid up share capital and
the requisite details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable IndAs.
b. The Company has made Preferential Allotment or Private Placement of Shares or Convertible
Debentures during the year under review. (Please Find below details of the Private Placement of shares
during the year under review)

1. On October 13, 2022, the company allotted 37,00,000 convertible share warrants with a face
value of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 5/- each on a preferential basis. The company received
Rs. 1,38,75,000/- (25% of the total consideration of Rs. 5,55,00,000/-) on the date of allotment.
2. During the year under review the Company allotted 27,75,000 Equity Shares (consequent to
the conversion of 27,75,000 share warrants out of 37,00,000 share warrants allotted on October
13, 2022) having face value of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 5/- each on preferential basis.
3. OnlJanuary 17,2023, Company Allotted 84,00,000 equity shares at face value of Rs. 10/- each
at a premium of Rs. 10/- each on preferential basis.

In our opinion, no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year under review.

No Report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the Auditors
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

No Whistle Blowers Complaints were received during the year under review.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company, and accordingly, provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion all transactions with the Related Parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the

Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements

etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The Company has established an Internal Audit System commensurate with the size and nature of its
Business. However, we have not considered the reports of the Internal Auditor for the Audit Period.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered in any non-cash transactions with the Directors or persons
connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv)
of the order are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the Financial Year and in the immediately preceding
Financial Year.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company has not resigned during the year.

On the basis of the Financial Ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of Financial Assets and
payment of Financial Liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements, the
Auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and the Management’s plans, the Auditor is of the
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the Audit Report and that the Company is
capable of meeting its Liabilities existing at the Date of Balance Sheet, as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the Balance Sheet Date.

The Company is not liable to contribute under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.Accordingly,
the provisions of Clause 3(xx) of the order are not applicable.

There has been no qualifications and adverse remarks by the respective Auditors in the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) Reports of the Companies to be included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

For PPKG & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 009655S

Sd/-

Girdhari Lal Toshniwal

Partner

Membership No. 205140
UDIN: 23205140BGUNKC9909
Date: 29" August 2023
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Annexure — B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of M/s Pharmaids
Pharmaceuticals Limited, on the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

Opinion

1.

In conjunction with our Audit of the Financial Statements of M/s Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited
(‘the Company’) as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘IFCoFR’) of the Company as at that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the
Internal Control over Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the essential
components of Internal Control as stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial
Controls based on the Internal Control Over Financial Reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of Internal Control, as stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India(‘ICAI’).These responsibilities include the Design, Implementation and
Maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s Business, including adherence to the Company’s
Policies, the Safeguarding of its Assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the Accounting Records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our Audit. We
conducted our Audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI and deemed to
be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an Audit of the IFCoFR, and
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our Audit involves performing procedures to obtain Audit Evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our Audit of [IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of [IFCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of the Internal Controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
Auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the Audit Evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
7. A Company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
Financial Reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with

the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A Company's IFCoFR include those policies and

procedures that

i.  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the Assets of the Company;
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ii.  Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
the Financial Statements in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of Management and Directors of the Company; and\

iii. =~ Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's Assets that could have a material effect on the Financial

Statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
8. Because of the Inherent Limitations of the IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper

Management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that
the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the Policies or Procedures may deteriorate.

For PPKG & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 009655S

Sd/-

Girdhari Lal Toshniwal
Partner

Membership No. 205140

UDIN: 23205140BGUNKC9909
Date: 29" August 2023

Place: Hyderabad
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PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH 2023

(Amount in Rs.'000)

As at As at
ASSETS Note no. Shwareh | 31 March 2022
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 1,061.13 305.93
Capital Work in Progress 2 20,000.00 4,500.00
Financial assets
- Non-Current Assets - -
- Trade and other receivables 3 6,689.19 14,162.01
- Long-term loans and advances 4 14,716.44 61,923.28
- Others
Deferred tax assets (Net) 5 27,075.04 3,555.18
Other non-current assets 6 1,206.00 -
Current assets
Inventories 7 - 8,876.33
Financial assets
- Trade and other receivables 8 13,853.32 13,386.77
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,27,541.67 | 4,074.46
- Short term loans and advances
Investments 10 33,051.96 -
Other current assets 11 678.56 338.58
TOTAL ASSETS 2,45,873.31 | 1,11,122.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 12 2,14,438.19 | 1,02,688.19
Other equity
- Equity component of other financial instrument
- Retained earnings 13 6,693.96 (15,972.41)
Share Warrants application money 3,468.75
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Long term borrowings - -
Long term provisions - -
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - -
Other non-current liabilities - -
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Short term borrowings -
- Trade and other payables 14 18,830.66 23,057.53
Other current liabilities 15 2,441.75 1,349.23
Short-term provisions -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,45,873.31 | 1,11,122.54
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OTHER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Contingent Liabilities 1,366.44
See accompanying notes to the financial 1to 35
statements

As per our report of even date attached

For PPKG & CO For Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 009655S
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Girdhari Lal Toshniwal Venu Madhava Kaparthy Venkata Rao Sadhanala
Partner Director Director
M No. 205140 DIN: 00021699 DIN: 02906370
Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Bengaluru Kaushik Kumar Balagangadhara B.C
Date: 29-08-2023 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31%* March 2023
(Amount in Rs. '000)

For the year For the year
Particulars Note no. ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from operations 16 39,392.62
Other income 17 151.09
Total revenue 39,543.71
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Purchase of stock-in-trade 18 40,899.84
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in 19 8,876.33 -5,185.17
progress and stock-in-trade
Employee benefit expenses 20 11,310.04 444.00
Finance cost 21 46.29 27.36
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1 167.95 92.00
Other expenses 22 78,675.84 1,863.02
Total expenses 99,076.45 38,141.04
Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax -99,076.45 1,402.67
Exceptional items
Profit/ (loss) before tax -99,076.45 1,402.67
Tax expenses 23 -23,519.86 -48.76

Current Tax

Deferred Tax -23,519.86 -48.76
Profit/ (loss) for the period from continuing -75,556.59 1,451.43
operations
Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations
Tax expense of discontinued operations
Profit/ (loss) from discounting operations (after tax)
Profit/ (loss) for the period -75,556.59 1,451.43
Other comprehensive income 347.96
Total comprehensive income for the period -75,208.63 1,451.43
(Profit/ loss + other comprehensive income)
Earnings per equity share (for continuing
operations) (in Rupees)
a) Basic -5.86 0.14
b) Diluted -5.86 0.14
Earnings per equity share (for discontinued
operations) (in Rupees)
a) Basic
b) Diluted
Earnings per equity share (for discontinued &
continuing operations) (in Rupees)
a) Basic
b) Diluted
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For PPKG & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 009655S

Sd/-
Girdhari Lal Toshniwal

Partner
M No. 205140

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29-08-2023

1to 35

For. Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

Sd/-
Venu Madhava
Kaparthy
Director
DIN: 00021699

Sd/-
Kaushik Kumar
Company Secretary
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Venkata Rao Sadhanala

Director
DIN: 02906370

Sd/-
Balagangadhara B.C
Chief Financial Officer




PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement For the Year Ended 31° March 2023

(Amount in Rs.'000)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activates

Net Profit Before Tax and Extra Ordinary Items
Adjustment For

Depreciation

Foreign Exchange

Gain or loss of Sale of Fixed assets

Gain or loss of Investment

Finance Cost

Dividend Income

Total Adjustment to Profit/Loss (A)

Adjustment For working Capital Change
Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Inventories
Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Trade Receivables
Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Other Current Assets
Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in Trade Payable
Adjustment for Increase/Decrease in other current Liabilities
Adjustment for Provisions

Total Adjustment For Working Capital (B)

Total Adjustment to reconcile profit (A+B)

Net Cash flow from (Used in) operation

Dividend Received

Interest received

Interest Paid

Income Tax Paid/ Refund

Net Cash flow from (Used in) operation before Extra-
Ordinary Items

Proceeds from Extra Ordinary Items
Payment for Extra Ordinary Item

Net Cash flow From operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds From fixed Assets

Proceeds from Investment or Equity Instruments
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Purchase Of Investments or Equity Instruments

Interest received
Dividend Received

Cash Receipt from Sale of Interest in Joint Venture

Cash Payment to acquire Interest in Joint Venture

Cash flow from losing Control of subsidiaries

Cash Payment for acquiring Control of subsidiaries

Proceeds from Govt. Grant

Other Inflow/Outflow Of Cash

Net Cash flow from (Used in) in Investing Activities before
Extra-Ordinary Items

Proceeds from Extra Ordinary Items
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-99076.45 1410.55
167.95 84.12
306.00
46.00
519.95 84.12

8876.00 -5185.17

7006.00 2772.45

45661.00 -584.74

-4227.00 -1562.79
1093.00 373.84
98.40

58409.00 -4088.02

58928.95 -4003.91

-40147.50 -2593.36
46.00

-40193.50 -2593.36

-40193.50 -2593.36

16729.00
32704.00
4665.00
-49433.00 4665.00




Payment for Extra Ordinary Item

Net Cash flow from (Used in) in Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financial Activities

Proceeds From Issuing Shares

Proceeds from Issuing Debenture /Bonds/Notes
Redemption of Preference Share

Redemption of Debenture

Proceeds from other Equity Instruments

Proceeds From Borrowing

Repayment Of Borrowing

Dividend Paid

Interest Paid

Income Tax Paid/Refund

Net Cash flow from (Used in) in Financial Activities before
Extra-Ordinary Items

Proceeds from Extra Ordinary Items

Payment for Extra Ordinary Item

Net Cash flow from (Used in) in Financial Activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents before
effect of exchange rate changes

Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

-49433.00 4665.00

213094.00

213094.00 0.00

213094.00 0.00

123467.50 2071.64

123467.50 2071.64
4074.00 2002.82
127542 4074

As per our report of even date attached
For PPKG & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 0096558

Sd/- Sd/-

Girdhari Lal Toshniwal Venu Madhava
Kaparthy

Partner Director

M No. 205140 DIN: 00021699
Sd/-

Place: Bengaluru Kaushik Kumar

Date: 29-08-2023 Company Secretary
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For. Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

Sd/-

Venkata Rao Sadhanala

Director
DIN: 02906370

Sd/-

Balagangadhara B.C
Chief Financial Officer




PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

Changes in Equity Share Capital (Amount in Rs’000)

Balance on April 1, 2021 1,02,688.19

Changes in equity share capital during prior period errors

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance at the end of March 31, 2022 1,02,688.19

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors

Changes in equity share capital during the period 1,11,750.00
Balance at the end of March 31, 2023 2,14,438.19
Other Equity (Amount in Rs.'000)

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Reserves and Surplus

Share i Total
Particulars . Caplta.l Retained ) Capital .
Capital | redemption . Capital Reserve . equity
Earnings Subsidy
reserve
Bal t 1 April
aanceasal TAPTL 1 102,688 | - (24,783) | 6,365 994 85,264

2021

Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 1,451 - - 1,451
ended 31 March 2022

Other comprehensive
income (net of tax)

1,02,688 | - (23,332) | 6,365 994 86,716
Transactions recorded
directly in equity
Contributions and
distributions:
Nil - - - - -
Balance as at 31
March 2022 1,02,688 | - (23,332) | 6,365 994 86,716
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Reserves and Surplus
. Share Capital Total
Particulars . p i i .
Capital | redemption Retal.ned Capital Reserve Capl.t al equity
Earnings Subsidy
reserve

]235‘;;““ asat1April | o) 688 | - (23332) | 6,365 994 86,716
Total income or losses
for the year ended 31 - (75,209) | 97,875 22,666
March 2023
Other comprehensive
income (net of tax) B
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Shares issued during 111,750
the year
2,14,438 | - (98,540) | 1,04,240 994 1,09,382
Transactions recorded
directly in equity
Contributions and
distributions:
Nil - - - - -
Balance as at 31
March 2023 2,14,438 | - (98,540) | 1,04,240 994 2,21,132
As per our report of even date attached For. Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited
For PPKG & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 009655S
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Girdhari Lal Toshniwal Venu Madhava Venkata Rao Sadhanala
Kaparthy
Partner Director Director
M No. 205140 DIN: 00021699 DIN: 02906370
Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Bengaluru Kaushik Kumar Balagangadhara B.C
Date: 29-08-2023 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER EXPLANATORY
INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Ltd (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated in
India in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The registered office of the Company is
located at Unit 201, 2nd floor, Brigade Rubix,20/14 HMT factory Main Road, Peenya Plantation Bangalore KA
560013. The equity shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company is engaged
in the business of Trading and Manufacturing of Generics, Bulk Drugs and Intermediaries, etc.

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized and approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 29th August 2023.

Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial

Statements.
These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

(iv) Compliance with Ind AS

The Financial statements comply in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) [Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(v) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical cost basis except
for the following:

e Certain Financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value.

e Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value; and

e Contingent Consideration

(vi) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non- current
classification.
An asset is classified as current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability classified as current when:

e [tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e [tis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e [tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

e All other liabilities are classified as non- current.

e Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
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2.19 Properties, plant and equipment (PPE) Recognition and initial measurements

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its Working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognized instatement of profit or loss as incurred.

iii. Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual values

The classification of Plant and equipment into continuous and non-continuous process is done as per
technical certification and depreciation thereon is provided accordingly.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the Straight Line Method (SLM) method,
computed on the basis of useful lives as estimated by management which coincides with rates prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act,2013.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

iv. De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the other income/other expenses when the asset is derecognized.

2.20 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group or assets
(cash-generating units).The Company’s corporate assets (eg. Central office building for providing support to
various CGUs) do not generate independent cash flows. To determinate impairment of corporate assets,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate assets belongs.

2.21 Inventories

» Stores & Spares are valued at cost or at net realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost is arrived at Weighted
Average Basis.

» Raw Material, Semi Finished Goods, Finished Goods are valued at Cost or Market Value whichever is
lower. Cost is arrived at FIFO method.

» Obsolescence and Damaged materials are valued at Realizable Value.

2.22 Operating Leases

As a lessee
» Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as a lessee, has substantial risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s inception at the
fire value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding lease rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial
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liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability of each period.

» Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company as lessee are clarified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charges to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases.

As a Lessor

» Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary costs increases. The respective leased assets are
included in the Balance Sheet based on their nature.

Investment and other financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through profit
or loss), and
e those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is
held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company
classifies its debt instruments:

» Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on a debt
instrument that is subsequently measured at amortized cost is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized or impaired.

» Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
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Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in the profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in ‘Other income’.

» Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are

measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement
of Profit and Loss within ‘Other income’ in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in ‘Other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109,’Financial
Instruments’, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

o the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

e retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

o  Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

e Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Income recognition Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions
that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine
fair value include discounted cash flow analysis and available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing
fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

2.23 Derivative instruments

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges.
Derivative instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period, with changes included in
‘Other income’/’Other expenses’

2.24 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.25 Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.26 Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.27 Trade payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 90 days of recognition. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

2.28 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which
it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

154




2.29 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such
as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to
fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognized for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of
an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognized. A gain
or loss not previously recognized by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognized
at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortized while they
are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale continue to be recognized.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

2.30 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

GST, Excise duty is a liability of the Company as a manufacturer, which forms part of the cost of production,
irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Therefore, the recovery of GST, Excise duty flows to the
Company on its own account and hence revenue includes GST, excise duty.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods

have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume
rebates.

Service Revenue

Service income is recognized as per the terms of contracts with the customers when the related services are
performed or the agreed milestones are achieved and revenue includes

Service Tax / GST, wherever applicable.

2.31 Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

2.32 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of aqualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.33 Foreign currency transactions and translation

iii.Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee (Rupees or Rs.), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

iv. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. At the year-end, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are restated
at the year-end exchange rates. The exchange differences arising from settlement of foreign currency
transactions and from the year-end restatement are recognized in profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs, if any, are presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, within ‘Finance costs’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within ‘Other income’/’Other expenses’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair
value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

2.34 Employvee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled.

Post-employment benefits Defined benefit plans

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in ‘Employee benefits expense’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Re measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. These are included in
retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

The Company has gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on retirement
is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The liability recognized in the
balance sheet for Defined Benefit Plans as the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the
reporting date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of Independent actuaries. Actuarial
gains and losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income.
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Defined contribution plans

Contributions under defined contribution plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognized as
expenses for the period in which the employee has rendered the service.

Other long-term employee benefits

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service.

They are therefore measured annually by actuaries as the present value of expected future payments to be made
in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented under ‘Employee benefit obligations’ (current) in the Balance Sheet if the entity
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

2.35 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except
the ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted for the reporting period.
Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss(either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly inequity.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible temporary difference
will be utilized against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future
operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any
unused tax loss or credit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside
profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss(either in other comprehensive income or inequity).

2.36 Provision and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
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events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where
it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or
a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

2.19 Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized and no longer at the
discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

2.20 Earnings per share

iii.Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year

iv.Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take

into account:

3. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares, and

4. the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.24 Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in manufacture of Bulk Drugs & Intermediates which in the context of Accounting
Standard — 17 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is considered as a single segment.

2.25 Recent Accounting Procurements Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 containing the following new amendments to Ind AS for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2019.

Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ eliminates the classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases. All leases
are required to be reported on an entity’s balance sheet as assets and liabilities. Leases are capitalised by
recognising the present value of the lease payments and showing them either as lease assets or together with
property, plant and equipment. If lease payments are made over time, a financial liability representing the future
obligation will be recognized.

Ind AS 116 is effective from 1 April 2019. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the new standard
and there are no material impact to the assets and liabilities recognized in the financial statements, as well as the
statement of profit and loss.

2.26 Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.
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This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different
than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included
in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the
financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

e Employee benefits (estimation of defined benefit obligation)

Post-employment benefits represent obligations that will be settled in the future and require assumptions to
project benefit obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future
benefit costs over the employee’s approximate service period, based on the terms of the plans and the
investment and funding decisions made. The accounting requires the Company to make assumptions regarding
variables such as discount rate and salary growth rate. Changes in these key assumptions can have a significant
impact on the defined benefit obligations.

e Impairment of trade receivables

The risk of uncollectibility of trade receivables is primarily estimated based on prior experience with, and the
past due status of, doubtful debtors, based on factors that include ability to pay, bankruptcy and payment
history. The assumptions and estimates applied for determining the provision for impairment are reviewed
periodically.

e Estimation of expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic
obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and equipment.

o Contingencies

Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the uncertainty
inherent in such matters, it is often difficult to predict the final outcome. The cases and claims against the
Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many uncertainties and
complexities, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case/claim, the
jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business, the Company consults with
legal counsel and other experts on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when it is
determined that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the
event an adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclosed.

e Valuation of deferred tax assets

Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary in
nature. Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on management’s assessment of future recoverability of
the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable income in the future, planned
transactions or planned optimizing measures. Economic conditions may change and lead to a different
conclusion regarding recoverability.

e Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using valuation techniques,
including the discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions.
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NOTE. 2: CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Ageing Schedule of Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) - March 2023

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Les than 1 23 More Total
1-2 Years than 3
Year Years
Years
(i) Projects in Progress 20000.00 20000.00
(ii) Projects temporarily suspended 0.00
0 20000.00 0.00 0.00 20000.00

Ageing Schedule of Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) - March 2022

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Les than 1 23 More Total
1-2 Years than 3
Year Years
Years
(i) Projects in Progress 4500.00 4500.00
(i1) Projects temporarily suspended 0.00
0 4500.00 0.00 0.00 4500.00

NOTE NO. 3: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (NON-CURRENT ASSET)

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on 31-03-2023

As on 31.03.2022

Trade Receivables
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good

Less than Six months

More than Six months 14,268.10 14,162.01
Doubtful
14,268.10 14,162.01
Other Receivables:
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good - -
Doubtful
Total Trade Receivable (Gross) 14,268.10 14,162.01
Less: Provision for bad & doubtful debts 7,578.90 B
Total Trade Receivables(net) 6,689.19 14,162.01
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Note:

During the year, the management has reviewed all the receivables and has made attempt to recover the
receivables which were due since long. After persuasion, the management is of opinion that several of
them are unlikely to be recoverable and hence made a provision for the same.

NOTE NO. 4: LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Amount in Rs. '000)
As on
As on 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Particulars

Long - Term Loans and Advances:
a) Security Deposit

Secured

Unsecured 850.00 969.54

(Security deposit consist of Sales Tax Deposit, Electricity deposit,
Rent Deposit, Tender deposit and deposit with suppliers )

b) other Long-Term Loans and advances

(Advance recoverable in cash or kind)
Secured

Unsecured 13,866.44 60,953.73

Total Long-Term Loans & Advances 14,716.44 61,923.28

NOTE NO. 5: DEFERRED TAX ASSET (NET)
(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars As on 31.03.2023 As on
31.03.2022
Opening Deferred tax Asset 3,555.18 3,506.42
Add:
Deferred Tax Asset for the year 23,519.86 48.76
Gross Deferred tax Asset 27,075.04 3,555.18

Opening Deferred tax Liability - -
Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences and doubtful debt - -

Gross Deferred tax Liability - -

Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) - Net 27,075.04 3,555.18
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NOTE NO. 6: OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on As on
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

1) Other non- current Asset

Preliminary and pre-operative to the extent not written off

1,206.00 -

Total Non-Current Assets

1,206.00 -

NOTE NO. 7: INVENTORIES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on 31-03-2023

As on 31.03.2022

Inventories:

a) Raw materials

Sub Total - -
b) Work - in - progress
Sub Total - -
¢) Finished goods - 8,876.33
Sub Total - 8,876.33
Total Inventories - 8,876.33

Note: The stock which were lying has been expired during the year and not usable for the end consumer,

Hence, the provision has been made and also disposed off.

NOTE NO. 8: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CURRENT ASSETYS)

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022

Trade Receivables

Secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good

Less than Six months

More than Six months

13,853.32 13,386.77

Doubtful

13,853.32 13,386.77

Other Receivables:

Secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good

Doubtful

Total Trade Receivable (Gross)

13,853.32 13,386.77

Less: Provision for bad & doubtful debts

Total Trade Receivables(net)

13,853.32 13,386.77
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NOTE NO. 9: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on 31.03.2023

As on 31.03.2022

Cash and cash equivalents:

a) Balances with banks:

1) On Current Accounts 1,27,510.36 3,397.07
2) On Deposit Accounts 0.00 0.00
b) Cash on hand 31.30 677.39
Total Cash and Cash 1,27,541.67 4,074.46
Equivalents

NOTE NO.10: INVESTMENTS

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Advances

Particulars As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022
Investments _
Anugraha Chemicals 33,051.96
Total Short-Term Loans & 33,051.96 }

Note: The company has invested in, Anugraha Chemicals and obtained a stake of 25.5% as on 01-02-

2023.

NOTE NO.11: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount in Rs. '000)

S- Particulars As on
No. 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022
GST Input (Balance with Govt Authorities) 678.56 338.58
678.56 338.58

NOTE NO. 12: SHARE CAPITAL

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As on 31.03.2023

As on 31.03.2022

Equity Share Capital
(a) Authorised

CY (3,00,00,000) (PY 11,000,000) Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- each
(b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

(CY 214,86,234 )(PY 10,311,234) Equity Shares
of Rs.10/- each fully paid up.

Less: Calls in Arrear

3,00,000.00

2,14,862.34

424.15

1,10,000.00

1,03,112.34

424.15

Total Equity Share Capital

2,14,438.19

1,02,688.19
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Disclosures:

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at
the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Number of Shares

Number of Shares

Equity Shares of Re.1 0 Each, Fully paid up:

At the Beginning

Issued during the year

Allotted to shareholders of Transferee Company

1,03,11,234.00
1,11,75,000.00 -

1,03,11,234.00

At the end

2,14,86,234.00

1,03,11,234.00

Details of Shareholder holding more than 5% shares of the company:(Refer Note below)

As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022
Name of the share holder No of Shares % of No of % of
Shareholding Shares Shareholding |
Sadhanala Venkata Rao 15,44,995 7.19% 31,08,531 30.15%
Shankarappa Nagaraja Vinaya Babu 52,00,000 24.20% 5,00,000 4.85%
Shreedhara Shetty 46,50,000 21.64% - -
Narasandra Basavarajappa Pradeepkumar 11,25,000 5.24% } B
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As on 31° March 2023 As on 31° March 2022
% Change
SL. No. Promoter name No. of % of total No. of % of total dur;ng the %ear
Shares Shares Shares Shares

1 Prashant H. Dave 10459 0.05 10459 0.10 0.05

2 Ghisulal Jain 36060 0.17 36060 0.35 0.18

3 Veena Lalwani 15645 0.07 15645 0.15 0.08

4 Babulal Jain 0 0.00 6321 0.06 0.06

5 Subhash B Lalwani 32800 0.15 32800 0.32 0.17

6 Suresh Kumar 1000 0.00 1000 0.01 0.01

7 Umadevi Babulal Jain 5452 0.03 5452 0.05 0.03

8 Uttam P Jain 1000 0.00 1000 0.01 0.01

9 Abhilekha Dave 34128 0.16 43745 0.42 0.27

10 Surekha Prashant Dave 700 0.00 700 0.01 0.00
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11 Abhishek Jain 0 0.00 19444 0.19 0.19
12 Peddi Anuradha 56000 0.26 56000 0.54 0.28
13 B. Venkatswamy 1070 0.00 1070 0.01 0.01
14 Sadhanala Venkata Rao 1588526 7.39 3108531 30.15 22.75
15 | Padmaja Kalyani 189096 0.88 189096 1.83 0.95
Sadhanala
16 Viswa Prasad Sadhanala 96400 0.45 96400 0.93 0.49
17 Pilli Meena Kumari 56000 0.26 56000 0.54 0.28
18 Rangoori Kantham 1000 0.00 1000 0.01 0.01
19 Sadhanalla Dara Kalyani 1000 0.00 1000 0.01 0.01
20 Dadi Urmila 25 0.00 25 0.00 0.00
71 Maharani Maheshwari 25 0.00 25 0.00 0.00
Sadhanala
2y | Baghi Rao Pankaj 25 0.00 25 0.00 0.00
Sadhanala
NOTE:
There is a share warrants money which is pending for allotment as below:
SI. No Name Amount (In ‘000)
1 Mini Manikantan 1875.00
2 Prasad Shivarudraiah 1593.75
Total 3468.75
NOTE NO. 13: OTHER EQUITY
(Amount in Rs. '000)
. As on As on
S. No. Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
I Other Equity
a) Capital Subsidy
As at the commencement of the year
993.75 993.75
Add: Additions during the year
Less: Utilised during the year
993.75 993.75
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b) Capital Reserve
As at the commencement of the year
6,365.35 6,365.35
Add: Additions during the year
(Securities Premium) 97,875.00 -
Less: Utilised during the year
1,04,240.35 6,365.35
¢) Surplus:

i) Opening Balance (23,331.51) (24,782.94)
Add: Total comprehensive income during the year (75,208.63) 1,451.43
Less: Bonus shares / (Forfeiture of Bonus shares) -

(98,540.14) (23,331.51)
Total Reserves and Surplus 6,693.96 (15,972.41)

NOTE NO. 14: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

S. No. Particulars As on As on
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
I Trade Payables
Due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Due to Credltors other than Micro Enterprises and Small 18.830.66 23.057.53
Enterprises
Total Trade Payables 18,830.66 23,057.53
Ageing Schedule as at 31/03/2023
(Amount in Rs. “000”)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less 6 23 More More
Not Due than 6 months - | 1-2 years ears than 3 Than 3 Total
months 1 year y years Years
(i) MSME - - - - - - -
(ii) Others - - - 18,831 - - - 18,831
(ii1) Disputed Dues - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues- ) )
Others i ) i ) )
(v) unbilled Dues - - - - - - -
Total - - - 18,831 - - - 18,831
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Ageing Schedule as at 31/03/2022

(Amount in Rs. “000”)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less 6 23 More More
Not Due than 6 months - | 1-2 years ears than 3 Than 3 Total
months 1 year y years Years
(i) MSME - - - - - - -
(i1) Others - - - 23,058 - - - 23,058
(ii1) Disputed Dues - - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues- i ) ) ) i ) ) i
Others
(v) unbilled Dues - - - - - - - -
Total - - - 23,058 - - - 23,058

Note: As per the details provided by the suppliers, there is no dues to MSME's during the year under review. However,
the company is in process of obtaining the MSME status of its suppliers.

NOTE NO. 15: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022

a) Current maturities of Long-Term Debts - -

b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - -

¢) Income received in advance. - -

d) Unpaid dividend. - -

e) Other Payables 2,441.75 1,349.23

f) Others - -

Sales Tax Deferral** (refer note) - -

Total Other Current Liabilities 2,441.75 1,349.23

NOTE NO. 16: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (Amount in Rs. '000)
Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022

Revenue from operations in respect of non-

finance company

(a) Sale of Products - 39,392.62
Total Revenue from Operations - 39,392.62
NOTE NO. 17: OTHER INCOME (Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022

(a)Interest income

(b)Other non-operating income (net of expenses

directly attributed to such income) - 151.09

Total Other Income - 151.09
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NOTE NO. 18: PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022
Purchases during the year - 40,899.84
Purchase return during the year -
Total Purchases - 40,899.84

NOTE NO. 19: CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND

STOCK-IN-TRADE

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

Year Ended 31.03.2023

Year Ended 31.03.2022

A. Finished Goods
Finished goods at the beginning of the year

(A+B+C)

8,876.33 3,691.16
Less: Finished goods at the end of the year _ 8.876.33
Sub Total (A) 8,876.33 (5,185.17)
B. Work in progress at the beginning of the year _ )
Less: work in progress at the end of the year _ )
Sub Total (B)
C. Stock-in-trade
Stock at the beginning of the year _ ;
Less: Stock at the end of the year ) )
Sub Total (C) _ )
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories $,876.33 (5,185.17)

NOTE NO. 20: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022
(a) Salaries & Wages 11,310.04 444.00
(b) Contribution to Provident & Other Funds - -
(c) Staff Welfare Expenses - }
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 11,310.04 444.00

NOTE NO. 21: FINANCE COST

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022
(a) Interest Expenses: 13.08
(b) Bank Charges 33.21 27.36
(c) Applicable net gain/loss on foreign currency - -
translations & transactions
Total Finance Cost 46.29 27.36
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NOTE NO. 22: OTHER EXPENSES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022
Advertisement Expenses 56.36 43.14
Annual listing fees - 406.20
Audit Fees 166.30 50.00
e-voting charges - 38.15
Business Promotion 2.36 66.23
CDSL Fees 193.11 -
Conveyance 453.68 -
Directors’ remuneration - 600.00
Electricity Charges 6.88 -
Office Expenses 547.85 42.00
General Expenses 637.81 0.00
Listing/Custody Fee/ Other Charges 1,214.07 -
Postage & Telegram 1.55 409.23
Printing & stationery 159.41 -
Professional Charges 1,879.51 35.00
Rates and Taxes 765.67 -
Rent 1,750.00 120.00
Repairs & Maintenance -others 162.33 -
Roc filing Expenses 371.86 47.10
Telephone & Internet Charges 79.67 5.97
Provision for bad debts 66,569.36
Write Off 3,658.07 -
Round off 0.00 -

Total Other Expenses 78,675.84 1,863.02
Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2023 Year Ended 31.03.2022

Payment to the Auditor
Statutory Audit

1,17,700

41,300

Total Other Income

1,17,700

41,300

NOTE NO. 23: TAX EXPENSES

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

Year Ended 31.03.2023

Year Ended 31.03.2022

Current tax

Deferred tax (23,519.86) (48.76)
Adjustment for previous year tax

- Income Tax paid for earlier year - -
Total Other Income (23,519.86) (48.76)
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NOTE NO. 24: NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS

24.1 Details of Managerial Remuneration: (Amount in Rs. '000)

Particular Managing Director Executive Director

2022-2023 2021-22 2022-2023 2021-22

Managerial Remuneration 0 0 4364.52 600.00
Total 0 0 4364.52 600.00

24.2 Balance of Trade Payables, Other Current Liabilities, Loans and Advances, and Trade Receivables
are subject to confirmation / reconciliation.

24.3 During the year the company has assessed the recoverability of various assets, including, security
deposits, long term loans and advances, trade receivables, fixed assets, other current liabilities, trade
payables and as per the suggestions of the statutory auditors.

24.4 The Company’s operation mainly consist of only one segment i.e. Drug formulations and therefore
the figures relate to that segment only.

24.5 The previous Years figures have been revoked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever
necessary.

24.6 Related party disclosures (as identified by the management) as per Indian Accounting Standard — 24
are given below:

List of Related Parties:

Directors:

Mr. P N Vijay - Independent Director

Mr. Venu Madhava K - Executive Director

Ms. Mini Manikantan - Executive Director

Mr. Sadhanala Venkata Rao - Non-Executive Director

Mr. Mopperthy Sudheer - Independent Director

Mr. Methuku Nagesh - Independent Director

Mrs. Sadhanala Padmaja Kalyani - Executive Director (Upto 21 May 2022)
Mr. Sadhanala Vishwa Prasad - Executive Director (Upto 9" July 2022)

Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Balagangadhara B.C - Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Kaushik Kumar - Company Secretary

Mr. Chilam Srikanth - Chief Financial Officer (Upto 13th October 2022)
Ms. Annie Jodhani - Company Secretary (Upto 13th October 2022)

(Amount in Rs. '000)

NAME OF THE TRANSACTIONS RELATED TO TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT
THE PARTY PERSONNEL AND THEIR RELATIVES
2022-2023 2021-22
Managerial Remuneration 7356.03 296.00
Venu Madhava K 2700.00 -
Mini Manikantan 1664.52 -
Sadhanala Viswa Prasad - 300.00
Sadhanala Padmaja Kalyani - 300.00
Balagangadhara B.C 1872.58 -
Kaushik Kumar 854.84 -
Chilam Srikanth 63.87 80.00
Annie Jodhani 200.22 216.00
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Consultancy Charges -

P N Vijay 270.00
Methuku Nagesh 169.44
Other Current liabilities
Sadhanala Venkata Rao -

2283.00

NOTE NO. 25: EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)

2022-2023

2021-22

The computation of EPS is set out below:
Earning

Net Profit/Loss for the period

Shares

Number of Shares at the Beginning of the period

Add: Issued during the year

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the
period

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period

(75,209)

1,03,11,234
1,11,75,000

2,14,86,234

1,28,96,166

1,451.43

1,03,11,234

1,03,11,234

1,03,11,234

Earnings per share of par value Rs. 10/- Basic &
Diluted (Rs.)

(5.86)

0.14

NOTE NO. 26: In Accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-36) on "Impairment of Assets" the
management during the year carried out exercise of identifying the assets that may have been impaired in respect of
each cash generating unit. On the basis of this review carried out by the management there was no impairment loss

on the Fixed assets during the year ended 31st March 2023.

NOTE NO. 27: CONTINGENT LIABILITY
There is a Dispute regarding BSE for which advance has been given.
NOTE NO. 28: FOREIGN CURRENCY EARNINGS/OUTGOING- NIL

NOTE NO. 29: INCOME TAX

(Amount in Rs. '000)

31-03-2023

31-03-2022

Tax expense/(credit) comprises of:

Current income tax

Deferred tax

(23,519.86)

(48.76)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

(23,519.86)

(48.76)

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of
expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company
at 26% (31st March, 2019: 25.75%) and the reported tax expense in profit or
loss are as follows:

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by
India's tax rate

Profit before tax

(99,076.45)

1,402.67

Tax at the Indian tax rate (26%) (31 March 2020: 25.75%)

Adjustments:

CSR expenses and other donations
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Weighted deduction on research and development expense - -

Tax incentives - -

Capital gain tax - -
MAT credit utilisation - -

Deferred tax assets not recognized / (utilized) 23,519.86 48.76
Effect of change in tax laws and rate in jurisdictions outside India -
Other Adjustments -
Income tax expense (23,519.86) (48.76)

NOTE NO. 30: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s policy is to maintain strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of business.

The Company manages its Capital structure through a balanced mix of debt and equity. The Company’s capital
structure is influenced by the changes in the regulatory frameworks, government policies, available options of
financing and impact of the same on liquidity position.

The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and
cash equivalents. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus
net debt. The table below shows the Gearing ratio for FY 2022-23 and FY 2021-22.

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings 0.00 0.00

Trade Payables 18830.66 23057.53
Other Current Liabilities 2441.75 1349.23

Cash & Cash Equivalents 127541.67 4074.46

Net Debt -106269.25 20,332.30
Equity Capital 115550.09 79356.83
Gearing Ratio -0.92 0%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March,
2023 and 31 March, 2022.

NOTE NO. 31: FAIR VALUES

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

(Amount in Rs. '000)
Particulars Carrying Values Fair Values

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial Assets

Investments 33,051.96 - 33,051.96 -

Other financial
assets
Tax Assets (Net) - - - -

Trade
Receivables
Cash and Cash
Equivalents

- 13,386.77 - 13,386.77

1,27,541.67 4,074.46 1,27,541.67 4,074.46
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Bank balances
other than cash
and cash
equivalents
Other financial
assets

Total

Financial
Liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings

Other non-current
financial - - - -
Liabilities
Current
Borrowings
Trade Payables

678.56 - 678.56 -

1,61,272.19 17,461.23 17,461.23

18,830.66 23,057.53 18,830.66 23,057.53

Other current
financial
Liabilities
Total

2,441.75 1,349.23 2,441.75 1,349.23

21,272.41 24,406.76 21,272.41 24,406.76

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank
overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

NOTE NO. 32: FAIR VALUES HIERARCHY

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three
levels of fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the
measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices(unadjusted) in active markets for the financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using the valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: If One or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3.
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March, 2023:
(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices | Significant Significant
valuation in active Observable Unobservable

markets Inputs (Level | Inputs (Level
(Level 1) 2) 3)

Fair value of financial

assets disclosed

Investments 31-Mar-23 32,704.00 - 32,704.00 -

Other financial assets 31-Mar-23 0.00 - 0.00 -

Tax Assets (Net) 31-Mar-23 0.00 - 0.00 -

Trade Receivables 31-Mar-23 0.00 - 0.00 -

Cash and Cash Equivalents 31-Mar-23 1,27,541.67 - 1,27,541.67 -

Bank balances oth'er than 31-Mar-23 0.00 ) 0.00 i

cash and cash equivalents

Other financial assets 31-Mar-23 678.56 - 678.56 -

Total 1,60,924.23 - 1,60,924.23 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.
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NOTE NO. 33:
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at 31 March, 2023:
(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices | Significant Significant
valuation in active Observable Unobservable
markets Inputs Inputs (Level 3)
(Level 1) (Level 2)

Fair value of financial
liabilities disclosed

Non-current Borrowings 31-Mar-23 - - 0.00 -
Other non-current 31-Mar-23 - - 0.00 -
financial Liabilities

Current Borrowings 31-Mar-23 - - 0.00 -
Trade Payables 31-Mar-23 18,830.66 - 18830.66 -
Other current financial 31-Mar-23 2,441.75 - 2,441.75 -
Liabilities

Total 21,272.41 - 21,272.41 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities:
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2022:
(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Date of Total Quoted Significant Significant
valuation prices in Observable Unobservable
active Inputs Inputs (Level 3)
markets (Level 2)
(Level 1)

Fair value of financial
assets disclosed

Investments 31-Mar-22 - - - -
Other financial assets 31-Mar-22 - - - -
Tax Assets (Net) 31-Mar-22 - - - -
Trade Receivables 31-Mar-22 27,548.78 - 27,548.78 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 31-Mar-22 4,074.46 - 4,074.46 -

Bank balances other than 31-Mar-22 - - - -
cash and cash equivalents

Other financial assets 31-Mar-22 338.58 - 338.58 -

Total 31,961.82 - 31,961.82 -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at 31 March, 2022:
(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Date of | Total Quoted prices | Significant | Significant
valuation in active | Observable | Unobservable
markets (Level | Inputs Inputs (Level 3)
1) (Level 2)

Fair wvalue of financial
liabilities disclosed

Non-current Borrowings 31-Mar-22 - - - -
Other non-current financial | 31-Mar-22 - - - _
Liabilities

Current Borrowings 31-Mar-22 - - - -
Trade Payables 31-Mar-22 18,830.66 - 18,830.66 -

176




Other current financial | 31-Mar-22 2,441.75 - 2,441.75 -
Liabilities
Total 21,272.41 - 21,272.41 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

NOTE NO. 34: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company is exposed to financial risk such as Market Risk (Interest Rate Risk, fluctuation in foreign exchange
rates and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The general risk management program of the Company focuses on
the unpredictability of the financial markets and attempts to minimize their potential negative influence on the
financial performance of the Company. The Company continuously reviews its risk exposures and takes measures to
limit it to acceptable levels. The Board of Directors have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the Company’s risk management framework.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk i.e. interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price
risk. Financial instruments of the Company affected by market risk include borrowings and deposits.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March, 2023 and 31 March, 2022.

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-
retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This
is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March, 2023 and 31 March, 2022.

Price risk
Price risk is the risk of fluctuations in the change in prices of equity Investments.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk arising from credit exposure to customers and the counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations.

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy customers/ corporates to minimise collection
losses. Credit Control team assesses the credit quality of the customers, their financial position, past experience in
payments and other relevant factors. Advance payments are obtained from customers in banquets, as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables, advances to suppliers, cash and short-term deposits and interest
receivable on deposits represents company’s maximum exposure to the credit risk. No other financial asset carry a
significant exposure with respect to the credit risk. Deposits and cash balances are placed with Schedule Commercial
banks.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a
large number of minor receivables are assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in
accordance with the Company’s policy.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will have difficulty in raising the financial resources required to fulfil its
commitments.

Liquidity risk is held at low levels through effective cash flow management. Cash flow forecasting is performed
internally by rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity requirements to ensure that it has sufficient cash to meet
operational requirements, to fund scheduled capex and debt repayments and to comply with the terms of financing
documents.
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NOTE NO. 35: RATIOS

Ratio Current | Previous % Reason For Variance
Period Period Variance
The Significant Change in Current ratio
is due to excess increase in Current
Current Ratio (In Times) 8.22 1.09 651.72 Assets of the Company, whereas the
Current Liabilities have been reduced
when compared to Previous Year
The Debt equity ratio in both Financial
Debt Equity Ratio (In Times) 0.00 0.00 0.00 Years remains Nil as there are no Long
Term Debts of the company
. . The Debt Service Coverage ratio is 0 as
Debts. Service Coverage Ratio 0.00 0.00 0.00 there is no Interest Interes% cost included
(In Times) . .
in total interest
Return on Equity has turned is -0.33
Return on Equity Ratio (In %) -0.33 0.02 -1774.27 | because the company has incurred losses
in FY-2022-23
Inventory Turnover Ratio (In The Inventory Turnover ratio has been
Times) 0.00 5.10 -100.00 | reduced f'rom 5.10 to 0 as no sales were
made during FY-2022-23
Trade Receivable Turmover The Debtors Turnover ratio has been
Ratio (In Times) 0.00 2.08 -100.00 | reduced f.rom 2.08 to 0 as no sales were
made during FY-2022-23
. The Creditors Turnover ratio has been
;E?%?rgzzaable Tumover Ratio 0.00 291 -100.00 | reduced f.rom 2.91 to 0 as no sales were
made during FY-2022-23
. . Capital Turnover Ratio is 0 as no sales
I;EL 23"“‘1 Turnover Ratio (In 0.00 0.38 -100.00 | were made during
FY-2022-23
The Net Profit ratio is 0 as the company
Net Profit Ratio (In %) 0.00 0.04 -100.00 | has incurred Losses in the Current year
and also no sales were made during FY-
2022-23
. Return on capital Employed is -0.31
Return on Capital Employed (In -0.31 0.01 -2441.87 | because the company has incurred losses

%)

in FY-2022-23

For PPKG & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 009655S

Sd/-
Girdhari Lal Toshniwal

Partner
M No. 205140

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29-08-2023

For Pharmaids Pharmaceuticals Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Venu Madhava Kaparthy Venkata Rao
Sadhanala

Director Director

DIN: 00021699 DIN: 02906370

Sd/- Sd/-

Kaushik Kumar Balagangadhara B.C

Company Secretary Chief Financial
Officer
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GOVERNMENT OF INDIA
MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS

Registrar of Companies

2,Kendriya Sadana,Bangalore,E' Wing 2nd Floor, Kendriya Sadana,Karnataka,560034,India

Corporate Identity Number:L52520KA1989PLC173979
SECTION 13(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Certificate of Registration of Regional Director order for Change of State

M/s PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED having by special resolution altered the provisions of its Memorandum of
Association with respect to the place of the Registered Office by changing it from the state of Telangana to the Karnataka
outside the jurisdiction of existing RoC ROC Hyderabad to the ROC Bangalore and such alteration having been confirmed
by an order of Regional Director bearing the date 01/11/2022

| hereby certify that a certified copy of the said order has this day been registered.
Given under my hand at Bangalore this TWENTY SECOND day of MAY TWO THOUSAND TWENTY THREE

Signature Verified
Digitally signé
DS MINISTRY Q' CORPORATE

AFFAIRS 1
Date: 2023.08.08'11:26:20 IST

Alwarpet Babu
Assistant Registrar of Companies/ Deputy Registrar of Companies/ Registrar of Companies Registrar of Companies
Registrar of Companies

ROC Bangalore

Mailing Address as per record available in Registrar of Companies office:

PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Unit 201, 2nd Floor, Brigade Rubix, 20/14,HMT Factory Main Road, Peenya Plantation,Bangalore,Bangalore-
560013,Karnataka,India
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(4)

(B)

UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION
OF

PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

The name of the company is “PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED".

The registered office of the company shall be situated in the State of Karnataka. !

The objects for which the company is established are:

THE MAIN OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS INCORPORATION
ARE:

To carry on manufacture and/or business of Chemists, druggists, chemicals drysalters,
importers, exporters and dealers in cosmetics, pharmaceuticals and medical
preparations, under all systems such as Ayurvedic, Allopathy, Unani, Veterinary &
Homeopathy.

To prepare, formulate and compound proprietory medicine and articles and chemicals
and scientific equipment, soaps, cleaning compounds and detergents.

To manufacture and deal in anatomical, orthopaedic and surgical instruments and
appliances and providers of all requisites for hospitals, patients and invalids.

To establish, promote, encourage and contribute to manage, Controlor support sick
funds and any associations or institutions for providing, upon any terms and conditions,
drugs, medicines, restoratives during sickness and illness and also for research and
development in drugs and pharmaceutical lines.

THE OBJECTS INCIDENTAL OR ANCILLARY TO THE ATTAINMENT OF THE MAIN
OBJECTS MENTIONED AT ABOVE (A) ARE: —

To acquire from any person, firm or body corporate, whether in India or elsewhere,
technical collaborations, information, know-how, processes, engineering, manufacturing

and operating data, plans layout and blueprints useful for the design, erection and

1 Shifting of registered office from State of Telangana to the State of Karnataka approved by shareholders in
their AGM held on 20.08.2022. Company has received order of Regional Director for Shifting of Register Office
and approval is pending with the ROC.




operation of plant/processes required for any business of the company and to acquire
any grantor license and other rights and benefits in the foregoing matters and things.

To establish and maintain agencies at any place or places in India and other parts of the
world for the conducts of the business of the company or for the sale of any materials or
things for the time being at the disposal of company for sale.

To make, undertake, encourage, experiment, research and invent about the business of
the Company.

To establish and maintain transport and logistics services for the purposes of the
company.

To pay for any property, rights or privileges, acquired buy the company of for the
services rendered or to be rendered in connection with the promotion of or the business
of the company or for acquisition of any property for the company or otherwise either
wholly or partially in cash or in shares, bonds, debentures or other securities of the
company and to issue any shares either as fully paid up or with such amount credited as
paid-up thereon as may be agreed upon and to charge any such bonds, debentures, or
other securities upon all on any part of the property of the company . While doing so the
company shall comply with all requirements of law for time being in force.

To sell, exchange, let on lease, royalty or tribute, grant licenses, easements, potions and
other rights over and in any other manner deal with or dispose off the whole or any part
of the undertakings, property, assets, rights, and effects of the company for such
consideration as may be thought fit and in particular for stocks, shares, whether fully or
partly paid-up or securities of any other company.

To remunerate any person or company for services rendered or to be rendered in
placing or assisting to place, or guaranteeing the placing of any of the shares of the
company’s capital or debentures, debenture stock, or other securities of the company or
in or about formation or promotion of the company or the conduct of business.

To subscribe for acquire, hold, sell and otherwise deal in shares, stocks, debentures,
debenture stock, bonds, mortgages, obligations and securities of any kind issued or
guaranteed by any company (body corporate or undertaking) of whatever nature and
where so ever constituted or carrying on business in shares, stocks, debenture stock,
bonds, mortgages, obligations and other securities issued or guaranteed by Government,
Sovereign rules, commissioners, trust, municipal, local or other authority or body of
whatsoever nature, whether India or elsewhere.

To sell, lease, exchange, mortgage or otherwise dispose off the property, assets or

undertaking of the company or any part thereof for such consideration as the company
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may think fit and in particular for shares, stock, debentures or other securities of any
other company whether or not having objects altogether or in part similar to those of
the company.

To acquire the whole or any part of the undertaking and assets of any business with
similar objects and any property privileges, rights, contracts, property or effects held or
used in connection with there and upon any such purchase or undertake the liabilities of
any association, partnership or person.

To enter in to partnership joint ventures of to have any type of arrangement for sharing
of profits, howsoever, with individuals, partnership firms, association of persons, limited
companies, whether private or public, corporations, of any state or Central Government
whether fully owned or partly owned or partly owned or with similar groups outside
India for carrying on the objects which the company is authorized.

To invest and deal with the money of the company not immediately required in any
manner and in particular to accumulate funds or take by subscription, purchase or
otherwise however to hold shares or hold shares or stock or the security of any
company, association or undertaking in India or abroad.

To apply for tender, purchase or otherwise acquire contracts, subcontracts, licenses and
concessions for all or any of them and to undertake, execute, carry out, dispose off or
otherwise turn to account the same and to sublet all any contracts from time and upon
such terms and conditions as may be thought expedient.

To amalgamate with any person, associations or firm or company or companies having
objects altogether same or different or in part similar to those of this company.

To adopt such means of making known the products of the company as may seem
expedient and in particular by advertising in the press, by circulars, by purchase and
exhibition of works of art or interest, by publication of books and periodicals, print
media, electronic media, digital media, outdoor media, public relationship or any other
medium of advertisement, display, promotion or marketing and by granting prizes,
rewards and donations.

To purchase the reversion or reversions or otherwise acquire the freehold rights in all
or any part of the lands for the time being held under lease or for an estate less than a
freehold estate by the Company.

To aid particularly or otherwise, any association, body or movement having for an object
the solution, settlement or surmounting of industrial or lab our problems or troubles or

the promotion of industry or trade.

Bangalore
560013
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To lend money to any person on such terms as may seem expedient and in particular to
members of the staff, customers and others having dealings with the Company and to
guarantee the performance of contracts and engagements by any such persons.

To undertake and execute any trust the undertaking of which may seem to the company
desirable and either gratuitously or otherwise and vest real or personal property, rights,
or interest acquired or belonging to the company in any person or company on behalf of
or for the benefit of the company, and with or without any declared trust in favor of the
company.

To incorporate a Non-Government Organization or to collaborate with one, whether
domestic or international or any other non-profit organization or institution in
furtherance of the objects of the company including programmes for food and dietary
awareness.

To distribute among the members in specie any property of the company, or any
proceeds of sale or disposal of any property of the company, but so that distribution
amounting to a reduction of capital be made except with the sanction if any for the time
being required by law.

To institute and to defend any suit, appeal, application for review or revision or any
other application of any nature whatsoever, to take out executions, to enter into
agreements of reference to arbitration and to enforce and where needs be to contest any
awards and for all such purposes to engage or retain counsels, attorneys and agents and
when necessary to remove them.

Subject to the provisions the companies Act, 2013 or any other enactment in force, to
indemnity and keep indemnified members, Officers, directors, agents and servants of the
company against proceedings, costs, damages, claims and demands in respect of
anything done or ordered to be done by them for any in the interests of the company
and for any loss, damage or misfortune whatsoever and which shall happen in execution
of the duties of their office on in relation thereto.

To seek the required foreign collaboration and technical know-how if any when needed.
To maintain any shops or stores or guest house or residential accommodation for the
benefit of the company or its servants, workmen and others, employed by the company.
To grant franchisees to other persons, firms or companies to use the brands, trademarks
and intellectual property rights of the company and to obtain franchisee from others as
may seem conducive to the objects of the company.

To apply for, purchase, or otherwise acquire, any patents, trade marks, invention,

licenses, concessions, and the like conferring any exclusive or non-exclusive or limited
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rights to use, or any secret or other information as to by invention which may seem
capable of being used for any of the purposes of the Company, or the acquisition of
which may seem calculated directly or indirectly to benefit the Company, and to use,
exercise, develop or grant licenses in respect of or otherwise turn to account the
property, rights or information so acquired.

To produce the incorporation, registration or other recognition of the Company in any
country, state or place and to establish and maintain agencies of all kinds and other
trade channels in India or any part of the world for the conduct of the business of the
Company.

To purchase, take on lease, license, exchange, hire or otherwise, any real and/or
personal property and any rights or privileges, which the Company may think necessary
or convenient for the purpose of its business or may enhance the value of any other
property of the Company and, in particular, any land (free hold or other tenure),
building, easement/lease hold machinery, plant and stock-in-trade and on any such
lands to erect buildings, factories, sheds, godowns, warehouses, poly-houses or other
structure for the work and purposes of the Company and also for the residence and
amenity of its employees, staff and other workmen, erect and install machinery and
plant and other equipment deemed necessary or convenient or profitable for the
Company’s business or turn the same to account as may seem expedient.

To acquire by concessions, grant, purchase, barter, lease or otherwise, wither absolutely
or conditionally, and either alone or jointly with others, any lands, buildings, machinery,
plant, utensils, works, conveniences and other movable and immovable property of any
description for the Company.

To give to any officers, servants or employees of the Company any share or interest in
the profits of the Company’s business or of any branch thereof and whether carried on
by means of agency or any subsidiary of company or not, and for that purpose to enter
into any arrangements the Company may think fit.

To act as agents, brokers or as trustee for any persons or company and to undertake and
perform sub-contract and to do all or any of the above things in any part of the world as
principals, agents, contractors, trustees or otherwise and by or through agents, sub-
contractors or trustees or otherwise and /or jointly with others.

To establish or promote or incur or be interested in establishing or promoting any
company or companies for the purpose of acquiring all or any of the property, rights and
liabilities of the Company or of any other company, firm or individual, whether Indian or

not, or for any other purpose whatsoever and to transfer to any such company any
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property of this Company and place or guarantee the placing of, underwrite, subscribe
or otherwise acquire all or any part of the shares, debentures or other securities of any
such other company and to subsidize or otherwise assist any such other company.

To open current or deposit accounts with any bank or banks, and pay in to and draw
money and operate on such accounts.

Subject to the Banking Regulation Act of 1949 to draw, make accept, endorse, discount,
executive and issue cheques and other promissory notes, bills of exchange, bills of
lading, warrants, debentures and other negotiable or transferable instruments or
securities.

To create any depreciation fund, sinking fund, insurance fund, or any special or other
fund, whether for depreciation or for repairing, improving, extending or maintaining any
of the property of the company or for redemption of debentures, redeemable,
preference shares or for any other purposes whatsoever conductive to the interest of
the company.

To train or pay for the training in India or abroad of any member of the staff of the
company of any other employees of the company either in the present employment or
likely to be in employment of the company in future which training, in the opinion of the
company is likely to benefit the company in its day-to-day working, knowledge,
management, administration and research.

To employ or pay experts, Indian or foreign consultants, in connection with the planning
and development of the business connected with the company’s operations.

To insure all or any properties, assets, undertakings, contracts, guarantees or
obligations of the Company of whatsoever nature and kind against any risk whatsoever.
To establish and support or aid in establishment of associations, institutions, funds, trust
and conveniences calculated to benefit the employees of the Company or the dependants
or relatives of such persons and to grant pension, allowances and to make payments
towards insurance.

To subscribe, donate or guarantee money for any charitable, benevolent, public or
general or useful object or for any exhibitions.

To borrow or raise money at interest or otherwise in such manner as the Company may
think fit and in particular or otherwise including debentures or debentures convertible
into shares or perpetual annuities and in security of such money so borrowed, to
mortgage, pledge or charge the whole or any part of the property, assets or revenue of

the Company present or future including its uncalled capital and to transfer or convey
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the same absolutely or in trust and to give the lenders power of sale and other powers as
may seem expedient, and to purchase, redeem or pay off any such securities.

To mortgage or give as a collateral security of any assets of the company or to issue
guarantees to any Financial Institutions, Banks, Government Departments for due
performance of the agreements, contracts or borrowings by any person, firm or
company but shall not do the business of banking as defined under the Banking
Regulations Act, 1949.

Subject to the provisions of the companies Act, 2013 to place or to reserve to distribute
dividends or bonus among the members or otherwise to apply, as the company may
from time to time think fit any money received in respect of dividends accrued on
forfeited shares, and money arising from the sale by the company of forfeited shares or
from unclaimed dividends.

To pay all costs, charges and expenses to the promotion, formation, registration and
establishment of the Company and to remunerate any person for services rendered in
introduction of any property or business to the Company, or for any other reason which
the Company may think proper.

To invest and deal with monies of the Company not immediately required in such
manner as may from time to time be determined by the Board of Directors.

To enter into any agreements with angel investors, venture capital funds or private
equity funds or any other fund/investor to fund the capital requirements of the
company.

To undertake financial and commercial obligations, transactions and operations of all
kinds and to undertake research and development activities of every description and to
develop software for any of the purposes above-referred in relation to and for the
attainment of the objects stated above.

To do all or any of the above things and all such other things as are incidental or as may
be through conductive to the attainment of the above objects or any of them in India and
elsewhere either as principals, trustees, contractors or otherwise and either by or
through agents, contractors, trustees or otherwise and either along or in conjunction

with others.

The liability of the member(s) is limited and this liability is limited to the amount

unpaid, if any, on the shares held by them.




V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty
Crore Only) consisting of 3,00,00,000 (Three Crore Only) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-

each.?

For PHARMAIDS PHARMAC "&'IC.ALS LIMITED
2 ave
<5 N5

Bangalore |

Name: Ven a Ka
DIN: 00021699

Designation: Wholetime Director

? Increased to Rs. 30 Cr vide approval of the shareholders in their EGM held on 31.12.2022
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We, the several persons whose names, and addresses are subscr
formed into a Company in puirsuance of this Memorandum of A
take the number of shares in the capital of the Company set op

ibes hereunder, and desirous of being
ssoclation and we respectively agree 10
posite to our respective names

Name acdress, description,
occupation and signature of
tho subsaibor

No. of Equity
Shares taken by
each Subscriber

Name, address, description
occupation and Signature of
the withess

ma

Sd/-
SAI BHUTMAL

S/o. M.G. Raj Lal Wani
D.No. 4-3-55, K.S Lane
Sultan Bazar
HYDERABAD.
{Business)

Saby-

S8 GHISULAL JAIN
S/o B.M Lal Wani
ONo 4355 K S.lane
. Sultan Bazar
HYDERABAD.
(Business)

Sl
SAI SUBHASH B. ALAL WANI
S/o. BM. Lal Wani

D No. 4-3.55 K 8 Lane
Sultan Bazar

HYDERABAD.

{Business)

Sdf‘ &

Smt. HULIDEV

#'o BM. Lal Wani

O Mo 4.3.55 K S Lane
| Sudtan Bazar

| MYDERABAD

| House Wite)

Rl

10
(Ten only)

10
(Ten only)

10
(Ten only)

10
(Ten only)

40
(Forty only)

Sd/-

P. RADHA KRISHNA
S/o. 8ri Laxmi Narayana
D. No. 1-1-336/2/1, 15t Floor,
Chikkadpally,
HYDERABAD - 500 020
(Chartered Accountant)

g




THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND
THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 (AS APPLICABLE)
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION!
OF

PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

(@

(b)

(2)

(b)
()

(d)

CONSTITUTION OF THE COMPANY

The regulations contained in Table "I of Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 shall apply
only in so far as the same are not provided for or are not inconsistent with these Articles. In the
event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of these Articles and Table F,
these Articles shall prevail.

The regulations for the management of the Company and for the observance of the members
thereof and their representatives shall be such as are contained in these Articles subject
however to the exercise of the statutory powers of the Company in respect of repeal, additions,
alterations, substitution, modifications and variations thereto by Special Resolution.

INTERPRETATION
DEFINITIONS

In the interpretation of these Articles the following words and expressions shall have the
following meanings unless repugnant to the subject or context or otherwise.

“Act’shall mean the (i) Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and clarifications issued thereunder
to the extent in force pursuant to the notification of the Notified Sections; and (ii) Companies
Act, 1956 and the rules thereunder (without reference to the provisions thereof that have ceased
to have effect upon the notification of the Notified Sections).

“ADRs”shall mean American depository receipts, representing ADSs.

“Annual General Meeting” shall mean a general meeting of the holders of Equity Shares
held in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act.

“ADSsshall mean American depository shares, each of which represents a certain number of
Equity Shares.

T Adoption of new set of Articles of Association approved by shareholders in their AGM held on 20.08.2022

Director
DIN: 02906370

Sadhanala Venkata Rao



(e) “Articles”shall mean the articles of association as adopted or as altered from time to time in
accordance with the provisions of these articles and the Act.

(f)  “Auditors”shall mean and include those Persons appointed as such for the time being by the
Company.

(g) “Board’shall mean the board of directors of the Company, as constituted from time to time, in
accordance with Law and the provisions of these Articles.

(h) “Board Meeting" shall mean any meeting of the Board, as convened from time to time and any
adjournment thereof, in accordance with Law and the provisions of these Articles.

(i)  “Beneficial Owner’shall mean beneficial owner as defined in clause (a) of sub-section (1) of
section (2) of the Depositories Act.

()  “Business Day” shall mean a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday or any public holiday) on
which scheduled commercial banks are generally open for business in India.

(k) “Capital”or Share Capital $hall mean the share capital for the time being, raised or
authorized to be raised for the purpose of the Company.

() “Chairman” shall mean such Person as is nominated or appointed in accordance with Article
37 herein below.

(m) “Companies Act, 1956 shall mean the Companies act, 1956(Act I of 1956) as may be in force
for the time being.

(n) “Company” or “this Company” shall mean PHARMAIDS PHARMACEUTICALS
LIMITED.

(o) “Committees’shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Article 73.

(p) “Debenture’shall include debenture stock, bonds and any other securities of the Company,
evidencing a debt, whether constituting a charge on the assets of the Company or not.

(qQ) “Depositories Act” shall mean The Depositories Act, 1996 and shall include any statutory
notification or re-enactment thereof.

(r)  “Depository’shall mean a Depository as defined in clause (e) of sub-section (1) of section 2 of
the Depositories Act.

(s) “Director’shall mean any director of the Company, including alternate directors, Independent
Directors and nominee directors appointed in accordance with Law and the provisions of these
Articles.

(t) “Dividend”shall mean such dividend as is declared by the Company in accordance with the
Act and shall include interim dividends.

(u) “Equity Share Capital’shall mean the total issued and Paid up equity share capital of the
Company, calculated on a Fully Diluted Basis.

(v) “Equity Shares” shall mean fully Paid up equity shares of the Company having a par value of
INR 10(Rupees ten only) per equity share, and one vote per equity share or any other issued
Share Capital of the Company that is reclassified, reorganized, reconstituted or converted into
equity shares.



(w)

(x)

)

(2)

(aa)

(bb)

“Executor”’or Administrator $hall mean a person who has obtained probate or letters of
administration, as the case may be, from a court of competent jurisdiction and shall include the
holder of succession certificate authorizing the holder thereof, to negotiate or Transfer the
Equity Share or Equity Shares of the deceased Shareholder and shall also include the holder of a
certificate granted by the administrator-general appointed under the Administrator Generals
Act, 1963.

“Extraordinary General Meeting” shall mean an extraordinary general meeting of the holders
of the Equity Shares duly called and constituted in accordance with the provisions of the Act;

“Financial Year’shall mean any fiscal year of the company, beginning on April 1 of each
calendar year and ending on March 31 of the following calendar year.

“Fully Diluted Basis”shall mean, in reference to any calculation, that the calculation should be
made in relation to the Equity Share Capital of any Person, assuming that all outstanding
convertible preference shares or debentures, options, warrants and other equity Securities
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Equity Shares of that Person (whether or not
by their terms then currently convertible, exercisable or exchangeable) have been so converted,
exercised or exchanged to the maximum number of Equity Shares possible under the terms
thereof.

“Global Depository Receipt” shall mean any instrument in the form of a depository receipt, by
whatever name called, created by a foreign depository outside India and authorized by the

Company making an issue of such depository receipts.

“GDRs” shall mean the registered Global Depository Receipts, representing GDSs.

(cc) GDSs shall mean the global depository shares, each of which represents certain number of

Equity Shares.

(dd) General Meeting $hall mean any meeting of the Shareholders of the Company, including

Annual General Meetings as well as Extraordinary General Meetings of the Shareholders of the
Company, convened from time to time in accordance with the Law and the provisions of these
Articles and any adjournments thereof.

(ee) Iftdependent Director shall mean an independent director as defined under the Act.

(ff) Imdia shill mean the Republic of India.

(g8)

(hh)

(i)

“Law” shall mean all applicable provisions of all (i) constitutions, treaties, statutes, laws
(including the common law), codes, rules, regulations, circulars, ordinances or orders of any
governmental authority and SEBI; (ii) governmental approvals; (iii) orders, decisions,
injunctions, judgments, awards and decrees of or agreements with any governmental authority;
(iv) rules of any stock exchanges; (v) international treaties, conventions and protocols; and (vi)
Indian GAAP or any generally accepted accounting principles.

Managing Director “shall have the meaning assigned to it under the Act.

“MCA”shall mean the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

(7)) Mémorandum sh#ll mean the memorandum of association of the Company as amended from

time to time.



(kk) Notified Sections hall mean the sections of the Companies Act, 2013 that have been notified

()

by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India and are currently in effect.

“Office’shall mean the registered office for the time being of the Company.

(mm) “Officer” shall have the meaning assigned thereto by section 2(59) of the Act.

(nn)
(00)

(pp)

“Ordinary Resolution” shall have the meaning assigned thereto by section 114 of the Act.

“Paid up” shall include such aggregate amount of money credited as paid-up as is equivalent to
the amount received as paid up in respect of shares issued and also includes any amount
credited as paid-up in respect of shares of the Company, but does not include any other amount
received in respect of such shares, by whatever name called.

“Person” shall mean any natural person, sole proprietorship, partnership, company, body
corporate, governmental authority, joint venture, trust, association or other entity(whether
registered or not and whether or not having separate legal personality).

(qq) Register of Members shall mean register of sharcholders to be kept pursuant to section 88 of

(rr)

(ss)
(tt)
(uw)

the Act.

“Registrar” shall mean Registrar of Companies, from time to time having jurisdiction over the
Company.

“Rules” shall mean the rules made under the Act and notified from time to time.
“Seal”shall mean common seal(s) for the time being of the Company.

“SEBI" shall mean the Securities and Exchange Board of India, constituted under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992.

(vv) Sécretary shall mean company secretary within the meaning of clause (c) of sub-section 1 of

section 2 of the Company Secretaries Act, 1980 and includes any other individual possessing
the prescribed qualifications and appointed to perform the duties which may be performed by a
secretary under the act and any other administrative duties.

(ww) “Security” or “Securities” shall mean any Equity Shares or any other securities, debentures

(xx)

warrants or options whether or not, directly or indirectly convertible into, or exercisable or
exchangeable into or for Equity Shares.

“Share Equivalents” shall mean any Debentures, preference shares, foreign currency
convertible bonds, floating rate notes, options (including options to be approved by the Board
(whether or not issued) pursuant to an employee stock option plan) or warrants or other
securities or rights which are by their terms convertible or exchangeable into or for Equity
Shares.

(yy) Shareholder shall mean any Person holding shares of the Company, from time to time.

(22)

“Special Resolution” shall have the meaning assigned to it under section 114 of the Act.

(aaa) “Transfer” shall mean (i) any direct or indirect, transfer or other disposition of any shares,

Securities (including convertible securities) or voting interests or any interest therein,
including, without limitation, by operation of Law, by court order, or judicial process, or by
foreclosure, levy or attachment; (ii) any, direct or indirect, sale, assignment, gift, donation,
redemption, conversion or other disposition of such shares, Securities (including convertible



securities) or voting interests or any interest therein, pursuant to an agreement, arrangement,
instrument or understanding by which legal title to or beneficial ownership of such shares,
Securities (including convertible securities) or voting interests or any interest therein passes
from one Person to another Person or to the same Person in a different legal capacity, whether
or not for value; (iii) the granting of any security interest or encumbrance in, or extending or
attaching to, such shares, Securities (including convertible securities) or voting interests or any
interest therein, and the word “Transferred”shall be construed accordingly.

(bbb) “Tribunal” shall mean the National Company Law tribunal constituted under section 408 of the

B.

Act.

CONSTRUCTION

In these Articles (unless the context requires otherwise):

(2)

(b)

(©

(d)

(©)

References to a party shall, where the context permits, include such party’s respective
successors, legal heirs and permitted assigns.

The descriptive headings of Articles are inserted solely for convenience of reference and are not
intended as complete or accurate descriptions of content thereof and shall not be used to
interpret the provisions of these Articles and shall not affect the construction of these Articles.

References to articles and sub-articles are references to Articles and sub-articles of and to these
Articles unless otherwise stated and references to these Articles include references to these
articles and sub-articles herein.

Words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa, pronouns importing a gender
include each of the masculine, feminine, neutral genders and where a word or phrase is defined,
other parts of speech and grammatical of that word or phrase shall have the corresponding
meanings.

Wherever the words “include™. “includes™ or “including™ is used in these Articles. such words
shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation™.

() "herpRE yerhgrein™, “hereto”, “hereunder™ or similar CXPressIons ysed in these

(8)

(h)

(i)

©)

Articles mean and refer to these Articles and not to any particular article of these Articles,
unless expressly stated otherwise.

Unless otherwise specified, time periods within or following which any payment is to be made
or act is to be done shall be calculated by excluding the day on which the period commences
and including the day on which the period ends and by extending the period to the next
Business Day following if the last day of such period is not a Business Day and whenever any
payment is to be made or action to be taken under these Articles is required to be made or taken
on a day other than a Business Day, such payment shall be made or action taken on the next
Business Day following.

A reference to party being liable to another party, or to liability, includes, but is not limited to,
any liability in equity, contract or tort (including negligence).

Reference to statutory provisions shall be construed as meaning and including references also to
any amendment or re-enactment for the time being in force and to all statutory instruments or
orders made pursuant to such statutory provisions.

References to any particular number or percentage of Securities of a Person (whether on a Fully
Diluted Basis or otherwise) shall be adjusted for any form of restructuring of the share capital of
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that Person, including without limitation, consolidation or subdivision or splitting of its shares,
issue of bonus shares, issue of shares in a scheme of arrangement (including amalgamation or
de-merger) and reclassification of Equity Shares or variations of rights into other kinds of
Securities.

References made to any provision of the Act shall be construed as meaning and including the
references to the rules and regulations made in relation to the same by the MCA. The applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 shall cease to have effect from the date on which the
corresponding provisions under the Act shall be notified.

In the event any of the provisions of the Articles are contrary to the provisions of the Act and
the Rules, the provisions of the Act and the Rules shall prevail.

EXPRESSIONS IN THE ACT AND THESE ARTICLES

Save as aforesaid, any words or expressions defined in the Act shall, if not inconsistent with the
subject or context, bear the same meaning in these Articles.

4.

(a)

(b)
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SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized Share Capital of the Company shall be as stated under clause V of the
Memorandum from time to time.

The Paid up Share Capital shall be at all times be as required under the Act.

The Company has power, from time to time, to increase its authorized or issued and Paid up
Share Capital.

The Share Capital of the Company may be classified into Equity shares with differential rights
as to Dividend, voting or otherwise in accordance with applicable provisions of the Act, Rules,
and Law, from time to time.

Subject to Article 4(d) all the Equity Shares shall be of the same class and shall be alike in all
respects and the holders thereof shall be entitled to identical rights and privileges including
without limitation to identical rights and privileges with respect to Dividends, voting rights and
distribution of assets in the event of voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding
up of the Company.

The Board may allot and issue shares of the Company as payment or part payment for any
property purchased by the Company or in respect of goods sold or transferred or machinery or
appliances supplied or for services rendered to the Company in or about the formation of the
Company or the acquisition and/or in the conduct of its business or for any goodwill provided
to the Company; and any shares which maybe so allotted maybe issued as fully/partly Paid up
shares and if so issued shall be deemed as fully/partly Paid up shares. However, the aforesaid
shall be subject to the approval of Shareholders under the relevant provisions of the Act and
Rules.

Nothing herein contained shall prevent the Directors from issuing fully Paid up shares either on
payment of the entire nominal value thereof in cash or in satisfaction of any outstanding debt or
obligation of the Company.

Except so far as otherwise provided by the conditions of issue or by these presents, any Capital
raised by the creation of new Equity shares shall be considered as part of the existing Capital
and shall be subject to the provisions herein contained with reference to the payment of calls
and installments, forfeiture, lien, surrender, Transfer and transmission, voting and otherwise.
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All of the provisions of these Articles shall apply to the Shareholders.

Any application signed by or on behalf of an applicant for shares in the Company, followed by
an allotment of any Equity Shares therein, shall be an acceptance of shares within the meaning
of these Articles and every Person who thus or otherwise accepts any shares and whose name is
on the Register of Members shall for the purposes of the Articles be a Shareholder.

The money, (if any) which the Board shall, on the allotment of, any shares being made by them,
require or direct to be paid by way of deposit, call or otherwise, in respect of any shares allotted
by them, shall immediately on the insertion of the name of the allotee, in the Register of
Members as the name of the holder of such Equity Shares, become a debt due to and
recoverable by the Company from the allottee thereof, and shall be paid by him accordingly.

BRANCH OFFICES

The Company shall have the power to establish one or more branch offices, in addition to the Office,
in such places as the Board may deem fit.

6.

(@)

(b)

7.

PREFERENCE SHARES
Redeemable Preference Shares

The Company, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and the consent of the Board,
shall have the power to issue on a cumulative or non-cumulative basis, preference shares liable
to be redeemed in any manner permissible under the Act and the Directors may, subject to the
applicable provisions of the Act, exercise such power in any manner as they deem fit and
provide for redemption of such shares on such terms including the right to redeem at a premium
or otherwise as they deem fit.

Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares

The Company, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and the consent of the Board,
shall have power to issue on a cumulative or non-cumulative basis convertible redeemable
preference shares liable to be redeemed in any manner permissible under the Act and the
Directors may, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, exercise such power as they
deem fit and provide for redemption at a premium or otherwise and/or conversion of such
shares into such Securities on such terms as they may deem fit.

PROVISIONS IN CASE OF PREFERENCE SHARES

Upon the issue of preference shares pursuant to Article 6, above, the following provisions shall apply:

(2)

(b)
(©

No such shares shall be redeemed except out of profits of the Company which would otherwise
be available for Dividend or out of the proceeds of fresh issue of shares made for the purposes
of the redemption;

No such shares shall be redeemed unless they are fully paid;
The premium, if any, payable on redemption shall have been provided for out of the profits of

the Company or out of the Company’s securities premium account, before the shares are
redeemed;



(d) Where any such shares are proposed to be redeemed out of the profits of the Company, there
shall, out of such profits be Transferred, a sum equal to the nominal amount of the shares to be
redeemed, to a reserve, to be called the “Capital Redemption Reserve Account™ and the
applicable provisions of the Act relating to the reduction of the Share Capital of the Company
shall, except as provided by section 55 of the Act apply as if the Capital Redemption Reserve
Account were the Paid up Share Capital of the Company.

(e) The redemption of preference shares under this Article by the Company shall not be taken as
reduction of Share Capital;

(f)  The Capital Redemption Reserve Account may, notwithstanding anything in this Article, be
applied by the Company, in paying up un-issued shares of the Company to be issued to the
Shareholders as fully paid bonus shares; and

(g) Whenever the Company shall redeem any redeemable preference shares or cumulative
convertible redeemable preference shares, the Company shall, within 30 (thirty) days thereafter,
give notice thereof to the Registrar as required by section 64 of the Act.

8. SHARE EQUIVALENT

The Company shall, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, compliance with Law and the
consent of the Board, have the power to issue Share Equivalents on such terms and in such manner as
the Board deems fit including their conversion, repayment, and redemption whether at a premium or
otherwise.

9. ADRs/GDRs

The Company shall, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, compliance with all Laws and the
consent of the Board, have the power to issue ADRs or GDRs on such terms and such manner as the
Board deems fit including their conversion and repayment. Such terms may include at the discretion
of the Board, limitations on voting by holders of ADRs or GDRs, including without limitation,
exercise of voting rights in accordance with the directions of the Board.

10. ALTERATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

Subject to these Articles and the applicable provisions of the Act (including section 61 of the Act), the
Company may, by Ordinary Resolution in General Meeting from time to time, alter the conditions of
its Memorandum as follows that is to say it may:

(a) increase its authorized share Capital by such amount as it thinks expedient;

(b) consolidate and divide all or any of its Share Capital into shares of larger amount than its
existing shares;

Provided that, no consolidation and division which results in changes in the voting percentage
of Shareholders shall take effect unless it is approved by the Tribunal on an application made in
the prescribed manner.

(¢) convert all or any of its fully Paid-up shares into stock and reconvert that stock into fully Paid-
up shares of any denomination.

(d) sub-divide its shares, or any of them, into shares of smaller amount than is fixed by the
Memorandum, so however, that in the sub-division the proportion between the amount paid and
the amount, if any, unpaid on each reduced share shall be the same as it was in the case of the
share from which the reduced share is derived; and



(e) cancel shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution in that behalf, have not been
taken or agreed to be taken by any Person, and diminish the amount of its Share Capital by the
amount of the shares so cancelled. A cancellation of shares in pursuance of this Article shall not
be deemed to be a reduction of Share Capital within the meaning of the Act.

11. REDUCTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

The Company may, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, from time to time, reduce its
Capital, any capital redemption reserve account and the securities premium account in any manner for
the time being authorized by Law. This Article is not to derogate any power the Company would have
under Law, if it were omitted.

12.  POWER OF COMPANY TO PURCHASE ITS OWN SECURITIES

Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, pursuant to a resolution of the Board, the
Company may purchase its own Equity Shares or other Securities as may be specified by the MCA,
by way of a buy-back arrangement, in accordance with sections 68, 69 and 70 of the Act, the Rules
and subject to compliance with Law.

13. POWER TO MODIFY RIGHTS

Where, the Capital, is divided (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that
class) into different classes of shares, all or any of the rights and privileges attached to each class may,
subject to the provisions of section 48 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Law, whether or not the
Company is being wound up, be modified, commuted, affected or abrogated or dealt with by
agreement between the Company and any Person purporting to contract on behalf of that class,
provided the same is affected with consent in writing and by way of a Special Resolution passed at a
separate meeting of the holders of the issued shares of the class.

14. REGISTERS TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE COMPANY

(a) The Company shall, in terms of provisions of the section 88 of the Act, cause to be kept the
following registers in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act.

(1) A Register of Members indicating separately for each class of Equity Shares and
preference shares held by each Shareholder residing in or outside India;

(ii) A register of Debenture holders;
(i) A register of any other security holders.

(b) The Company shall also be entitled to keep in any country outside India, a part of the registers
referred above, called “loreign register™ containing names and particulars of the Shareholders,

Debenture holders or holders of other Securities or Beneficial Owners residing outside India.

(c) The registers mentioned in this Article shall be kept and maintained in the manner prescribed
under the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014.

15. SHARES AND SHARE CERTIFICATES
(a) The Company shall issue, re-issue share certificates and issue duplicate share certificates in

accordance with the provisions of the Act and in the form and manner prescribed under the
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.
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A duplicate certificate of shares may be issued, if such certificate:
(1) is proved to have been lost or destroyed; or
(ii) has been defaced, mutilated or torn and is surrendered to the Company.

The Company shall be entitled to dematerialize its existing shares, rematerialize its shares held
in the Depository and/or to offer its fresh shares in a dematerialized form pursuant to the
Depositories Act, and the rules framed thereunder, if any.

A certificate, issued under the Seal, specifying the shares held by any Person shall be prima
facie evidence of the title of the Person to such shares. Where the shares are held in depository
form, the record of the Depository shall be prima facie evidence of the interest of the Beneficial
Owner.

If any certificate be worn out, defaced, mutilated or torn or there be no further space on the
back thereof for endorsement of Transfer, then upon production and surrender thereof to the
Company, a new certificate may be issued in lieu thereof and if any certificate is lost or
destroyed then upon proof thereof, to the satisfaction of the Company and on execution of such
indemnity as the Company deems accurate, being given, a new certificate in lieu thereof shall
be given to the party entitled to such lost or destroyed certificate. Every certificate under the
Articles shall be issued without payment of fees if the Directors so decide, or on payment of
such fees (not exceeding Rupees two for each certificate) as the Directors shall prescribe.
Provided that, no fee shall be charged for issue of a new certificate in replacement of those
which are old, defaced or worn out or where there is no further space on the back thereof for
endorsement of Transfer.

Provided that notwithstanding that what is stated above, the Directors shall comply with the
applicable provisions of the Act and Law.

The provisions of this Article shall mutatis mutandis apply to Debentures and other Securities
of the Company.

When a new certificate has been issued in pursuance sub-article (e) of this Article, it shall be in
the form and manner stated under the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

Where a new share certificate has been issued in pursuance of sub-articles (e) and (f) of this
Article, particulars of every such share certificate shall be entered in a register of renewed and
duplicate certificates maintained in the form and manner specified under the Companies ( Share
Capital and Debenture ) Rules, 2014.

All books referred to in this Article, shall be preserved in the manner specified in the
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

The details in relation to any renewal or duplicate share certificate shall be entered in the
register of renewed and duplicate share certificates, as prescribed under the Companies (Share
Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014.

If any Share stands in the name of 2 (two) or more Persons, the Person first named in the
Register of Members shall as regards receipt of Dividends or bonus, or service of notices and all
or any other matters connected with the Company except voting at meetings and the Transfer
of shares, be deemed the sole holder thereof, but the joint holders of a share shall be severally as
well as jointly liable for the payment of all installments and calls due in respect of such shares,
and for all incidents thereof according to these Articles.

10
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Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as may be required by Law, the
Company shall be entitled to treat the Shareholder whose name appears on the Register of
Members as the holder of any share or whose name appears as a Beneficial Owner of shares in
the records of the Depository, as the absolute owner thereof and accordingly shall not be bound
to recognize any benami, trust or equity or equitable, contingent or other claim to or interest in
such share on the part of any other Person whether or not he shall have express or implied
notice thereof. The Board shall be entitled at their sole discretion to register any shares in the
joint names of any 2 (two) or more Persons or the survivor or survivors of them.

SHARES AT THE DISPOSAL OF THE DIRECTORS

Subject to the provisions of section 62, other applicable provisions of the Act and these Articles,
the shares in the Capital of the Company for the time being (including any shares forming part
of any increased Capital of the Company) shall be under the control of the Board who may
issue, allot or otherwise dispose of the same or any of them to such Persons, in such proportion
and on such terms and conditions and either at a premium or at par at such time as they may,
from time to time think fit.

If, by the conditions of allotment of any share, the whole or part of the amount thereof shall be
payable by installments, every such installment shall, when due, be paid to the Company by the
Person who, for the time being, shall be the registered holder of the shares or by his Executor or
Administrator.

Every Shareholder, or his heirs, Executors or Administrators shall pay to the Company, the
portion of the Capital represented by his share or shares which may for the time being remain
unpaid thereon in such amounts at such time or times and in such manner as the Board shall
from time to time in accordance with the Articles require or fix for the payment thereof.

In accordance with section 56 and other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules:

(1) Every Shareholder or allotee of shares shall be entitled without payment, to receive one
or more certificates specifying the name of the Person in whose favor it is issued, the
shares to which it relates and the amount Paid up thereon. Such certificates shall be
issued only in pursuance of a resolution passed by the Board and on surrender to the
Company of its letter of allotment or its fractional coupon of requisite value, save in
cases of issue of share certificates against letters of acceptance or of renunciation, or in
cases of issue of bonus shares. Such share certificates shall also be issued in the event
of consolidation or sub-division of shares of the Company. Provided however, no
Shareholder shall be entitled to sub-divide/consolidate share certificates without the
prior permission from the Company. Every such certificate shall specify the shares to
which it relates and the amount paid thereon be issued under the Seal which shall be
affixed in the presence of 2 (two) Directors or Persons acting on behalf of the Board
under a duly registered power of attorney and the Secretary or some other Person
appointed by the Board for that purpose and the 2 (two) Directors and their attorneys
the Secretary or some other Person shall sign the share certificate(s), provided if the
composition of the Board permits at least 1 (one) of the aforesaid 2 (two) directors shall
be a Person other than a Managing Director(s), or an executive Director(s). Particulars
of every share certificate issued shall be entered in the Register of Members against the
name of the Person, to whom it has been issued, indicating the date of issue. For any
further certificate, the Board shall be entitled, but shall not be bound to prescribe a
charge not exceeding rupees two;

(i1) Every Shareholder shall be entitled without payment, to one or more certificates, in

marketable slots, for all the shares of each class or denomination registered in his name,
or if the Directors so approve (upon paying such fees as the Directors may from time to

11
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time determine) to several certificates, each for one or more of such shares and the
Company shall complete and have ready for delivery such certificates within 2 ( two)
months from the date of allotment, or within 1 (one) month of the receipt of instrument
of Transfer, transmission, sub-division, consolidation, or renewal of its shares as the
case may be. Every certificate of shares shall be in the form and manner specified in
Article 15 above and in respect of a share or shares held jointly by several Persons, the
Company shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate and delivery of a
certificate of shares to the first named joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all
such holders;

(i)  the Board may, at their absolute discretion, refuse any applications for the sub-division
of share certificates or Debenture certificates, into denominations less than marketable
lots except where sub-division is required to be made to comply with any statutory
provision or an order of a competent court of Law or at a request from a Shareholder or
to convert holding of odd lot into transferrable/marketable lot;

(iv) A Director may sign a share certificate by affixing his signature thereon by means of a
machine, equipment or other mechanical or other mechanical means, such as engraving
in metal or lithography, but not by means of a rubber stamp, provided that the Director
shall be responsible for the safe custody of such machine, equipment or other material
used for that purpose.

UNDERWRITING AND BROKERAGE

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Company may at any time pay a commission
to any Person in consideration of his subscribing or agreeing to subscribe or procuring or
agreeing to procure subscription, (whether absolutely or conditionally), for any shares or
Debentures in the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014.

The Company may also, on any issue of shares or Debentures, pay such brokerage as may be
lawful.

CALLS

Subject to the provisions of section 49 of the Act, the Board may, from time to time, subject to
the terms on which any shares may have been issued and subject to the conditions of allotment,
by a resolution passed at a meeting of the Board, (and not by circular resolution), make such
call as it thinks fit upon the Shareholders in respect of all money unpaid on the shares held by
them respectively and each Shareholder shall pay the amount of every call so made on him to
the Person or Persons and Shareholders and at the times and places appointed by the Board. A
call may be made payable by installments. Provided that the Board shall not give the option or
right to call on shares to any Person except with the sanction of the Company in the General
Meeting.

A 30 (thirty) days' notice in writing at the least of every call (otherwise than on allotment) shall
be given by the Company specifying the time and place of payment and if payable to any
Person other than the Company, the name of the Person to whom the call shall be paid, provided
that before the time for payment of such call, the Board may by notice in writing to the
Shareholders revoke the same.

The Board of Directors may, when making a call by resolution, determine the date on which
such call shall be deemed to have been made, not being earlier than the date of resolution
making such call and thereupon the call shall be deemed to have been made on the date so
determined and if no date is determined, the call shall be deemed to have been made at the time

12
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when the resolution of the Board authorizing such call was passed and may be made payable by
the Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members on such date or at the
discretion of the Board on such subsequent date as shall be fixed by the Board. A call may be
revoked or postponed at the discretion of the Board.

The joint holder of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all installments and calls
due in respect thereof.

The Board may, from time to time at its discretion, extend the time fixed for the payment of any
call and may extend such time as to all or any of the Shareholders who, from residence at a
distance or other cause the Board may deem fairly entitled to such extension; but no
Shareholders shall be entitled to such extension save as a matter of grace and favour.

If any Shareholder or allottee fails to pay the whole or any part of any call or installment, due
from him on the day appointed for payment thereof, or any such extension thereof as aforesaid,
he shall be liable to pay interest on the same from the day appointed for the payment thereof to
the time of actual payment at such rate as shall from time to time be fixed by the Board but
nothing in this Article shall render it obligatory for the Board to demand or recover any interest
from any such Shareholder.

Any sum, which by the terms of issue of a share or otherwise, becomes payable on allotment or
at any fixed date or by installments at a fixed time whether on account of the nominal value of
the share or by way of premium shall for the purposes of these Articles be deemed to be a call
duly made and payable on the date on which by the terms of issue or otherwise the same
became payable, and in case of non-payment, all the relevant provisions of these Articles as to
payment of call, interest, expenses, forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum became
payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

On the trial or hearing of any action or suit brought by the Company against any Shareholder or
his legal representatives for the recovery of any money claimed to be due to the Company in
respect of his shares, it shall be sufficient to prove that the name of the Shareholder in respect of
whose shares the money is sought to be recovered appears entered on the Register of Members
as the holder, or one of the holders at or subsequent to the date at which the money sought to be
recovered is alleged to have become due on the shares; that the resolution making the call is
duly recorded in the minute book, and that notice of such call was duly given to the Shareholder
or his representatives so sued in pursuance of these Articles; and it shall not be necessary to
prove the appointment of the Directors who made such call nor that a quorum of Directors was
present at the Board at which any call was made, nor that the meeting at which any call was
made was duly convened or constituted nor any other matters whatsoever; but the proof of the
matters aforesaid shall be conclusive evidence of the debt.

Neither a judgment nor a decree in favour of the Company for calls or other money due in
respect of any share nor any part payment or satisfaction thereunder, nor the receipt by the
Company of a portion of any money which shall from time to time be due from any Shareholder
to the Company in respect of his shares, either by way of principal or interest, nor any
indulgence granted by the Company in respect of the payment of any such money shall preclude
the Company from thereafter proceeding to enforce a forfeiture of such shares as hereinafter
provided.

The Board may, if it thinks fit (subject to the provisions of section 50 of the Act) agree to and
receive from any Shareholder willing to advance the same, the whole or any part of the money
due upon the shares held by him beyond the sums actually called up, and upon the amount so
paid or satisfied in advance or so much thereof as from time to time and at any time thereafter
as exceeds the amount of the calls then made upon and due in respect of the shares in respect of
which such advance has been made, the Company may pay interest, as the Shareholder paying
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such sum in advance and the Board agree upon, provided that the money paid in advance of
calls on any share may carry interest but shall not confer a right to participate in profits or
Dividend. The Directors may at any time repay the amount so advanced.

No Shareholder shall be entitled to voting rights in respect of the money (ies) so paid by him
until the same would but for such payment, become presently payable.

The provisions of these Articles shall mutatis mutandis apply to the calls on Debentures of the
Company.

COMPANY’S LIEN:
ON SHARES:
The Company shall have a first and paramount lien:

(1) on every share (not being a fully paid share), for all money (whether presently payable
or not) called, or payable at a fixed time, in respect of that share;

(ii) on all shares (not being fully paid shares) standing registered in the name of a single
Person, for all money presently payable by him or his estate to the Company.

Provided that, the Board may at any time, declare any shares wholly or in part to be exempt
from the provisions of this Article.

The Company's lien, if any, on the shares, shall extend to all the Dividends payable and
bonuses declared from time to time in respect of such shares.

Unless otherwise agreed, the registration of the Transfer of shares shall operate as a waiver of
the Company's lien, if any, on such shares. The fully Paid up shares shall be free from all lien
and that in case of partly paid shares, the Company's lien shall be restricted to money called or
payable at a fixed price in respect of such shares.

For the purpose of enforcing such lien, the Board may sell the shares, subject thereto in such
manner as they shall think fit, and may authorize one of their Shareholders to execute and
register the Transfer thereof on behalf of and in the name of any purchaser. The purchaser shall
not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, nor shall his title to the shares be
affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the sale.

Provided that no sale shall be made:
(1) Unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently payable; or

(i1) Until the expiration of 14 days after a notice in writing stating and demanding payment
of such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable, has
been given to the registered holder for the time being of the share or the Person entitled
thereto by reason of his death or insolvency.

The net proceeds of any such sale shall be received by the Company and applied in payment of
such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable. The residue,
if any, shall (subject to a like lien for sums not presently payable as existed upon the shares
before the sale) be paid to the Person entitled to the shares at the date of the sale.

14
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No Shareholder shall exercise any voting right in respect of any shares registered in his name on
which any calls or other sums presently payable by him have not been paid, or in regard to
which the Company has exercised any right of lien.

ON DEBENTURES:
The Company shall have a first and paramount lien:

(1) on every Debenture (not being a fully paid Debenture), for all money (whether
presently payable or not) called, or payable at a fixed time, in respect of that Debenture;

(i1) on all Debentures (not being fully paid Debentures) standing registered in the name of a
single Person, for all money presently payable by him or his estate to the Company.

Provided that the Board may, at any time, declare any Debentures wholly or in part to be
exempt from the provisions of this Article.

Company's lien, if any, on the Debentures, shall extend to all interest and premium payable in
respect of such Debentures.

Unless otherwise agreed, the registration of a transfer of Debentures shall operate as a waiver of
the Company's lien, if any, on such Debentures. The fully Paid up Debentures shall be free from
all lien and that in case of partly paid Debentures, the Company's lien shall be restricted to
money called or payable at a fixed price in respect of such Debentures.

For the purpose of enforcing such lien, the Board may sell the Debentures, subject thereto in
such manner as they shall think fit, and for that purpose may cause to be issued a duplicate
certificate in respect of such Debentures and may authorize the Debenture trustee acting as
trustee for the holders of Debentures or one of the holder of Debentures to execute and register
the transfer thereof on behalf of and in the name of any purchaser. The purchaser shall not be
bound to see to the application of the purchase money, nor shall his title to the Debentures be
affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the sale.

Provided that no sale shall be made:
(1) unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently payable; or

(ii) until the expiration of 14(fourteen) days after a notice in writing stating and demanding
payment of such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently
payable, has been given to the registered holder for the time being of the Debenture or
the Person entitled thereto by reason of his death or insolvency.

The net proceeds of any such sale shall be received by the Company and applied in payment of
such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable. The residue,
if any, shall (subject to a like lien for sums not presently payable as existed upon the Debentures
before the sale) be paid to the Person entitled to the Debentures at the date of the sale.

No holder of Debentures shall exercise any voting right in respect of any Debentures registered
in his name on which any calls or other sums presently payable by him have not been paid, or in
regard to which the Company has exercised any right of lien.

FORFEITURE OF SHARES

If any Shareholder fails to pay any call or installment or any part thereof or any money due in
respect of any shares either by way of principal or interest on or before the day appointed for

15



(b)

(©

(d)

(©)

()

(8)

(h)

(1)

the payment of the same or any such extension thereof as aforesaid, the Board may, at any time
thereafter, during such time as the call or installment or any part thereof or other money remain
unpaid or a judgment or decree in respect thereof remain unsatisfied, give notice to him or his
legal representatives requiring him to pay the same together with any interest that may have
accrued and all expenses that may have been incurred by the Company by reason of such non-
payment.

The notice shall name a day, (not being less than 14 (fourteen) days from the date of the notice),
and a place or places on or before which such call or installment or such part or other money as
aforesaid and interest thereon, (at such rate as the Board shall determine and payable from the
date on which such call or installment ought to have been paid), and expenses as aforesaid are
to be paid. The notice shall also state that in the event of non-payment at or before the time and
at the place appointed, the shares in respect of which the call was made or installment is
payable, will be liable to be forfeited.

If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not be complied with, any share in
respect of which such notice has been given, may at any time, thereafter before payment of all
calls, installments, other money due in respect thereof, interest and expenses as required by the
notice has been made, be forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that effect. Such forfeiture
shall include all Dividends declared or any other money payable in respect of the forfeited share
and not actually paid before the forfeiture subject to the applicable provisions of the Act. There
shall be no forfeiture of unclaimed Dividends before the claim becomes barred by Law.

When any share shall have been so forfeited, notice of the forfeiture shall be given to the
Shareholder on whose name it stood immediately prior to the forfeiture or if any of his legal
representatives or to any of the Persons entitled to the shares by transmission, and an entry of
the forfeiture with the date thereof, shall forth-with be made in the Register of Members, but no
forfeiture shall be in any manner invalidated by any omission or neglect to give such notice or
to make any such entry as aforesaid.

Any share so forfeited shall be deemed to be the property of the Company and may be sold; re-
allotted, or otherwise disposed of either to the original holder thereof or to any other Person
upon such terms and in such manner as the Board shall think fit.

Any Shareholder whose shares have been forfeited shall, notwithstanding the forfeiture, be
liable to pay and shall forthwith pay to the Company on demand all calls, installments, interest
and expenses and other money owing upon or in respect of such shares at the time of the
forfeiture together with interest thereon from the time of the forfeiture until payment at such
rate as the Board may determine and the Board may enforce, (if it thinks fit), payment thereof as
if it were a new call made at the date of forfeiture.

The forfeiture of a share shall involve extinction at the time of the forfeiture of all interest in all
claims and demands against the Company, in respect of the share and all other rights incidental
to the share, except only such of these rights as by these Articles are expressly saved.

A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a Director, the manager or Secretary
of the Company and that a share in the Company has been duly forfeited in accordance with
these Articles on a date stated in the declaration, shall be conclusive evidence of the facts
therein stated as against all Persons claiming to be entitled to the shares.

Upon any sale after forfeiture or for enforcing a lien in purported exercise of the powers
hereinbefore given, the Board may appoint some Person to execute an instrument of Transfer of
the shares sold and cause the purchaser's name to be entered in the Register of Members in
respect of the shares sold and the purchaser shall not be bound to see to the regularity of the
proceedings, or to the application of the purchase money, and after his name has been entered in

16



Q)

(k)

21.

(a)

(b)

(©

the Register of Members in respect of such shares, the validity of the sale shall not be
impeached by any Person and the remedy of any Person aggrieved by the sale shall be in
damages only and against the Company exclusively.

Upon any sale, re-allotment or other disposal under the provisions of the preceding Articles, the
certificate or certificates originally issued in respect of the relevant shares shall, (unless the
same shall on demand by the Company have been previously surrendered to it by the defaulting
Shareholder), stand cancelled and become null and void and of no effect and the Board shall be
entitled to issue a new certificate or certificates in respect of the said shares to the Person or
Persons entitled thereto.

The Board may, at any time, before any share so forfeited shall have been sold, re-allotted or
otherwise disposed of, annul the forfeiture thereof upon such conditions as it thinks fit.

FURTHER ISSUE OF SHARE CAPITAL

Where at any time, the Company proposes to increase its subscribed capital by the issue of
further shares, such shares shall be offered—

(1) to Persons who, at the date of the offer, are holders of Equity Shares of the Company in
proportion, as nearly as circumstances admit, to the Paid up Share Capital on those
shares by sending a letter of offer subject to the following conditions, namely:-

a. the offer shall be made by notice specifying the number of shares offered and
limiting a time not being less than 15 (fifteen) days and not exceeding 30
(thirty) days from the date of the offer within which the offer, if not accepted,
shall be deemed to have been declined;

b.  the offer aforesaid shall be deemed-to include a right exercisable by the Person
concerned to renounce the shares offered to him or any of them in favour of any
other Person; and the notice referred to in clause a. above shall contain a
statement of this right;

c. after the expiry of the time specified in the notice aforesaid, or on receipt of
earlier intimation from the Person to whom such notice is given that he declines
to accept the shares offered, the Board may dispose of them in such manner
which is not disadvantageous to the Shareholders and the Company;

(ii) to employees under a scheme of employees’ stock option, subject to Special Resolution
passed by the Company and subject to the Rules and such other conditions, as may be
prescribed under the Law; or

(i)  to any Persons, if it is authorized by a Special Resolution, whether or not those Persons
include the Persons referred to in clause (i) or clause (ii) above, either for cash or for a
consideration other than cash

the notice referred to in sub-clause a. of clause (i) of sub-article (a) shall be dispatched through
registered post or speed post or through electronic mode to all the existing Shareholders at least
3 (three) days before the opening of the issue.

Nothing in this Article shall apply to the increase of the subscribed capital of a Company caused

by the exercise of an option as a term attached to the Debentures issued or loan raised by the
Company to convert such Debentures or loans into shares in the Company:
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Provided that the terms of issue of such Debentures or loan containing such an option have been
approved before the issue of such Debentures or the raising of loan by a Special Resolution
passed by the Company in a General Meeting.

The provisions contained in this Article shall be subject to the provisions of the section 42 and
section 62 of the Act, the Rules and the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

The Company shall maintain a register of Transfers and shall have recorded therein fairly and
distinctly particulars of every Transfer or transmission of any Share, Debenture or other
Security held in a material form.

In accordance with section 56 of the Act, the Rules and such other conditions as may be
prescribed under Law, every instrument of Transfer of shares held in physical form shall be in
writing. In case of Transfer of shares where the Company has not issued any certificates and
where the shares are held in dematerialized form, the provisions of the Depositories Act shall

apply.

An application for the registration of a Transfer of the shares in the Company may be made
either by the transferor or the transferee within the time frame prescribed under the Act.

Where the application is made by the transferor and relates to partly paid shares, the Transfer
shall not be registered unless the Company gives notice of the application to the transferee in a
prescribed manner and the transferee communicates no objection to the Transfer within 2 (two)
weeks from the receipt of the notice.

Every such instrument of Transfer shall be executed by both, the transferor and the transferee
and attested and the transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of such share until the name
of the transferee shall have been entered in the Register of Members in respect thereof.

The Board shall have power on giving not less than 7 (seven) days previous notice by
advertisement in a vernacular newspaper and in an English newspaper having wide circulation
in the city, town or village in which the Office is situated, and publishing the notice on the
website as may be notified by the Central Government and on the website of the Company, to
close the transfer books, the Register of Members and/or register of Debenture-holders at such
time or times and for such period or periods, not exceeding 30 (thirty) days at a time and not
exceeding in the aggregate 45 (forty-five) days in each year, as it may deem expedient.

Subject to the provisions of sections 58 and 59 of the Act, these Articles and other applicable
provisions of the Act or any other Law for the time being in force, the Board may, refuse to
register the Transfer of, or the transmission by operation of Law of the right to, any Securities
or interest of a Shareholder in the Company. The Company shall, within 30 (thirty) days from
the date on which the instrument of Transfer, or the intimation of such transmission, as the case
may be, was delivered to the Company, send a notice of refusal to the transferee and transferor
or to the Person giving notice of such transmission, as the case may be, giving reasons for such
refusal.

Provided that, registration of a Transfer shall not be refused on the ground of the transferor
being either alone or jointly with any other Person or Persons indebted to the Company on any
account whatsoever.

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and these Articles, the Directors shall have the

absolute and uncontrolled discretion to refuse to register a Person entitled by transmission to
any shares or his nominee as if he were the transferee named in any ordinary Transfer presented
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for registration, and shall not be bound to give any reason for such refusal and in particular may
also decline in respect of shares upon which the Company has a lien.

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, any Transfer of shares in whatever lot should not be
refused, though there would be no objection to the Company refusing to split a share certificate
into several scripts of any small denominations or, to consider a proposal for Transfer of shares
comprised in a share certificate to several Shareholders, involving such splitting, if on the face
of it such splitting/transfer appears to be unreasonable or without a genuine need. The Company
should not, therefore, refuse Transfer of shares in violation of the stock exchange listing
requirements on the ground that the number of shares to be transferred is less than any specified
number.

In case of the death of any one or more Shareholders named in the Register of Members as the
joint-holders of any shares, the survivors shall be the only Shareholder or Shareholders
recognized by the Company as having any title to or interest in such shares, but nothing therein
contained shall be taken to release the estate of a deceased joint-holder from any liability on
shares held by him jointly with any other Person.

The Executors or Administrators or holder of the succession certificate or the legal
representatives of a deceased Shareholder, (not being one of two or more joint-holders), shall be
the only Shareholders recognized by the Company as having any title to the shares registered in
the name of such Shareholder, and the Company shall not be bound to recognize such Executors
or Administrators or holders of succession certificate or the legal representatives unless such
Executors or Administrators or legal representatives shall have first obtained probate or letters
of administration or succession certificate, as the case may be, from a duly constituted court in
India, provided that the Board may in its absolute discretion dispense with production of
probate or letters of administration or succession certificate, upon such terms as to indemnity or
otherwise as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem fit and may under Article 22(a) of
these Articles register the name of any Person who claims to be absolutely entitled to the shares
standing in the name of a deceased Shareholder, as a Shareholder.

The Board shall not knowingly issue or register a Transfer of any share to a minor or insolvent
or Person of unsound mind, except fully paid shares through a legal guardian.

Subject to the provisions of the Articles, any Person becoming entitled to shares in consequence
of the death, lunacy, bankruptcy of any Shareholder or Shareholders, or by any lawful means
other than by a Transfer in accordance with these Articles, may with the consent of the Board,
(which it shall not be under any obligation to give), upon producing such evidence that he
sustains the character in respect of which he proposes to act under this Article, or of his title, as
the Board thinks sufficient, either be registered himself as the holder of the shares or elect to
have some Person nominated by him and approved by the Board, registered as such holder;
provided nevertheless, that if such Person shall elect to have his nominee registered, he shall
testify the election by executing in favour of his nominee an instrument of Transfer in
accordance with the provisions herein contained and until he does so, he shall not be freed from
any liability in respect of the shares.

A Person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insolvency of a Shareholder
shall be entitled to the same Dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he
were the registered holder of the shares, except that he shall not, before being registered as a
Shareholder in respect of the shares, be entitled to exercise any right conferred by membership
in relation to the meetings of the Company.

Provided that the Directors shall, at any time, give notice requiring any such Person to elect

either to be registered himself or to Transfer the shares, and if such notice is not complied with
within 90 (ninety) days, the Directors may thereafter withhold payment of all Dividends,
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bonuses or other monies payable in respect of the shares until the requirements of the notice
have been complied with.

Every instrument of Transfer shall be presented to the Company duly stamped for registration
accompanied by such evidence as the Board may require to prove the title of the transferor, his
right to Transfer the shares. Every registered instrument of Transfer shall remain in the custody
of the Company until destroyed by order of the Board.

Where any instrument of Transfer of shares has been received by the Company for registration
and the Transfer of such shares has not been registered by the Company for any reason
whatsoever, the Company shall transfer the Dividends in relation to such shares to a special
account unless the Company is authorized by the registered holder of such shares, in writing, to
pay such Dividends to the transferee and will keep in abeyance any offer of right shares and/or
bonus shares in relation to such shares.

In case of Transfer and transmission of shares or other marketable Securities where the
Company has not issued any certificates and where such shares or Securities are being held in
any electronic and fungible form in a Depository, the provisions of the Depositories Act shall

apply.

Before the registration of a Transfer, the certificate or certificates of the share or shares to be
transferred must be delivered to the Company along with a properly stamped and executed
instrument of Transfer in accordance with the provisions of section 56 of the Act.

No fee shall be payable to the Company, in respect of the registration of Transfer or
transmission of shares, or for registration of any power of attorney, probate, letters of
administration and succession certificate, certificate of death or marriage or other similar
documents, sub division and/or consolidation of shares and Debentures and sub-divisions of
letters of allotment, renounceable letters of right and split, consolidation, renewal and genuine
transfer receipts into denomination corresponding to the market unit of trading.

The Company shall incur no liability or responsibility whatsoever in consequence of its
registering or giving effect to any Transfer of shares made or purporting to be made by any
apparent legal owner thereof, (as shown or appearing in the Register of Members), to the
prejudice of a Person or Persons having or claiming any equitable right, title or interest to or in
the said shares, notwithstanding that the Company may have had any notice of such equitable
right, title or interest or notice prohibiting registration of such Transfer, and may have entered
such notice or referred thereto, in any book of the Company and the Company shall not be
bound or required to regard or attend or give effect to any notice which may be given to it of
any equitable right, title or interest or be under any liability whatsoever for refusing or
neglecting so to do, though it may have been entered or referred to in some book of the
Company but the Company shall nevertheless be at liberty to regard and attend to any such
notice, and give effect thereto if the Board shall so think-fit.

There shall be a common form of Transfer in accordance with the Act and Rules.

The provision of these Articles shall subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Rules
and any requirements of Law. Such provisions shall mutatis mutandis apply to the Transfer or
transmission by operation of Law to other Securities of the Company.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SECURITIES

Dematerialization:
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Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, the Company shall be entitled to
dematerialize its existing Securities, rematerialize its Securities held in the Depositories and/or
to offer its fresh Securities in a dematerialized form pursuant to the Depositories Act, and the
rules framed thereunder, if any.

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, either the Company or the investor may exercise
an option to issue, dematerialize, hold the Securities (including shares) with a Depository in
electronic form and the certificates in respect thereof shall be dematerialized, in which event the
rights and obligations of the parties concerned and matters connected therewith or incidental
thereto shall be governed by the provisions of the Depositories Act.

Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles to the contrary, in the event the Securities
of the Company are dematerialized, the Company shall issue appropriate instructions to the
Depository not to Transfer the Securities of any Shareholder except in accordance with these
Articles. The Company shall cause the Promoters to direct the respective Depository
participants not to accept any instruction slip or delivery slip or other authorization for Transfer
in contravention of these Articles.

If a Person opts to hold his Securities with a Depository, the Company shall intimate such
Depository the details of allotment or the Securities and on receipt of the information, the
Depository shall enter in its record the name of the allottee as the Beneficial Owner of the
Securities.

Securities in Depositories to be in fungible form:

All Securities held by a Depository shall be dematerialized and be held in fungible form.
Nothing contained in sections 88, 89 and 186 of the Act shall apply to a Depository in respect of
the Securities held by it on behalf of the Beneficial Owners.

Rights of Depositories & Beneficial Owners:

(1) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Act or these Articles, a
Depository shall be deemed to be the Registered Owner for the purposes of effecting
transfer of ownership of Securities on behalf of the Beneficial Owner;

(i1) Save as otherwise provided in (i) above, the Depository as the Registered Owner of the
Securities shall not have any voting rights or any other rights in respect of the Securities
held by it;

(ili) ~ Every Person holding shares of the Company and whose name is entered as the
Beneficial Owner in the records of the Depository shall be deemed to be a Shareholder;

(iv) The Beneficial Owner of Securities shall, in accordance with the provisions of these
Articles and the Act, be entitled to all the rights and subject to all the liabilities in
respect of his Securities, which are held by a Depository.

Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as may be required by Law and
subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Company shall be entitled to treat the Person
whose name appears in the register as the holder of any share or whose name appears as the
Beneficial Owner of any share in the records of the Depository as the absolute owner thereof
and accordingly shall not be bound to recognize any benami trust or equity, equitable
contingent, future, partial interest, other claim to or interest in respect of such shares or (except
only as by these Articles otherwise expressly provided) any right in respect of a share other than
an absolute right thereto in accordance with these Articles, on the part of any other Person
whether or not it has expressed or implied notice thereof but the Board shall at their sole
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discretion register any share in the joint names of any two or more Persons or the survivor or
survivors of them.

Register and Index of Beneficial Owners:

The Company shall cause to keep a register and index of members with details of shares and
Debentures held in materialized and dematerialized forms in any media as may be permitted by
Law including any form of electronic media.

The register and index of Beneficial Owners maintained by a Depository under the Depositories
Act shall be deemed to be a register and index of members for the purposes of the Act. The
Company shall have the power to keep in any state or country outside India a register resident in
that state or country.

Cancellation of Certificates upon surrender by Person:

Upon receipt of certificate of Securities on surrender by a Person who has entered into an
agreement with the Depository through a participant, the Company shall cancel such certificates
and shall substitute in its record, the name of the Depository as the registered owner in respect
of the said Securities and shall also inform the Depository accordingly.

Service of Documents:

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Act or these Articles to the contrary, where
Securities are held in a Depository, the records of the beneficial ownership may be served by
such Depository on the Company by electronic mode or by delivery of floppies or discs.

Transfer of Securities:

(1) Nothing contained in section 56 of the Act or these Articles shall apply to a transfer of
Securities effected by transferor and transferee both of whom are entered as Beneficial
Owners in the records of a Depository;

(ii) In the case of Transfer or transmission of shares or other marketable Securities where
the Company has not issued any certificates and where such shares or Securities are
being held in any electronic or fungible form in a Depository, the provisions of the
Depositories Act shall apply.

Allotment of Securities dealt within a Depository:

Notwithstanding anything in the Act or these Articles, where Securities are dealt with by a
Depository, the Company shall intimate the details of allotment of relevant Securities thereof to
the Depository immediately on allotment of such Securities.

Certificate Number and other details of Securities in Depository:

Nothing contained in the Act or these Articles regarding the necessity of having certificate
number/distinctive numbers for Securities issued by the Company shall apply to Securities held
with a Depository.

Register and Index of Beneficial Owners:

The register and index of beneficial owners maintained by a Depository under the Depositories
Act, shall be deemed to be the register and index (if applicable) of Shareholders and Security-
holders for the purposes of these Articles.

22



(0)

()

)

(r)

24.

(2)

(b)

()

(d)

Provisions of Articles to apply to Shares held in Depository:

Except as specifically provided in these Articles, the provisions relating to joint holders of
shares, calls, lien on shares, forfeiture of shares and Transfer and transmission of shares shall be
applicable to shares held in the Depository so far as they apply to shares held in physical form
subject to the provisions of the Depositories Act.

Depository to furnish information:

Every Depository shall furnish to the Company information about the transfer of Securities in
the name of the Beneficial Owner at such intervals and in such manner as may be specified by
Law and the Company in that behalf.

Option to opt out in respect of any such Security:

If a Beneficial Owner seeks to opt out of a Depository in respect of any Security, he shall
inform the Depository accordingly. The Depository shall on receipt of such information make
appropriate entries in its records and shall inform the Company. The Company shall within 30
(thirty) days of the receipt of intimation from a Depository and on fulfillment of such conditions
and on payment of such fees as may be specified by the regulations, issue the certificate of
Securities to the Beneficial Owner or the transferee as the case may be.

Overriding, effect of this Article:

Provisions of this Article will have full effect and force not withstanding anything to the
contrary or inconsistent contained in any other Article.

NOMINATION BY SECURITIES HOLDERS

Every holder of Securities of the Company may, at any time, nominate, in the manner
prescribed under the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, a Person as his
nominee in whom the Securities of the Company held by him shall vest in the event of his
death.

Where the Securities of the Company are held by more than one Person jointly, the joint holders
may together nominate, in the manner prescribed under the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014, a Person as their nominee in whom all the rights in the Securities
Company shall vest in the event of death of all the joint holders.

Notwithstanding anything contained in any other Law for the time being in force or in any
disposition, whether testamentary or otherwise, in respect of the Securities of the Company,
where a nomination made in the manner prescribed under the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014, purports to confer on any Person the right to vest the Securities of the
Company, the nominee shall, on the death of the holder of Securities of the Company or, as the
case may be, on the death of the joint holders become entitled to all the rights in Securities of
the holder or, as the case may be, of all the joint holders, in relation to such Securities of the
Company to the exclusion of all other Persons, unless the nomination is varied or cancelled in
the prescribed manner under the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

Where the nominee is a minor, the holder of the Securities concerned, can make the nomination
to appoint in prescribed manner under the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014, any Person to become entitled to the Securities of the Company in the event of his death,
during the minority.
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(e)  The transmission of Securities of the Company by the holders of such Securities and Transfer in
case of nomination shall be subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

25. NOMINATION FOR FIXED DEPOSITS

A depositor (who shall be the member of the Company) may, at any time, make a nomination and the
provisions of section 72 of the Act shall, as far as may be, apply to the nominations made in relation
to the deposits made subject to the provisions of the Rules as may be prescribed in this regard.

26. NOMINATION IN CERTAIN OTHER CASES

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and these Articles, any Person becoming entitled to the
Securities in consequence of death, lunacy, bankruptcy or insolvency of any holder of the Securities,
or by any lawful means other than by a Transfer in accordance with these Articles, may, with the
consent of the Board (which it shall not be under any obligation to give), upon producing such
evidence that he sustains the character in respect of which he proposes to act under this Article or of
such title as the Board thinks sufficient, either be registered himself as the holder of the Securities or
elect to have some Person nominated by him and approved by the Board registered as such holder;
provided nevertheless that, if such Person shall elect to have his nominee registered, he shall testify
the election by executing in favour of his nominee an instrument of Transfer in accordance with the
provisions herein contained and until he does so, he shall not be freed from any liability in respect of
the Securities.

27. COPIES OF MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES TO BE SENT TO MEMBERS
Copies of the Memorandum and Articles and other documents referred to in section 17 of the Act

shall be sent by the Company to every Shareholder at his request within 7 (seven) days of the request
on payment of such sum as prescribed under the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014.

28. BORROWING POWERS

(a)  Subject to the provisions of sections 73, 179 and 180, and other applicable provisions of the Act
and these Articles, the Board may, from time to time, at its discretion by resolution passed at the
meeting of a Board:
(1) accept or renew deposits from Shareholders;
(ii) borrow money by way of issuance of Debentures;
(iii)  borrow money otherwise than on Debentures;

(iv) accept deposits from Shareholders either in advance of calls or otherwise; and

(v) generally raise or borrow or secure the payment of any sum or sums of money for the
purposes of the Company.

Provided, however, that where the money to be borrowed together with the money already
borrowed (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary
course of business) exceed the aggregate of the Paid-up capital of the Company and its free
reserves (not being reserves set apart for any specific purpose), the Board shall not borrow such
money without the consent of the Company by way of a Special Resolution in a General
Meeting.
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Subject to the provisions of these Articles, the payment or repayment of money borrowed as
aforesaid may be secured in such manner and upon such terms and conditions in all respects as
the resolution of the Board shall prescribe including by the issue of bonds, perpetual or
redeemable Debentures or debenture-stock, or any mortgage, charge, hypothecation, pledge,
lien or other security on the undertaking of the whole or any part of the property of the
Company, both present and future. Provided however that the Board shall not, except with the
consent of the Company by way of a Special Resolution in the General Meeting, mortgage,
charge or otherwise encumber, the Company's uncalled Capital for the time being or any part
thereof and Debentures and other Securities may be assignable free from any equities between
the Company and the Person to whom the same may be issued.

Any bonds, Debentures, debenture-stock or other Securities may if permissible in Law be issued
at a discount, premium or otherwise by the Company and shall with the consent of the Board be
issued upon such terms and conditions and in such manner and for such consideration as the
Board shall consider to be for the benefit of the Company, and on the condition that they or any
part of them may be convertible into Equity Shares of any denomination, and with any
privileges and conditions as to the redemption, surrender, allotment of shares, appointment of
Directors or otherwise. Provided that Debentures with rights to allotment of or conversion into
Equity Shares shall not be issued except with, the sanction of the Company in a General
Meeting accorded by a Special Resolution.

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and these Articles, if any uncalled Capital of the
Company is included in or charged by any mortgage or other Security, the Board shall make
calls on the Shareholders in respect of such uncalled Capital in trust for the Person in whose
favour such mortgage or Security is executed, or if permitted by the Act, may by instrument
under Seal authorize the Person in whose favour such mortgage or Security is executed or any
other Person in trust for him to make calls on the Shareholders in respect of such uncalled
Capital and the provisions hereinafter contained in regard to calls shall mutatis mutandis apply
to calls made under such authority and such authority may be made exercisable either
conditionally or unconditionally or either presently or contingently and either to the exclusion
of the Board's power or otherwise and shall be assignable if expressed so to be.

The Board shall cause a proper Register to be kept in accordance with the provisions of section
85 of the Act of all mortgages, Debentures and charges specifically affecting the property of the
Company; and shall cause the requirements of the relevant provisions of the Act in that behalf
to be duly complied within the time prescribed under the Act or such extensions thereof as may
be permitted under the Act, as the case may be, so far as they are required to be complied with
by the Board.

Any capital required by the Company for its working capital and other capital funding
requirements may be obtained in such form as decided by the Board from time to time.

The Company shall also comply with the provisions of the Companies (Registration of Charges)
Rules, 2014 in relation to the creation and registration of aforesaid charges by the Company.

SHARE WARRANTS

The Company may issue share warrants subject to, and in accordance with, the provisions of
Act; and accordingly the Board may in its discretion, with respect to any Share which is fully
Paid-up, on application in writing signed by the Persons registered as holder of the Share, and
authenticated by such evidence (if any) as the Board may, from time to time, require as to the
identity of the Person signing the application, and on receiving the certificate (if any) of the
Share, and the amount of the stamp duty on the warrant and such fee as the Board may from
time to time require, issue a share warrant.
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The bearer of a share warrant may at any time deposit the warrant at the Office, and so long as
the warrant remains so deposited, the depositor shall have the same right of signing a requisition
for calling a meeting of the Company, and of attending, and voting and exercising the other
privileges of a Shareholder at any meeting held after the expiry of 2 (two) clear days from the
time of deposit, as if his name were inserted in the Register of Members as the holder of the
Share included in the deposited warrant.

(1) Not more than one Person shall be recognized as depositor of the share warrant;

(ii) The Company shall. on 2 (two) day’s written notice, return the deposited share warrant
to the depositor.

Subject as herein otherwise expressly provided, no Person shall, as bearer of a share warrant,
sign a requisition for calling a meeting of the Company, or attend, or vote or exercise any other
privileges of a Shareholder at a meeting of the Company, or be entitled to receive any notices
from the Company.

(1) The bearer of a share warrant shall be entitled in all other respects to the same
privileges and advantages as if he were named in the Register of Members as the
Shareholder included in the warrant, and he shall be a Shareholder.

The Board may, from time to time, make rules as to the terms on which (if it shall think fit) a
new share warrant or coupon may be issued by way of renewal in case of defacement, loss or
destruction.

The provisions contained under this Article shall cease to have effect post the notification of
section 465 of the Act which shall repeal the provisions of Companies Act, 1956.

CONVERSION OF SHARES INTO STOCK AND RECONVERSION

The Company in the General Meeting may, by an Ordinary Resolution, convert any Paid-up
shares into stock and when any shares shall have been converted into stock, the several holders
of such stock may henceforth transfer their respective interest therein, or any part of such
interests, in the same manner and subject to the same regulations as those subject to which
shares from which the stock arose might have been transferred, if no such conversion had taken
place or as near thereto as circumstances will admit. The Company may, by an Ordinary
Resolution, at any time reconvert any stock into Paid-up shares of any denomination. Provided
that the Board may, from time to time, fix the minimum amount of stock transferable, so
however such minimum shall not exceed the nominal account from which the stock arose.

The holders of stock shall, according to the amount of stock held by them, have the same rights,
privileges and advantages as regards Dividends, voting at meetings of the Company, and other
matters, as if they held the shares from which the stock arose, but no such privileges or
advantages, (except participation in the Dividends and profits of the Company and in the assets
on winding-up), shall be conferred by an amount of stock which would not, if existing in shares,
have conferred that privilege or advantage.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with the provisions of the Act, the Company shall in each year hold a General Meeting
specified as its Annual General Meeting and shall specify the meeting as such in the notices
convening such meetings. Further, not more than 15 (fifteen) months gap shall exist between the date
of one Annual General Meeting and the date of the next. All General Meetings other than the Annual
General Meetings shall be the Extraordinary General Meetings.

26



32.

WHEN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD

Nothing contained in the foregoing provisions shall be taken as affecting the right conferred upon the
Registrar under the provisions of section 96(1) of the Act to extend the time within which any Annual
General Meeting may be held.
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VENUE, DAY AND TIME FOR HOLDING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Every Annual General Meeting shall be called during business hours, that is, between 9 A.M.
and 6 P.M. on a day that is not a national holiday, and shall be held at the Office or at some
other place within the city, town or village in which the Office is situated, as the Board may
determine and the notices calling the Meeting shall specify it as the Annual General Meeting.

Every Shareholder shall be entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting either in person or by
proxy and the Auditor of the Company shall have the right to attend and to be heard at any
General Meeting which he attends on any part of the business which concerns him as the
Auditor. At every Annual General Meeting of the Company there shall be laid on the table, the
directors' report and audited statement of accounts, auditors' report, (if not already incorporated
in the audited statement of accounts), the proxy register with proxies and the register of
directors' shareholdings which latter register shall remain open and accessible during the
continuance of the Meeting. The Board shall cause to be prepared the Annual Return and
forward the same to the concerned Registrar, in accordance with sections 92 and 137 of the Act.
The Directors are also entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Number of day’s notice of General Meeting to be given: A General Meeting of the Company
may be called by giving not less than 21 (twenty one) days clear notice in writing or in
electronic mode, excluding the day on which notice is served or deemed to be served (i.e., on
expiry of 48 (forty eight) hours after the letter containing the same is posted). However, a
General Meeting may be called after giving shorter notice if consent is given in writing or by
electronic mode by not less than 95 (ninety five) percent of the Shareholders entitled to vote at
that meeting.

The notice of every meeting shall be given to:

(1) Every Shareholder, legal representative of any deceased Shareholder or the assignee of
an insolvent member of the Company;

(i1) Auditor or Auditors of the Company; and

(iii)  All Directors.

Notice of meeting to specify place, etc., and to contain statement of business: Notice of every
meeting of the Company shall specify the place, date, day and hour of the meeting, and shall

contain a statement of the business to be transacted thereat shall be given in the manner
prescribed under section 102 of the Act.

Special Business: Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, where any items of business
to be transacted at the meeting are deemed to be special, there shall be annexed to the notice of
the meeting a statement setting out all material facts concerning each item of business including
any particular nature of the concern or interest if any therein of every Director or manager (as
defined under the provisions of the Act), if any or key managerial personnel (as defined under
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the provisions of the Act) or the relatives of any of the aforesaid and where any item of special
business relates to or affects any other company, the extent of shareholding interest in that other
company of every Director or manager (as defined under the provisions of the Act), if any or
key managerial personnel (as defined under the provisions of the Act) or the relatives of any of
the aforesaid of the first mentioned company shall also be set out in the statement if the extent
of such interest is not less than 2 per cent of the Paid up share capital of that other company. All
business transacted at any meeting of the Company shall be deemed to be special and all
business transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company with the exception of the
business specified in section 102 of the Act shall be deemed to be special.

Resolutions requiring Special Notice: With regard to resolutions in respect of which special
notice is required to be given by the Act, a special notice shall be given as required by section
115 of the Act.

Notice of Adjourned Meeting when necessary: When a meeting is adjourned for 30 (thirty) days
or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act.

Notice when not necessary: Save as aforesaid, and as provided in section 103 of the Act, it shall
not be necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an
adjourned meeting.

The notice of the General Meeting shall comply with the provisions of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014.

REQUISITION OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

The Directors may, whenever it thinks fit, call an Extraordinary General Meeting and it shall do
so upon a requisition received from such number of Shareholders who hold, on the date of
receipt of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of such of the Paid up Share Capital of the
Company as on that date carries the right of voting and such meeting shall be held at the Office
or at such place and at such time as the Board thinks fit.

Any valid requisition so made by Shareholders must state the object or objects of the meeting
proposed to be called, and must be signed by the requisitionists and be deposited at the Office;
provided that such requisition may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one
or more requisitionists.

Upon the receipt of any such valid requisition, the Board shall forthwith call an Extraordinary
General Meeting and if they do not proceed within 21 (twenty-one) days from the date of the
requisition being deposited at the Office to cause a meeting to be called on a day not later than
45 (forty-five) days from the date of deposit of the requisition, the requisitionists or such of
their number as represent either a majority in value of the Paid up Share Capital held by all of
them or not less than one-tenth of such of the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as is
referred to in section 100 of the Act, whichever is less, may themselves call the meeting, but in
either case any meeting so called shall be held within three months from the date of the delivery
of the requisition as aforesaid.

Any meeting called under the foregoing sub-articles by the requisitionists, shall be called in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which a meeting is to be called by the Board.

The accidental omission to give any such notice as aforesaid to any of the Shareholders, or the
non-receipt thereof, shall not invalidate any resolution passed at any such meeting.
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(f)  No General Meeting, Annual or Extraordinary, shall be competent to enter into, discuss or
transact any business which has not been mentioned in the notice or notices by which it was
convened.

(g) The Extraordinary General Meeting called under this article shall be subject to and in
accordance with the provisions contained under the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014.

36. NO BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED IN GENERAL MEETING IF QUORUM IS NOT
PRESENT

The quorum for the Shareholder’s Meeting shall be in accordance with section 103 of the Act. Subject
to the provisions of section 103(2) of the Act, if such a quorum is not present within half an hour from
the time set for the Shareholder’s Meeting, the General Meeting shall be adjourned to the same time
and place or to such other date and such other time and place as the Board may determine and the
agenda for the adjourned Shareholder's  Meeting shall remain the same. If at such an adjourned
meeting also, a quorum is not present, at the expiration of half an hour from the time appointed for
holding the meeting, the members present shall be a quorum, and may transact the business for which
the meeting was called.

37. CHAIRMAN OF THE GENERAL MEETING

The Chairman of the Board shall be entitled to take the chair at every General Meeting, whether
Annual or Extraordinary. If there is no such Chairman of the Board or if at any meeting he shall not
be present within fifteen minutes of the time appointed for holding such meeting or if he is unable or
unwilling to take the chair, then the Directors present shall elect one of them as Chairman. If no
Director is present or if all the Directors present decline to take the chair, then the Shareholders
present shall elect one of their member to be the Chairman of the meeting. No business shall be
discussed at any General Meeting except the election of a Chairman while the chair is vacant.

38. CHAIRMAN CAN ADJOURN THE GENERAL MEETING

The Chairman may, with the consent given in the meeting at which a quorum is present (and if so
directed by the meeting) adjourn the General Meeting from time to time and from place to place
within the city, town or village in which the Office is situated but no business shall be transacted at
any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the
adjournment took place.

39. QUESTIONS AT GENERAL MEETING HOW DECIDED

(a) Atany General Meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the General Meeting shall, unless a poll
is demanded, be decided by a show of hands. Before or on the declaration of the result of the
voting on any resolution by a show of hands, a poll may be carried out in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Act or the voting is carried out electronically. Unless a poll is
demanded, a declaration by the Chairman that a resolution has, on a show of hands, been carried
or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost and an entry to that effect in the
minute book of the Company shall be conclusive evidence of the fact, of passing of such
resolution or otherwise.

(b) In the case of equal votes, the Chairman shall both on a show of hands and at a poll, (if any),
have a casting vote in addition to the vote or votes to which he may be entitled as a Shareholder.

(c) Ifapollis demanded as aforesaid, the same shall subject to anything stated in these Articles be

taken at such time, (not later than forty-eight hours from the time when the demand was made),
and place within the city, town or village in which the Office is situated and either by a show of
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hands or by ballot or by postal ballot, as the Chairman shall direct and either at once or after an
interval or adjournment, or otherwise and the result of the poll shall be deemed to be the
decision of the meeting at which the poll was demanded. Any business other than that upon
which a poll has been demanded may be proceeded with, pending the taking of the poll. The
demand for a poll may be withdrawn at any time by the Person or Persons who made the
demand.

Any poll duly demanded on the election of a Chairman of a meeting or any question of
adjournment, shall be taken at the meeting forthwith. A poll demanded on any other question
shall be taken at such time not later than 48 hours from the time of demand, as the Chairman of
the meeting directs.

The demand for a poll except on the question of the election of the Chairman and of an
adjournment shall not prevent the continuance of a meeting for the transaction of any business
other than the question on which the poll has been demanded.

No report of the proceedings of any General Meeting of the Company shall be circulated or
advertised at the expense of the Company unless it includes the matters required by these
Articles or section 118 of the Act to be contained in the minutes of the proceedings of such
meeting.

The Shareholders will do nothing to prevent the taking of any action by the Company or act
contrary to or with the intent to evade or defeat the terms as contained in these Articles.

PASSING RESOLUTIONS BY POSTAL BALLOT

Notwithstanding any of the provisions of these Articles, the Company may, and in the case of
resolutions relating to such business as notified under the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, or other Law required to be passed by postal ballot,
shall get any resolution passed by means of a postal ballot, instead of transacting the business in
the General Meeting of the Company. Also, the Company may, in respect of any item of
business other than ordinary business and any business in respect of which Directors or
Auditors have a right to be heard at any meeting, transact the same by way of postal ballot.

Where the Company decides to pass any resolution by resorting to postal ballot, it shall follow
the procedures as prescribed under section 110 of the Act and the companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time any other law as may be applicable to the
Company

VOTES OF MEMBERS

No Shareholder shall be entitled to vote either personally or by proxy at any General Meeting or
meeting of a class of Shareholders either upon a show of hands or upon a poll in respect of any
shares registered in his name on which calls or other sums presently payable by him have not
been paid or in regard to which the Company has exercised any right of lien.

No member shall be entitled to vote at a General Meeting unless all calls or other sums
presently payable by him have been paid, or in regard to which the Company has lien and has
exercised any right of lien.

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, without prejudice to any special privilege or
restrictions as to voting for the time being attached to any class of shares for the time being
forming a part of the Capital of the Company, every Shareholder not disqualified by the last
preceding Article, shall be entitled to be present, and to speak and vote at such meeting, and on
a show of hands, every Shareholder present in person shall have one vote and upon a poll, the
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voting right of such Shareholder present, either in person or by proxy, shall be in proportion to
his share of the Paid up Share Capital of the Company held alone or jointly with any other
Person or Persons.

Provided however, if any Shareholder holding preference shares be present at any meeting of
the Company, save as provided in section 47(2) of the Act, he shall have a right to vote only on
resolutions placed before the Meeting, which directly affect the rights attached to his preference
shares.

On a poll taken at a meeting of the Company, a Shareholder entitled to more than one vote, or
his proxy, or any other Person entitled to vote for him (as the case may be), need not, if he
votes, use or cast all his votes in the same way.

A Shareholder of unsound mind or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court
having jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, through a
committee or through his legal guardian; and any such committee or guardian may, on a poll
vote by proxy. If any Shareholder be a minor his vote in respect of his share(s) shall be
exercised by his guardian(s), who may be selected (in case of dispute), by the Chairman of the
meeting.

If there be joint registered holders of any shares, any one of such Persons may vote at any
meeting or may appoint another Person, (whether a Shareholder or not) as his proxy in respect
of such shares, as if he were solely entitled thereto; but the proxy so appointed shall not have
any right to speak at the meeting and if more than one of such joint-holders be present at any
meeting, then one of the said Persons so present whose name stands higher in the Register of
Members shall alone be entitled to speak and to vote in respect of such shares, but the other
joint- holders shall be entitled to be present at the meeting. Several Executors or Administrators
of a deceased Shareholder in whose name shares stand shall for the purpose of these Articles be
deemed joint-holders thereof.

Subject to the provision of these Articles, votes may be given personally or by an attorney or by
proxy. A body corporate, whether or not a Company within the meaning of the Act, being a
Shareholder may vote either by a proxy or by a representative duly authorized in accordance
with section 113 of the Act and such representative shall be entitled to exercise the same rights
and powers, (including the right to vote by proxy), on behalf of the body corporate which he
represents as that body could have exercised if it were an individual Shareholder.

Any Person entitled to Transfer any shares of the Company may vote at any General Meeting in
respect thereof in the same manner as if he were the registered holder of such shares, provided
that forty-eight hours at least before the time of holding the meeting or adjourned meeting, as
the case may he, at which he proposes to vote, he shall satisfy the Board of his right to such
shares and give such indemnity (if any) as the Board may require unless the Board shall have
previously admitted his right to vote at such meeting in respect thereof.

Every proxy, (whether a Shareholder or not), shall be appointed in writing under the hand of the
appointer or his attorney, or if such appointer is a corporation under the common seal of such
corporation or be signed by an officer or an attorney duly authorized by it, and any committee
or guardian may appoint proxy. The proxy so appointed shall not have any right to speak at a
meeting.

An instrument of proxy may appoint a proxy either for (i) the purposes of a particular meeting
(as specified in the instrument); or (ii) for any adjournment thereof; or (iii) it may appoint a
proxy for the purposes of every meeting of the Company; or (iv) of every meeting to be held
before a date specified in the instrument for every adjournment of any such meeting.

A Shareholder present by proxy shall be entitled to vote only on a poll.
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An instrument appointing a proxy and a power of attorney or other authority (including by way
of a Board Resolution, (if any), under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that
power or authority or resolution as the case may be, shall be deposited at the Office not later
than forty-eight hours before the time for holding the meeting at which the Person named in the
instrument proposes to vote and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.
No instrument appointing a proxy shall be valid after the expiration of 12 months from the date
of its execution. An attorney shall not be entitled to vote unless the power of attorney or other
instrument or resolution as the case may be appointing him or a notarially certified copy thereof
has either been registered in the records of the Company at any time not less than forty-eight
hours before the time for holding the meeting at which the attorney proposes to vote, or is
deposited at the Office not less than forty-eight hours before the time fixed for such meeting as
aforesaid. Notwithstanding that a power of attorney or other authority has been registered in the
records of the Company, the Company may, by notice in writing addressed to the Shareholder
or the attorney, given at least 48 (forty eight) hours before the meeting, require him to produce
the original power of attorney or authority or resolution as the case may be and unless the same
is deposited with the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the time fixed for the
meeting, the attorney shall not be entitled to vote at such meeting unless the Board in their
absolute discretion excuse such non-production and deposit.

Every instrument of proxy whether for a specified meeting or otherwise should, as far as
circumstances admit, be in any of the forms set out in the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014.

If any such instrument of appointment be confined to the object of appointing an attorney or
proxy for voting at meetings of the Company it shall remain permanently or for such time as the
Directors may determine in the custody of the Company; if embracing other objects a copy
thereof, examined with the original, shall be delivered to the Company to remain in the custody
of the Company.

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid
notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal, or the revocation of the proxy or
of any power of attorney under which such proxy was signed, or the transfer of the share in
respect of which the vote is given, provided that no intimation in writing of the death,
revocation or Transfer shall have been received at the Office before the meeting.

No objection shall be made to the validity of any vote, except at the Meeting or poll at which
such vote shall be tendered, and every vote whether given personally or by proxy, not
disallowed at such meeting or poll shall be deemed valid for all purposes of such meeting or
poll whatsoever.

The Chairman of any meeting shall be the sole judge of the validity of every vote tendered at
such meeting. The Chairman present at the taking of a poll shall be in the sole judge of the
validity of every vote tendered at such poll.

(1) The Company shall cause minutes of all proceedings of every General Meeting to be
kept by making within 30 (thirty) days of the conclusion of every such meeting
concerned, entries thereof in books kept for that purpose with their pages consecutively
numbered;

(ii) Each page of every such book shall be initialed or signed and the last page of the record
of proceedings of each meeting in such book shall be dated and signed by the Chairman
of the same meeting within the aforesaid period of 30 (thirty) days or in the event of the
death or inability of that Chairman within that period, by a Director duly authorized by
the Board for that purpose;
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(iii)  In no case the minutes of proceedings of a meeting shall be attached to any such book
as aforesaid by pasting or otherwise;

(iv) The Minutes of each meeting shall contain a fair and correct summary of the
proceedings thereat;

(v) All appointments of Directors of the Company made at any meeting aforesaid shall be
included in the minutes of the meeting;

(vi) Nothing herein contained shall require or be deemed to require the inclusion in any
such Minutes of any matter which in the opinion of the Chairman of the Meeting (i) is
or could reasonably be regarded as, defamatory of any Person; or (ii) is irrelevant or
immaterial to the proceedings; or (iii) is detrimental to the interests of the Company.
The Chairman of the meeting shall exercise an absolute discretion in regard to the
inclusion or non-inclusion of any matter in the minutes on the aforesaid grounds;

(vil)  Any such minutes shall be evidence of the proceedings recorded therein;

(viii)  The book containing the minutes of proceedings of the General Meetings shall be kept
at the Office and shall be open, during business hours, for such periods not being less in
the aggregate than two hours in each day as the Board determines, for the inspection of

any Shareholder without charge;

(ix) The Company shall cause minutes to be duly entered in books provided for the

purpose of: -
a. the names of the Directors and alternate Directors present at each General
Meeting;
b. all resolutions and proceedings of the General Meeting.

The Shareholders shall vote (whether in person or by proxy) all of the shares owned or held on
record by them at any Annual or Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company called for the
purpose of filling positions to the Board, appointed as a Director of the Company under sections
152 and 164(l) of the Act in accordance with these Articles.

The Shareholders will do nothing to prevent the taking of any action by the Company or act
contrary to or with the intent to evade or defeat the terms as contained in these Articles.

All matters arising at a General Meeting of the Company, other than as specified in the Act or
these Articles if any shall be decided by a majority vote.

The Shareholders shall exercise their voting rights to ensure that the Act or these Articles are
implemented and acted upon by the Shareholders, and by the Company and to prevent the
taking of any action by the Company or by any Shareholder, which is contrary to or with a view
or intention to evade or defeat the terms as contained in these Articles.

Any corporation which is a Shareholder of the Company may, by resolution of the Board or
other governing body, authorize such Person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any
meeting of the Company and the said Person so authorized shall be entitled to exercise the same
powers on behalf of the corporation which he represents as that corporation could have
exercised if it were an individual Shareholder in the Company (including the right to vote by

proxy).
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(w) The Company shall also provide e-voting facility to the Shareholders in terms of the provisions
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, or any other Law, if
applicable to the Company.

42. DIRECTORS

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, the number of Directors of the Company shall not be
less than 3 (three) and not more than 15 (fifteen). The Company shall also comply with the provisions
of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

43. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a) The members of the Board shall elect any one of them as the Chairman of the Board. The
Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the Board and the General Meeting of the Company.
The Chairman shall have a casting vote in the event of a tie.

(b)  If for any reason the Chairman is not present at the meeting or is unwilling to act as Chairman,
the members of the Board shall appoint any one of the remaining Directors as the Chairman.

44. APPOINTMENT OF ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

Subject to section 161 of the Act, any Director (hereinafter called "the Original Director") shall be
entitled to nominate an alternate director (subject to such Person being acceptable to the Chairman)
(the "Alternate Director") to act for him during his absence for a period of not less than 3 (three)
months from India. The Board may appoint such a Person as an Alternate Director to act for a
Director during the Original Director's absence for a period of not less than three months from India.
An Alternate Director appointed under this Article shall not hold office for a period longer than that
permissible to the Original Director in whose place he has been appointed and shall vacate office if
and when the Original Director returns to the State. If the term of the office of the Original Director is
determined before he so returns to the state, any provisions in the Act or in these Articles for
automatic re-appointment shall apply to the Original Director and not to the Alternate Director.

45. CASUAL VACANCY AND ADDITIONAL DIRECTORS

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and these Articles, the Board shall have the power at
any time and from time to time to appoint any qualified Person to be a Director either as an addition
to the Board or to fill a casual vacancy but so that the total number of Directors shall not at any time
exceed the maximum number fixed under Article 42. Any Person so appointed as an addition shall
hold office only up to the earlier of the date of the next Annual General Meeting or at the last date on
which the Annual General Meeting should have been held but shall be eligible for appointment by the
Company as a Director at that meeting subject to the applicable provisions of the Act.

46. DEBENTURE DIRECTORS

If it is provided by a trust deed, securing or otherwise, in connection with any issue of Debentures of
the Company, that any Person/lender or Persons/lenders shall have power to nominate a Director, then
in the case of any and every such issue of Debentures, the Person/lender or Persons/lenders having
such power may exercise such power from time to time and appoint a Director accordingly. Any
Director so appointed is herein referred to as the Debenture Director. The Debenture Director may be
removed from office at any time by the Person/lender or Persons/lenders in whom for the time being
is vested the power under which he was appointed and another Director may be appointed in his
place. The Debenture Director shall not be bound to hold any qualification shares and shall not be
liable to retire by rotation or be removed by the Company. The trust deed may contain ancillary
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provisions as may be arranged between the Company and the trustees and all such provisions shall
have effect notwithstanding any other provisions contained herein.

47. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company shall have such number of Independent Directors on the Board of the Company, as may
be required in terms of the provisions of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 or any other Law, as may be applicable.
Further, the appointment of such Independent Directors shall be in terms of the aforesaid provisions
of Law.

48. EQUAL POWER TO DIRECTOR

Except as, otherwise provided in these Articles, all the Directors of the Company shall have in all
matters, equal rights and privileges and shall be subject to equal obligations and duties in respect of
the affairs of the Company.

49. NOMINEE DIRECTORS

(a) Whenever the Board enters into a contract with any lenders for borrowing any money or for
providing any guarantee or security or for technical collaboration or assistance or enter into any
other arrangement, the Board shall have, subject to the provisions of section 152 of the Act the
power to agree that such lenders shall have the right to appoint or nominate by a notice in
writing addressed to the Company one or more Directors on the Board for such period and upon
such conditions as may be mentioned in the common loan agreement/ facility agreement. The
nominee director representing lenders shall not be required to hold qualification shares and not
be liable to retire by rotation. The Directors may also agree that any such Director, or Directors
may be removed from time to time by the lenders entitled to appoint or nominate them and such
lenders may appoint another or other or others in his or their place and also fill in any vacancy
which may occur as a result of any such Director, or Directors ceasing to hold that office for
any reason whatsoever. The nominee director shall hold office only so long as any monies
remain owed by the Company to such lenders.

(b) The nominee director shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of other Directors
including the sitting fees and expenses as payable to the other Directors but, if any other fees,
commission, monies or remuneration in any form are payable to the Directors, the fees,
commission, monies and remuneration in relation to such nominee director shall accrue to the
lenders and the same shall accordingly be paid by the Company directly to the lenders.

Provided that if any such nominee director is an officer of any of the lenders, the sittings fees in
relation to such nominee director shall also accrue to the lenders concerned and the same shall
accordingly be paid by the Company directly to that lenders.

(¢)  Any expenditure that may be incurred by the lenders or the nominee director in connection with
the appointment or directorship shall be borne by the Company.

(d) The nominee director so appointed shall be a member of the project management sub-
committee, audit sub-committee and other sub-committees of the Board, if so desired by the
lenders.

(e) The nominee director shall be entitled to receive all notices, agenda, etc. and to attend all the

General Meetings and the Board Meetings and meetings of any committee(s) of the Board of
which he is a member and to receive all notices, agenda and minutes, etc. of the said meeting.
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(f)  If at any time, the nominee director is not able to attend a meeting of Board or any of its
committees, of which he is a member, the lenders may depute an observer to attend the meeting.
The expenses incurred by the lenders in this connection shall be borne by the Company.

50. NO QUALIFICATION SHARES FOR DIRECTORS
A Director shall not be required to hold any qualification shares of the Company.
51. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

(a)  Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Rules, Law, the Managing Director and any
other Directors of the Company may be paid remuneration either by a way of monthly payment
or at a specified percentage of the net profits of the Company or partly by one way and partly by
the other, subject to the limits prescribed under the Act.

(b)  Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, a Director (other than a Managing Director or an
executive Director) may receive a sitting fee not exceeding such sum as may be prescribed by
the Act or the central government from time to time for each meeting of the Board or any
Committee thereof attended by him.

(¢) The remuneration payable to each Director for every meeting of the Board or Committee of the
Board attended by them shall be such sum as may be determined by the Board from time to
time within the maximum limits prescribed from time to time by the Central Government
pursuant to the first proviso to section 197 of the Act.

52. SPECIAL REMUNERATION FOR EXTRA SERVICES RENDERED BY A DIRECTOR

If any Director be called upon to perform extra services or special exertions or efforts (which
expression shall include work done by a Director as a member of any Committee formed by the
Directors), the Board may arrange with such Director for such special remuneration for such extra
services or special exertions or efforts either by a fixed-sum or otherwise as may be determined by the
Board. Such remuneration may either be in addition, to or in substitution for his remuneration
otherwise provided, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act.

53. TRAVEL EXPENSES OF DIRECTORS

The Board may allow and pay to any Director, who is not a bona fide resident of the place where the
meetings of the Board/Committee meetings are ordinarily held; and who shall come to such place for
the purpose of attending any meeting, such sum as the Board may consider fair compensation for
travelling, lodging and/ or other expenses, in addition to his fee for attending such Board / Committee
meetings as above specified; and if any Director be called upon to go or reside out of his ordinary
place of his residence on the Company's business, he shall be entitled to be repaid and reimbursed
travelling and other expenses incurred in connection with the business of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Act.

54. CONTINUING DIRECTORS
The continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their body, but if, and so long as
their number is reduced below the minimum number fixed by Article 42 hereof, the continuing

Directors not being less than 2(two) may act for the purpose of increasing the number of Directors to
that number, or for summoning a General Meeting, but for no other purpose.

55. VACATION OF OFFICE BY DIRECTOR
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(a)

56.

(2)

Subject to relevant provisions of sections 167 and 188 of the Act, the office of a Director, shall
ipso facto be vacated if:

(1) he is found to be of unsound mind by a court of competent jurisdiction; or
(i1) he applies to be adjudicated an insolvent; or
(iii) he is adjudged an insolvent; or

(iv)  heis convicted by a court of any offence involving moral turpitude and is sentenced in
respect thereof to imprisonment for not less than 6 (six) months; or

(v) he fails to pay any calls made on him in respect of shares of the Company held by him
whether alone or jointly with others, within 6 (six) months from the date fixed for the
payment of such call, unless the Central Government has by notification in the Official
Gazette removed the disqualification incurred by such failure; or

(vi)  he, (whether by himself or by any Person for his benefit or on his account), or any firm
in which he is a partner, or any private company of which he is a director, accepts a
loan, or any guarantee or security for a loan, from the Company, in contravention of
section 185 of the Act; or

(vii)  having been appointed a Director by virtue of his holding any office or other
employment in the Company, he ceases to hold such office or other employment in the
Company; or

(viii)  he acts in contravention of section 184 of the Act; or
(ix) he is removed in pursuance of section 169 of the Act; or
(x) he is disqualified under section 164 of the Act.

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, a Director may resign his office at any time by
notice in writing addressed to the Board and such resignation shall become effective upon its
acceptance by the Board.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except with the consent of the Board and as may be required in terms of the provisions of
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, no company shall enter into any contract or arrangement with a related party with
respect to:

(h) Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

(ii) Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;

(i)  Leasing property of any kind;

(iv)  Availing or rendering of any services;

(v) Appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or property;

(vi)Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in the Company, its
subsidiary company or associate company; and

(vii)  Underwriting the subscription of any Securities or derivates thereof, of the Company:

37



(b)

(©

(d)

Without the consent of the Shareholders by way of a Special Resolution in accordance with
section 188 of the Act.

no Shareholder shall vote on such Special Resolution, to approve any contract or arrangement
which may be entered into by the Company, if such Shareholder is a related party.

Nothing in this Article shall apply to any transactions entered into by the Company in its
ordinary-course of business other than transactions which are not on an arm's length basis.

The Director, so contracting or being so interested shall not be liable to the Company for any
profit realized by any such contract or the fiduciary relation thereby established.

(eyoffidecalpmslit” and arm's length basis”™ shall have the meaning ascribed to them

()

(8)

57.

(a)

(b)

under section 188 of the Act.

The term related party shall have the same meaning as ascribed to it under the Companies Act,
2013.

The compliance of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 shall be
made for the aforesaid contracts and arrangements.

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST

A Director of the Company who is in any way, whether directly or indirectly concerned or
interested in a contract or arrangement, or proposed contract or arrangement entered into or to
be entered into by or on behalf of the Company, shall disclose the nature of his concern or
interest at a meeting of the Board in the manner provided in section 184 of the Act; Provided
that it shall not be necessary for a Director to disclose his concern or interest in any such
contract or arrangement entered into or to be entered into with any other company where any of
the Directors of the company or two or more of them together holds or hold not more than 2%
(two per cent) of the paid-up share capital in the other company or the Company as the case
may be. A general notice given to the Board by the Director, to the effect that he is a director or
member of a specified body corporate or is a member of a specified firm and is to be regarded
as concerned or interested in any contract or arrangement which may, after the date of the
notice, be entered into with that body corporate or firm, shall be deemed to be a sufficient
disclosure of concern or interest in relation to any contract or arrangement so made. Any such
general notice shall expire at the end of the Financial Year in which it is given but may be
renewed for a further period of one Financial Year at a time by a fresh notice given in the last
month of the Financial Year in which it would have otherwise expired. No such general notice,
and no renewal thereof shall be of effect unless, either it is given at a meeting of the Board or
the Director concerned takes reasonable steps to secure that it is brought up and read at the first
meeting of the Board after it is given.

No Director shall as a Director, take any part in the discussion of, vote on any contract or
arrangement entered into or to he entered into by or on behalf of the Company, if he is in any
way, whether directly or indirect